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CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the matters discussed under the caption Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may constitute forward

looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act and as such may involve

known and unknown risk uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results performance or

achievements of TIB Financial Corp the Company or Capital Bank NA the Bank the Companys equity

method investee to be materially different from future results described in such forward-looking statements

All statements other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking statements for purposes of

federal and state securities laws including but not limited to statements about anticipated future operating and

financial performance financial position and liquidity business prospects strategic alternatives business strategies

regulatory and competitive outlook investment and expenditure plans capital and financing needs and availability

acquisition and divestiture opportunities plans and objectives of management for future operations and other similar

forecasts and statements of expectation and statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing Words such

as will likely continue anticipates believes could estimates expects intends may seeks
should will and variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify these forward-

looking statements

Forward-looking statements are based on the Company and Banks current expectations and assumptions

regarding its business the regulatory environment the economy and other future conditions Because forward-

looking statements relate to the future they are subject to inherent uncertainties risks and changes in circumstances

that are difficult to predict The Companys actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by the

forward-looking statements The Company cautions you therefore against relying on any of these forward-looking

statements They are neither statements of historical fact nor guarantees or assurances of future performance

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements

include but are not limited to the following

changes in general economic and financial market conditions

any effects of our change of control in which Capital Bank Financial Corp acquired majority

ownership of our voting power including any change in management strategic direction business

plan or operations

the completion of the proposed merger with our controlling shareholder Capital Bank Financial

Corp

managements ability to effectively execute the Banks business plan

inability to receive dividends from the Bank and to service debt and satisfy obligations as they

become due

costs and effects of legal and regulatory developments including the resolution of legal

proceedings or regulatory or other governmental inquiries and the results of regulatory

examinations or reviews

changes in capital classification

the impact of current economic conditions and the Companys results of operations on its ability to

borrow additional funds to meet its liquidity needs

local regional national and international economic conditions and events and the impact they may
have on the Company and its customers

changes in the economy affecting real estate values

inability to attract and retain deposits



changes in the level of non-performing assets and charge-offs

changes in estimates of future reserve requirements based upon the periodic review thereof under

relevant regulatory and accounting requirements

changes in the financial performance and/or condition of the Banks borrowers

effect of additional provision for loan losses

long-term negative trends in the Companys market capitalization

continued listing of the Companys common stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market

effects of any changes in trade and monetary and fiscal policies and laws including the interest

rate policies of the Federal Reserve Board

inflation interest rates cost of funds securities market and monetary fluctuations

political instability

acts of war or terrorism natural disasters such as earthquakes hurricanes or fires or the effects of

pandemic flu

the timely development and acceptance of new products and services and perceived overall value

of these products and services by users

changes in consumer spending borrowings and.savings habits

technological changes

changes in the Companys or the Banks organization management compensation and benefit

plans

competitive pressures from other financial institutions

continued consolidation in the financial services industry

inability to maintain or increase market share and control expenses

impact of reputational risk on such matters as business generation and retention funding and

liquidity

rating agency downgrades

continued volatility in the credit and equity markets and its effect on the general economy

our ability to achieve loan and deposit growth

the completion of our future acquisitions or business combinations and our ability to integrate the

acquired business into our business model

projected population and income growth in our targeted market areas

volatility and direction of market interest rates and weakening of the economy which could

materially impact credit quality and the ability to generate loans

effect of changes in laws and regulations including laws concerning banking taxes and securities

with which the Company and its subsidiaries must comply



effect of changes in accounting policies and practices as may be adopted by the regulatory

agencies as well as the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board the Financial Accounting

Standards Board and other accounting standard setters

other factors described from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC and in the risk factors in Item 1A Risk Factors in this report and

the Company and Banks success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing items

All forward-looking statements attributable to the Company and the Bank are expressly qualified in their

entirety by these cautionary statements The Company disclaims any intent or obligation to update these forward

looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise You should however review

the risk factors we describe in reports we will file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC after the date of this report



PART

As used in this document the terms we us our TIB Financial and Company mean TIB

Financial Corp and its subsidiaries and/or management unless the context indicates another meaning the term

Bank means Capital Bank NA and its subsidiaries unless the context indicates another meaning Throughout

this document the banking operations are generally discussed from the perspective of the management of the

Company including management of affiliated banks that ultimately merged with and into Capital Bank NA

ITEM BUSINESS

The Company

TIB Financial Corp is bank holding company incorporated in 1996 and headquartered in Naples Florida

Prior to April 29 2011 TIB Financial conducted its business primarily through its wholly-owned subsidiaries TIB

Bank which we refer to as TIB Bank and together with its successor entities following the Bank Merger as

defined below the Bank and Naples Capital Advisors Inc which we refer to as Naples Capital Advisors

Effective April 29 2011 TIB Bank merged with and into NAFH National Bank national banking

association and wholly owned subsidiary of Capital Bank Financial Corp which we refer to as CBF with NAFH
National Bank as the surviving entity in an all-stock transaction Effective June 30 2011 Old Capital Bank then

wholly owned subsidiary of an affiliate of CBF merged with and into NAFH National Bank with NAFH National

Bank as the surviving entity In connection with the merger of Old Capital Bank with and into NAFH National

Bank NAFH National Bank changed its name to Capital Bank N.A CBF is the owner of approximately 94.5% of

the common stock of TIB Financial In addition five of the seven directors of TIB Financial and TIB Financials

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer and Chief Risk Officer are affiliated with CBF

TIB Financials assets consist primarily of approximately 21% of the capital stock of Capital Bank

formerly known as NAFH National Bank Accordingly CBF and TIB Financial own different percentage interests

in substantially the same business In addition TIB Financial conducts its private banking trust and investment

management business through Naples Capital Advisors The business Naples Capital Advisors is described herein

under the heading Ancillary Fee-Based Businesses

Prior to the mergers of TIB Bank and Old Capital Bank with NAFH National Bank TIB Financial had

total of 27 full service banking offices in Florida located in Monroe Miami-Dade Collier Lee and Sarasota

counties

CUF Investment

On September 30 2010 the Transaction Date the Company completed the issuance and sale to CBF of

7000000 shares of Common Stock 70000 shares of Series Preferred Stock and warrant the Warrant to

purchase up to 11666667 shares of Common Stock of the Company the Warrant Shares for aggregate

consideration of $175000000 the Investment The consideration was comprised of approximately $162840000

in cash and approximately $12160000 in the form of contribution to the Company of all 37000 outstanding

shares of Series Preferred Stock previously issued to the United States Department of the Treasury under the

TARP Capital Purchase Program and the related warrant to purchase shares of the Companys Common Stock

which CBF purchased directly from the Treasury The Series Preferred Stock and the related warrant were retired

on September 30 2010 and are no longer outstanding The 70000 shares of Series Preferred Stock received by

CBF converted into an aggregate of 4666667 shares of Common Stock following shareholder approval of an

amendment to the Companys Restated Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of

Common Stock to 50000000 The Warrant is exercisable in whole or in part and from time to time from

September 30 2010 to March 30 2012 at an exercise price of$15.00 per
Warrant Share

As result of the Investment and following the completion on January 18 2011 of rights offering

pursuant to which shareholders of the Company as of July 12 2010 purchased 533029 shares of Common Stock

CBF owns approximately 94.5% of the issued and outstanding voting power of the Company Upon the completion

of the Investment Eugene Taylor Chairman Christopher Marshall Peter Foss William Hodges and

Bruce Singletary were named to board of directors of the Company the Company Board Mr Howard Gutman

and Mr Brad Boaz existing members of the Company Board remained as such following the closing of the

Investment All other members of the Company Board resigned effective September 30 2010



Because of the controlling proportion of voting securities in the Company acquired by CBF the Investment

is considered an acquisition for accounting purposes and requires the application and push down of the acquisition

method of accounting The accounting guidance for acquisition accounting requires that the assets acquired and

liabilities assumed be recorded at their respective fair values as of the acquisition date Any purchase price in excess

of the net assets acquired is recordedas goodwill

The most significant fair value adjustments resulting from the application of the acquisition method of

accounting were made to loans Accounting guidance requires that all loans held by the Company on the

Transaction Date be recorded at their fair value The fair value of these acquired loans takes into account both the

differences in loan interest rates and market rates and any deterioration in their credit quality Because concerns

about the probability of receiving the full amount of the contractual payments from the borrowers was considered in

estimating the fair value of the loans stating the loans at their fair value results in no allowance for loan loss being

provided for these loans as of the Transaction Date As of September 30 2010 certain loans had evidence of credit

deterioration since origination and it was probable that not all contractually required principal and interest payments

would be collected Such loans identified at the time of the acquisition were accounted for using the measurement

provision for purchased credit-impaired PCI loans according to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification

ASC 310-30 The special accounting for PCI loans not only requires that they are recorded at fair value at the

date of acquisition and that any related allowance for loan and lease losses is not permitted to be carried forward

past the Transaction Date but it also governs how interest income will be recognized on these loans and how any
further deterioration in credit quality after the Transaction Date will be recognized and reported

As result of the adjustments required by the acquisition method of accounting the Companys balance

sheet and results of operations from periods prior to the Transaction Date are labeled as Predecessor Company
amounts and are not comparable to balances and results of operations from periods subsequent to the Transaction

Date which are labeled as Successor Company The lack of comparability arises from the assets and liabilities

having new accounting bases as result of recording them at their fair values as of the Transaction Date rather than

at their historical cost basis As result of the change in accounting bases items of income and expense such as the

rate of interest income and expense as well as depreciation and rental expense will change In general these

changes in income and
expense relate to the amortization of premiums or accretion of discounts to arrive at

contractual amounts due To call attention to this lack of comparability the Company has placed black line

between the Successor Company and Predecessor Company colunms in the Consolidated Financial Statements and

in the tables in the notes to the statements and in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations

TIB Bank Merger with Capital Bank NA

On April 29 2011 the Merger Date the Companys primary operating subsidiary TIB Bank was

merged with and into NAFH National Bank the Bank Merger an affiliate institution which had been wholly-

owned by the Companys controlling shareholder CBF preceding the Bank Merger NAFH National Bank was

formed on July 16 2010 in connection with the purchase and assumption of the operations of three banks Metro

Bank of Dade County Miami Florida Turnberry Bank Aventura Florida and First National Bank of the South

Spartanburg South- Carolina from the Federal Deposit -Insurance Corporation thó FDIC Pursuant to the

merger agreement dated April 27 2011 between NAPH National Bank and TIB Bank the Company exchanged its

100% ownership interest in TIB Bank for an approximately 53% ownership interest -in the surviving combined

entity NAFH National Bank Following the Bank Merger CBF was deemed to control NAFH National Bank due to

CBFs 94% ownership interest in the Company andCBFs direct ownership of the remaining 47% interest in NAFH
National Bank subsequent to the Bank Merger In addition five of the Companys seven directors and the

Companys Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer and Chief Risk Officer are affiliated with CBF

Accordingly subsequent to April 29 2011 the Company began to account for its ownership in NAFH National

Bank under the equity method of accounting

On June 30 2011 Capital Bank wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Bank Corporation an affiliated

bank holding company in which CBF has an 83% ownership interest was merged with and into NAFH National

Bank with NAFH National Bank as the surviving entity In connection with the transaction NAFH National Bank

also changed its name to Capital Bank National Association On- September 2011 GreenBank wholly-owned

subsidiary -of Green Bankshares Inc an affiliated bank holding company in which CBF -has 90% ownership

interest was merged with and into Capital Bank- NA Subsequently and as result of those transactions the

Companys ownership interest in Capital Bank NA was reduced to approximately 21% At December 31 2011 the

Companys net investment of $200.8 million in Capital Bank NA was recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet



as Equity method investment in Capital Bank NA which represented the Companys pro rata ownership of

Capital Bank NAs total shareholders equity In periods subsequent to the Merger Date the Company has and will

adjust this equity investment balance based on its equity in Capital Bank NAs net income and comprehensive

income In connection with the Bank Merger assets and liabilities of the Bank were de-consolidated from the

Companys balance sheet resulting in significant decrease in the total assets and total liabilities of the Company in

the second quarter of 2011 Accordingly as of December 31 2011 no investments loans or deposits are reported on

the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet and subsequent to the Merger Date interest income and interest
expense

are the result of cash deposited in Capital Bank NA and the outstanding trust preferred securities issued by the

Company respectively

Capital Bank NA was formed in connection with the July 16 2010 purchase and assumption of assets and

deposits and other liabilities of three banks collectively the FDIC Banks Metro Bank of Dade County Miami
Florida Turnbeny Bank Aventura Florida and First National Bank of the South Spartanburg South Carolina

collectively the Failed Banks from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC and is party to

loss sharing agreements with the FDIC covering the large majority of the loans it acquired from the FDIC As of

December 31 2011 following the mergers of TIB Bank Capital Bank and GreenBank as discussed above Capital

Bank NA had total assets of $6.5 billion total deposits of $5.1 billion and shareholders equity of $939.8 million

As of December 31 2011 following the mergers of TIB Bank Capital Bank and GreenBank as discussed above

Capital Bank NA operated 143 branches in Florida North Carolina South Carolina Tennessee and Virginia

Potential Merger of TIB Financial Corp and CBF

On September 2011 CBFs Board of Directors approved and adopted plan of merger The plan of

merger provides for the merger of TIB Financial Corp with and into CBF with CBF continuing as the surviving

entity the merger In the merger each share of TIB Financial Corp.s common stock issued and outstanding

immediately prior to the completion of the merger except for shares for which appraisal rights are properly

exercised and certain shares held by CBF or TIB Financial Corp will be converted into the right to receive 0.7205

of share of CBF Class common stock No fractional shares of Class common stock will be issued in

connection with the merger and holders of TIB Financial Corp common stock will be entitled to receive cash in

lieu thereof

Since CBF currently owns more than 90% of common stock of TIB Financial Corp under Delaware and

Florida law no vote of our stockholders is required to complete the merger CBF will determine when and if the

merger will ultimately take place

Consent Order and Written Agreement

On July 2010 TIB Bank entered into Consent Order which is formal agreement with the bank

regulatory agencies under which among other things the Bank had agreed to maintain Tier capital ratio of at

least 8% of total assets and total risk based capital ratio of at least 12% within 90 days The Consent Order

terminated on April 29 2011 when TIB Bank was merged with and into NAFH National Bank On September 22

2010 the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta and the Company entered into written agreement where the Company

agreed among other things that it will not make any payments on the outstanding trust preferred securities or

declare or pay any dividends without the prior written approval of the FRB The Company submitted written

request to the FRB to authorize the payment of deferred and current interest payments through the next payment

date and future interest payments when due as scheduled on the three trust preferred securities On September 28

2011 pursuant to receipt of the FRBs approval concurrent interest payments were made for each of the trust

preferred securities and the Company began the process of exiting from the deferral period

Capital Banks Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to build mid-sized regional bank by operating integrating and growing our

existing operations as well as to acquire other banks including failed underperforming and undercapitalized banks

and other complementary assets We believe recent and continuing dislocations in the southeastern U.S banking

industry have created an opportunity for.us to create mid-sized regional bank that will be able to realize greater

economies of scale compared to smaller community banks while still providing more personalized local service

than larger-sized banks



Operating Strategy

Our operating strategy emphasizes relationship banking focused on commercial and consumer lending and

deposit gathering We have organized operations under line of business operating model under which we have

appointed experienced bankers to oversee loan and deposit production in each of our markets while centralizing

credit finance technology and operations functions Our management team possesses sigmficant executive-level

leadership experience at Fortune 500 financial services companies and we believe this experience is an important

advantage in executing this regional more focused bank business model

Organic Loan and Deposit Growth

The primary components Of our operating strategy are to originate high-quality loans and low-cost

customer deposits Our executive management team has developed hands-on operating culture focused on

performance and accountability with frequent and detailed oversight by executive management of key performance

indicators We have implemented sales management system for our branches that is focused on growing loans and

core deposits in each of our markets We believe that this system holds loan officers and branch managers

accountable for achieving loan production goals which are subject to the conservative credit standards and

disciplined underwriting practices that we have implemented as well as compliance profitability and other standards

that we monitor We also believe that accountability is crucial to our results Our executive management monitors

production credit quality and profitability measures on quarterly monthly weekly and in some cases daily basis

and provides ongoing feedback to our business unit leaders During 2011 the Bank originated $728.4 million of new

commercial and consumer loans Duringthis period the Bank also grew its core deposits by $265.4 million or
29 3% annualized growth excluding the initial increase in deposits resulting from CBF acquisitions of Capital

Bank Corp and Green Bankshares Inc

The current market conditions have forced many banks to focus internally which we believe creates an

opportunity for organic growth by strongly capitalized banks such as ourselves We seek to grow our loan portfolio

by offering personalized customer seryice local market knowledge and long-term perspective We have

selectively hired experienced loan officers with local market knowledge and existing client relationships

Additionally our executive management team takes an active role in soliciting developing and maintaining client

relationships

Efficiency and Cost Savings

Another key element of our strategy is to operate efficiently by carefully managing our cost structure and

taking advantage of economies of scale afforded by our acquisitions to control operating costs We have been able to

reduce headcount by consolidating duplicative operations of the acquired banks and streamlining management In

addition we expect to recognize additional cost savings now that we have fully integrated Green Bankshares Inc
with the rest of CBFs business We plan to further improve efficiency by boosting the productivity of our sales

force through our focus on accountability and employee incentives and through selective hiring of experienced loan

officers with existing books of business

To evaluate and control operating costs we monitor certain performance metrics including our efficiency

ratio which equals total non-interest expenses divided by net revenues net interest income plus non-interest

income Our efficiency ratio has been and is expected to continue to be significantly impacted by certain costs that

follow acquisitions of financial institutions Capital Bank efficiency ratio for 2011 was 69 9% which was

impacted by $7.6 million of conversion expenses due to integration of the acquired banks Excluding the impact of

these items Capital Banks adjusted efficiency ratio for 2011 was 66.6% The adjusted efficiency ratio is non

GAAP measure which we believe provides investors with information useful in understanding our business and our

operating efficiency Comparison of our adjusted efficiency ratio with those of other companies may not be possible

because other companies may calculate the adjusted efficiency ratio differently The adjusted efficiency ratio which

equals adjusted non-interest expense non-interest expense less conversion expense divided by net revenues net

interest income plus non-interest income for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 is as follows
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Efficiency Ratio for the Twelve

Capital Bank NA Months Ended December 31 2011

Dollars in thousands Non-adjusted Adjusted

Non-interest expense $163710 $163710

Less Conversion expense ___________________ ___________

Non-interest expense adjusted
_____________________

Net interest income

-interest income

Net Revenue

Efficiency Ratio 69.9% 66.6%

Capital Banks Acquisition and Integration Strategy

Acquisition and Integration Strategy

We seek acquisition opportunities consistent with our business strategy that we believe will produce

attractive returns for our stockholders We plan to pursue acquisitions that position us in southeastern U.S markets

with attractive demographics and business growth trends expand our branch network in existing markets increase

our earnings power or enhance our suite of products Our future acquisitions may include distressed assets sold by

the FDIC or another seller where our operations underwriting and servicing capabilities or management experience

give us an advantage in evaluating and resolving the assets

Our acquisition process begins with detailed research of target institutions and the markets they serve We
then draw on our management teams extensive experience and network of industry contacts in the southeastern

region of the United States Our research and analytics team led by our Chief of Investment Analytics and Research

maintains lists of priority targets for each of our markets The team analyzes financial accounting tax regulatory

demographic transaction structures and competitive considerations for each target and prepares acquisition

projections for review by our executive management team and Board of Directors

As part of our diligence process in connection with potential acquisitions we undertake detailed

portfolio- and loan-level analysis conducted by team of experienced credit analysts led by our Chief Risk Officer

In addition our executive management team engages the target management teams in active dialogue and personally

conducts extensive on-site diligence at target branches

Our executive management team has demonstrated success not only in acquiring financial institutions and

combining them onto common platform but also in managing the integration of those financial institutions Our

management team develops integration plans prior to the closing of given transaction that allows us to

reorganize the acquired institutions management team under our line of business model immediately after closing

implement our credit risk and interest rate risk management liquidity and compliance and governance policies

and procedures and integrate our targets technology and processing systems rapidly Using our procedures we
have already integrated credit and operational policies across each of our acquisitions We reorganized the

management Of the Failed Banks within three months of closing and we merged their core processing systems with

TIB Financials platform within six months We also fully integrated legacy Capital Bank in July 2011 and

GreenBank in February 2012

Sound Risk Management

Sound risk management is an important element of our commercial/retail bank business model and is

overseen by our Chief Risk Officer Bruce Singletary who has over 19 years of experience managing credit risk

Our credit risk policy which has been implemented across our organization establishes prudent underwriting

guidelines limits portfolio concentrations by geography and loan type and incorporates an independent loan review

function Mr Singletary has created special assets division with 35 employees to work out or dispose of legacy

problem assets using detailed process taking into account borrowers repayment capacity available guarantees



collateral value interest accrual and other factors We believe our risk management policies establish conservative

regulatory capital ratios robust liquidity including contingency planning limitations on wholesale funding

including brokered CDs holding company debt and advances from the FHLB and restrictions on interest rate risk

Our Competitive Strengths

Experienced and Respected Management Team with Successful Track Record Members of our

executive management team and Board of Directors have served in executive leadership roles at Fortune

500 financial services companies including Bank of America Fifth Third Bancorp and Morgan Stanley

The executive management team has extensive experience overseeing commercial and consumer banking

mergers and acquisitions systems integrations technology operations credit and regulatory compliance

Many members of our executive management team are from the southeastern region of the United States

and have an extensive network of contacts with banking executives existing and potential customers and

business and civic leaders throughout the region We believe our executive management teams reputation

and track record give us an advantage in negotiating acquisitions and hiring and retaining experienced

bankers

Growth-Oriented Business Model Our executive management team seeks to foster strong sales culture

with focus on developing key client relationships including direct participation in sales calls and through

regular reporting and accountability while emphasizing risk management Our executive management and

line of business executives monitor performance on quarterly monthly weekly and in some cases daily

basis and our compensation plans reward core deposit and responsible commercial loan growth subject to

credit quality compliance and profitability standards We have an integrated scalable core processing

platform and centralized credit finance and technology operations that we believe will support future

growth Our business model contributed to the Banks $728.4 million of commercial and consumer loan

originations and $265.4 million in total deposit growth for 2011 excluding the initial increase in deposits

resulting from CBFs acquisitions of Capital Bank Corporation and Green Bankshares Inc

Highly Skilled and Disciplined Acquirer CBF has executed six acquisitions in just 14 months CBF

integrated its first four investments into common core processing platform within six months the fifth in

July 2011 and the sixth in February 2012 We believe our track record of completing and integrating

transactions quickly has helped us negotiate transactions on more economically favorable terms CBF has

conducted due diligence on more than 82 financial institutions many of which its diligence process

indicated would not meet its strategic objectives

Reduced-Risk Legacy Portfolio Our acquired loan portfolios have been marked-to-market with the

application of the acquisition method of accounting meaning that the carrying value of these assets at the

time of their acquisitions reflected our estimate of lifetime credit losses In addition as of December 31
2011 approximately 13% of our loan portfolio was covered by the loss sharing agreements we entered into

with the FDIC resulting in limited credit risk exposure for these assets

Excess Capital and Liquidity As result of its private placements and the disciplined deployment of

capital CBF has ample capital with which to make acquisitions As of December 31 2011 CBF had

13.2% tangible common equity ratio which is non-GAAP measure used by certain regulators financial

analysts and others to measure core capital strength and 12.5% Tier leverage ratio which provides

CBF with $161.7 million in excess capital relative to the 10% Tier leverage standard required under

Capital Banks operating agreement with the 0CC As of December 31 2011 Capital Bank had 10.4%

Tier leverage ratio 15.7% Tier risk-based ratio and 16.7% total risk-based capital ratio As of

December 31 2011 Capital Bank had cash and securities equal to 21.6% of total assets representing

$427.3 million of liquidity in excess of our target of 15% which provides ample liquidity to support our

existing banking franchises Further our investment portfolio consists primarily of U.S agency-guaranteed

mortgage-backed securities which have limited credit or liquidity risk See Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsLiquidity and Capital Resources for

discussion of the use of the tangible common equity ratio in our business and the reconciliation of tangible

common equity ratio

The tangible common equity ratio is calculated as tangible common equity divided by tangible assets Tangible

common equity is calculated as total shareholders equity less preferred stock and less goodwill and other intangible

assets net and tangible assets are total assets less goodwill and other intangible assets net



Scalable Back-Office Systems All of CBFs acquired institutions operate on single information

processing system Our systems are designed to accommodate all of our projected future growth and allow

us to offer our customers virtually all of the services currently offeredby the nations largest financial

institutions including state-of-the-art online banking Enhancements made to our systems are included to

improve our commercial and consumer loan origination electronic banking and direct response marketing

processes as well as enhance cash management streamlined reporting reconciliation support and sales

support

Our Market Area

We view our market area as the southeastern region of the United States Our six acquisitions have

established footprint defined by the Miami-Raleigh-Nashville triangle which includes the Carolinas Southwest

Florida Naples and Southeast Florida Miami-Dade and the Keys These markets include combination of large

and fast-growing metropolitan areas that we believe will offer us opportunities for organic loan and deposit growth

Approximately 47% of our current branches are located in our target MSAs

Products and Services

Banking Services by Business Line

Capital Bank has integrated each of CBFs six acquisitions under single line of business operating model

Under this model we have appointed experienced bankers to oversee loan and deposit growth in each of our

markets while we have centralized other functions including credit finance operations marketing human

resources and information technology

The Commercial Bank

Our commercial bank business consists of teams of commercial loan officers operating under the leadership

of commercial banking executives in Florida the Carolinas and Tennessee markets The commercial banking

executives are responsible for production goals for loans deposits and fees They work with senior credit officers to

ensure that loan production is consistent with our loan policies and with financial officers to ensure that loan pricing

is consistent with our profitability goals We focus our commercial bank business on loan originations for

established small and middle-market businesses with whom we develop personal relationships that we believe give

us competitive advantage and differentiates us from larger banking institutions In addition our commercial

lending teams coordinate with personnel in our consumer bank business to provide personal loans and other services

to the owners and managers and employees of the banks commercial clients At December 31 2011 commercial

loans totaled $2.9 billion or 67.0% of our total loan portfolio Commercial underwriting is driven by cash flow

analysis supported by collateral analysis and review Our commercial lending teams offer wide range of

commercial loan products including

owner occupied commercial real estate construction and term loans

working capital loans and lines of credit

demand term and time loans and

equipment inventory and accounts receivable financing

During 2011 Capital Bank originated $561.8 million of new commercial loans Our commercial lending

teams also seek to gather low-cost deposits from commercial customers in connection with extending credit In

addition to business demand savings and money market accounts we also provide specialized cash management

services and deposit products

The Consumer Bank

Our consumer bank business consists of Capital Banks retail banking branches and associated businesses

Similar to our commercial bank business we have organized the consumer bank by geographical market with

divisions consisting of our Florida Carolina and Tennessee branches Each division reports to consumer banking

executive responsible for achieving core deposit and consumer loan growth goals Pricing of our deposit products is
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reviewed and approved by our asset-liability committee and the standards for consumer loan credit quality are

documented in our loan poiicy and reviewed by our credit executives

We seek to differentiate our consumer bank business from competitors through the personalized service

offered by our branch managers customer service representatives tellers and other staff We offer various services

to meet the needs of our customers including checking savings and money market accounts certificates of deposit

and debit and credit cards Our products are designed to foster relationships by rewarding our best customers for

desirable activities such as debit card transactions statements and direct deposit In addition to traditional products

and services we offer competitive technology in Internet banking services which we plan to further upgrade in

order to keep pace with technological improvements Consumer loan products we offer include

home equity lines of credit

residential first lien mortgages

second lien mortgages

new and used auto ioans

new and used boat loans

overdraft protection and

unsecured personal credit lines

Branch managers and their staff are charged with growing core deposits with special focus on new

demand deposit accounts and expected to conduct outbound telephone campaigns generate qualified referrals

collaborate with business partners in the commercial lending teams and evaluate and make informed decisions with

respect to existing and prospective customers In 2011 the Bank generated organic core deposit growth of $265.4

million or 29 3% annualized growth excluding the initial increase in deposits resulting from the acquisitions of

Capital Bank Corporation and Green Bankshares Inc As of December 31 2011 consumer loans totaled $1.4

billion During 2011 the Bank originated $166.6 million of new consumer loans

Ancillary Fee-Based Businesses

Mortgage Banking

Through our newly established mortgage banking business we aim to originate high-quality loans for

customers who are willing to establish deposit relationship with us The mortgage loans in our portfolio that do not

meet this criteria are sold into the secondary market to buyers such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and provide an

additional source of fee income Our mortgage banking capabilities include conventional and nonconforming

mortgage underwriting and construction and permanent financing

Private Banking Trust and Investment Management

We offer private banking and wealth management services to affluent clients business owners and retirees

building new relationships and expanding existing relationships to grow deposits loans and fiduciary and

investment management fee income Through private banking we offer deposit products commercial and consumer

loans including mortgage financing and investment accounts providing access to wide range of mutual funds

annuities and other financial products as well as access to our affiliate Naples Capital Advisors which is

registered investment advisor with approximately $102 million in assets under management as of December 31
2011

Lending Activities

We originate variety of loans including loans secured by real estate loans for construction loans for

commercial purposes loans to individuals for personal and household purposes loans to municipalities and loans for

new and used cars significant portion of our loan portfolio is related to real estate As of December 31 2011
loans related to real estate totaled $3.7 billion or 86% of our total loan portfolio The economic trends in the
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regions we serve are influenced by the industries within those regions Consistent with our emphasis on being
community-oriented financial institution most of our lending activity is with customers located in and around
counties in which we have banking offices As of December 31 2011 our owner occupied commercial real estate

loans non-owner occupied commercial real estate loans residential mortgage loans and commercial and industrial

loans represented 21% 21% 19% and 11% respectively of our $4.3 billion loan portfolio

We use centralized risk management process to ensure uniform credit underwriting that adheres to our
loan policies as approved annually by CBFs Board of Directors Lending policies are reviewed on regular basis to

confirm that we are prudent in setting underwriting criteria Credit risk is managed through number of methods
including loan approval process that establishes consistent procedures for the processing and approval of loan

requests risk grading of all commercial loans and certain consumer loans and coding of all loans by purpose class

and collateral type We seek to focus on underwriting loans that enhance balanced diversified portfolio

Management analyzes our commercial real estate concentrations by market and region on regular basis in an

attempt to prevent overexposure to any one type of commercial real estate loan and incorporates third-party real

estate and market analysis to monitor market conditions As of December 31 2011 the carrying value of our
commercial real estate loans in North Carolina South Carolina Florida Tennessee and Virginia totaled $699.2

million $303.6 million $794.4 million $596.0 million and $15.8 million respectively At December 31 2011
commercial real estate loans in all regions totaled $2.4 billion 21% of which was owner occupied commercial real

estate We have recently tightened underwriting and pricing standards for indirect auto and residential mortgage
lending and de-emphasized originations of commercial real estate mortgages

We believe that early detection of potential credit problems through regular contact with our clients

coupled with consistent reviews of the borrowers financial condition are important factors in overall credit risk

management Our approach to proactively manage credit quality is to aggressively work with customers for whom
problem loan has been identified and assist in resolving issues before default occurs

key component of our growth strategy is to grow our loan portfolio by originating high-quality
commercialand consumer loans other than non-owner occupied real estate loans that comply with our conservative
credit policies and that produce revenues consistent with our financial objectives From December 31 2010 to

December 31 2011 the Banks loan portfolio grew organically by $107.9 million or 6.2% annualized growth
excluding the initial increase in deposits resulting from the acquisitions of Capital Bank Corporation and Green

Bankshares Inc with $728.4 million in new originations partially offset by pay-downs dispositions and charge
offs Additionally we are working to reduce excessive concentrations in commercial real estate which characterized

our acquisitions legacy portfolios in order to achieve more diversified portfolio It is our long-term goal to reduce
the commercial real estate concentration to approximately 20% of our total loan portfolio

In addition we operate an indirect auto lending business which originates loans for new and used cars

through relationships with dealers in Southwest Florida Southeast Florida the Florida Keys and Tennessee Loans
are approved subject to review of FICO credit scores vehicle age and loan-to-value We are in the process of

implementing an expert scoring model which will include additional proprietary underwriting factors We set pricing
for loans based on credit score vehicle age and loan term As of December 31 2011 we had $87.2 million of

indirect auto loans
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Deposits

Deposits are the primary source of funds for lending and investing activities and their cost is the largest

category of interest expense Deposits are attracted principally from clients within our branch network through the

offering of wide selection of deposit instruments to individuals and businesses including non-interest-bearing

checking accounts interest-bearing checking accounts savings accounts money market deposit accounts

certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts We are focused on reducing our reliance on high-cost

certificates of deposit as source of funds with low-cost deposit accounts Deposit account terms vary with respect

to the minimum balance required the time period the funds must remain on deposit and servicecharge schedules

Interest rates paid on specific deposit types are determined based on the interest rates offered by competitors

the anticipated amount and timing of funding needs the availability and cost of alternative sources of funding

and the anticipated future economic conditions and interest rates Client deposits are attractive sources of funding

because of their stability and relatively low cost Deposits are regarded as an important part of the overall client

relationship and provide opportunities to cross-sell other services In addition we gather portion of our deposit

base through brokered deposits At December31 2011 total deposits were $5.1 billion of which $5.0 billion or

97% were non-brokered deposits and $143.1 million or 3% were brokered deposits At December 31 2011 our

core deposits total deposits less time deposits consisted of $683.3 million of non-interest checking accounts $1.1

billion of negotiable order of withdrawal accounts $296.4 million of savings accounts and $868.4 million of money

market deposits For the foreseeable future we remain focused on retaining and growing strong deposit base and

transitioning certain of our customers to low-cost banking services as high-cost funding sources such as high-

interest certificates of deposit mature

Investing Activities

Investment securities represent significant portion of Capital Bank NAs assets The Bank invests in

securities as allowable under bank regulations These securities include obligations of the U.S Treasury U.S

government agencies U.S government-sponsored entities including mortgage-backed securities bank eligible

obligations of any state or political subdivision privately-issued mortgage-backed securities bank eligible corporate

obligations mutual funds and limited types of equity securities Our investment activities are governed internally by

awritten Board-approved policy The investment policy is carried out by the Banks Asset-Liability Committee

ALCO which meets regularly to review the economic environmentand establish investment strategies

Investment strategies are reviewed by ALCO based on the interest rate environment balance sheet mix actual

and anticipated loan demand funding opportunities and the overall interest rate sensitivity of the Bank In general

the investment portfolio is managed in manner appropriate to the attainment of the following goals to provide

sufficient margin of liquid assets to meet unanticipated deposit and loan fluctuations and overall funds management

objectives ii to provide eligible securities to secure public funds and other borrowings and iiito earn the

maximum return on funds invested that is commensurate with meeting the requirements of and ii

Marketing

Our marketing activities support all of our products and services described above Historically most of our

marketing efforts have supported our real estate mortgage commercial and retail banking businesses Our marketing

strategy aims to

capitalize on our personal relationship approach which we believe differentiates us from our

larger competitors in both the commercial and residential mortgage lending businesses

meet our growth objectives based on current economic and market conditions

attract core deposits held in checking savings money market and certificate of deposit accounts

provide customers with access to our local executives

appeal to customers in our region who value quality banking products and personal service

pursue commercial and industrial lending opportunities with small to midsized businesses that are

underserved by our larger competitors
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cross-sell our products and services to our existing customers to leverage our relationships grow
fee income and enhance profitability

utilize existing industry relationships cultivated by our senior management team and

adhere to safe and sound credit standards

We use variety of targeted marketing media including the Internet print direct mail and financial

newsletters Our online marketing activities include paid advertising as well as cross-sale marketing through our

website and Internet banking services We believe our marketing strategy will enable us to take advantage of lower

average customer acquisition costs build valuable brand awareness and lower our funding costs

Information Technology Systems

We have made and continue to make investments in our information technology systems for our banking

and lending operations and cash management activities We seek to integrate our acquisitions quickly and

successfully and believe this is necessary investment in order to enhance our capabilities to offer new products and

overall customer experience and to provide scale for future growth and acquisitions Our enhancements are tailored

to improve our commercial and consumer loan origination electronic banking and direct response marketing

processes as well as enhance cash management streamlined reporting reconciliation support and sales support We
work closely with certain third-party service providers to which we outsource certain of our systems and

infrastructure We use the Jack Henry SilverLake System as our banking platform and believe that the scalability of

our infrastructure will support our growth strategy and that this platform will support our growth needs

Competition

The financial services industry in general and our primary markets of South Florida Tennessee and the

Carolinas are highly competitive We compete actively with national regional and local financial services providers

including banks thrifts credit unions mortgage bankers and finance companies money market mutual funds and

other financial institutions some of which are not subject to the same degree of regulation and restrictions imposed

upon us Our largest competitors include Bank of America Wells Fargo BBT First Citizens Royal Bank of

Canada SunTrust Regions FNB United Corp Toronto-Dominion Synovus First Financial SCBT JPMorgan

Chase Citigroup EverBank Fifth Third.Bancorp First Horizon Pinnacle Financial First South and U.S Bancorp

Competition among providers of financial products and services continues to increase with consumers

having the opportunity to select from growing variety of traditional and nontraditional alternatives The primary

factors driving commercial and consumer competition for loans and deposits are interest rates the fees charged

customer service levels and the range
of products and services offered In addition other competitive factors include

the location and hours of our branches and customer service

Employees

At December 31 2011 Capital Bank had over 1375 full-timº employees and 165 part-time employees

None of our employees are parties to collective bargaining agreement We consider our relationship with our

employees to be adequate

Facilities and Real Estate

Capital Bank currently leases approximately 351000 square feet of office and operations space in North

Carolina Florida and South Carolina We operate 35 branches in Florida 32 in North Carolina 12 in South

Carolina 63 in Tennessee and one in Virginia Of these branches 42 were leased and the rest were owned In

addition the Company owns approximately 130000 and leases approximately 138000 square feet of non-branch

office space Management believes the terms of the various leases are consistent with market standards and were

arrived at through arms-length bargaining

Related Party Transaction

Certain of the directors and executive officers of Capital Bank NAmembers of their immediate families and

entities with which they are involved are customers of and borrowers from the Bank As of December 31 2011 total

loans outstanding to directors and executive officers of the Bank and their associates as group equaled
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approximately $13.1 million All outstanding loans and conirnitments included in such transactions were made in the

ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral as those

prevailing at the time in comparable transactions with persons
not related to the Bank and did not involve more than

the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features

Due to the Bank Merger the Company reported -no loans or deposits on its Consolidated Balance Sheet as of

December 31 2011

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The U.S banking industry is highly regulated under federal and state law These regulations affect the

operations of the Company and its subsidiaries Investors should understand that the primary objectives of the U.S

bank regulatory regime are the protection of depositors and consumers and maintaining the stability of the U.S

financial system and not the protection of stockholders

As bank holding company we are subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve Our

national bank subsidiary which will be our sole bank subsidiary following the reorganization is subject to

supervision and regulation by the 0CC the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau which we refer to as the

CFPB and the FDIC In addition we expect that the additional businesses that we may invest in or acquire will be

regulated by various state and/or federal regulators including the 0CC the Federal Reserve the CFPB and the

FDIC

The description below summarizes certain elements of the applicable bank regulatory framework This

description is not intended to describe all laws and regulations applicable to us and our subsidiaries Banking

statutes regulations and policies are continually under review by Congress and state legislatures and federal and

state regulatory agencies and changes in them including changes in how they are interpreted or implemented could

have material effects on our business In addition to laws and regulations state and federal bank regulatory agencies

may issue policy statements interpretive letters and similar written guidance applicable to us and our subsidiaries

These issuances also may affect the conduct of our business or impose additional regulatory obligations The

description is qualified in its entirety by reference to the fill text of the statutes regulations policies interpretive

letters and other written guidance that are described-

Bank Holding Company Regulations

Any entity that acquires direct or indirect control of- bank must obtain prior approval of the Federal

Reserve to become bank holding company pursuant-to the BHCA As bank holding company we are subject to

regulation under the BHCA and to examination supervision and enforcement by the Federal Reserve While

subjecting us to supervision and regulation we believe that being bank holding company as opposed to non-

controlling investor broadens the investment opportunities
available to us among public and private financial

institutions failing and distressed financial institutions seized assets and deposits and FDIC auctions Federal

Reserve jurisdiction also extends to any company that -is directly or indirectly controlled by bank holding

company such as subsidiaries and other companies in which the bank holding company makes controlling

investment

Statutes regulations and policies could restrict our ability to diversify into other areas of financial services

acquire depository institutions and make distributions or pay dividends on our equity securities They may also

require us to provide
financial support to any

bank that we control maintain capital balances in excess of those

desired by management and pay higher deposit insurance premiums as result of general deterioration in the

financial condition of -Capital- Bank or other depository institutions we control They may also limit the fees and

prices Capital Bank charges for its-consumer services

Capital Bank N.A as National Bank

Capital Bank is national bank -and is subject to supervision including regular examination by its primary

banking regulator
the 0CC Retail operations of the bank are also subject to supervision and regulation by the

CFPB Capital Banks deposits are insured by the FDIC through the DIF up to applicable
limits in the manner and

extent provided by law. Capital Bank is subject to the Federal Depositlnsurance -Act as amended which we refer to

as the FDI Act and FDIC regulations-relating
to deposit insurance and may also be subject to supervision by the

FDIC under certain circumstances
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0CC Operating Agreement and FDIC Order

Capital Bank is subject to specific requirements pursuant to the 0CC Operating Agreement which it

entered into with the 0CC in connection with our acquisition of the Failed Banks The 0CC Operating Agreement
requires among other things that Capital Bank maintain various financial and capital ratios and provide notice .to
and obtain consent from the 0CC with respect to any additional failed bank acquisitions from the FDIC or the

appointment of any new director or senior executive officer of Capital Bank

Capital Bank and with
respect to certain provisions CBF is also subject to the FDIC Order issued in

connection with the FDICs approval of our applications for deposit insurance for the Failed Banks The FDIC
Order requires among other things that during the first three years following our acquisition of the Failed Banks
Capital Bank must obtain the FDICs approval before implementing certain compensation plans and submit updated
business plans and reports of material deviations from those plans to the FDIC Additionally the FDIC Order
requires that Capital Bank maintain Tier common equity non-GAAP measure to total assets of at least 10%
during such three-year period and after such three-year period to remain well capitalized

failure by CBF or Capital Bank to comply with the requirements of the 0CC Operating Agreement or the

FDIC Order could subject CBF to regulatory sanctions and failure to comply or the objection or imposition of
additional conditions by the 0CC or the FDJC in connection with any materials or information submitted

thereunder could prevent CBF from executing its business strategy and negatively impact its business financial

condition liquidity and results of operations As of December 31 2011 Capital Bank was in compliance with all of
the material terms of the 0CC Operating Agreement and FDIC Order

Regulatory Notice and Approval Requirements for Acquisitions of Control

We must generally receive federal regulatory approval before we can acquire an institution or business

Specifically bank holding company must obtain prior approval of the Federal Reserve in connection with any
acquisition that results in the bank holding company owning or controlling more than 5% of any class of voting
securities of bank or another bank holding company In acting on such applications of approval the Federal
Reserve considers among other factors the effect of the acquisition on competition the financial condition and
future prospects of the applicant and the banks involved the managerial resources of the applicant and the banks
involved the convenience and needs of the community including the record of performance under the CRA the

effect of the acquisition on the stability of the United States banking or financial system and the effectiveness of the

applicant in combating money laundering activities Our ability to make investments in depository institutions will

depend on our ability to obtain approval of the Federal Reserve The Federal Reserve could deny our application
based on the above criteria or other considerations We may also be required to sell branches as condition to

receiving regulatory approval which may not be acceptable to us or if acceptable to us may reduce the benefit of

any acquisition

Federal and state laws impose additional notice approval and ongoing regulatory requirements on any
investor that seeks to acquire direct or indirect control of an FDIC-insured depository institution or bank holding
company These laws include the BHCA and the Change in Bank Control Act Among other things these laws
require regulatory filings by an investor that seeks to acquire direct or indirect control of an FDIC-insured
depository institution

Broad Supervision and Enforcement Powers

The Federal Reserve the 0CC and the FDIC have broad supervisory and enforcement authority with

regard to bank holding companies and banks including the power to conduct examinations and investigations issue

cease and desist orders impose fines and other civil and criminal penalties terminate deposit insurance and appoint
conservator or receiver The CFPB similarly has broad regulatory supervision and enforcement

authority with

regard to consumer protection matters affecting us or our subsidiaries Bank regulators regularly examine the

operations of banks and bank holding companies In addition banks and bank holding companies are subject to

periodic reporting and filing requirements

Bank regulators have various remedies available if they determine that the financial condition capital

resources asset quality earnings prospects management liquidity or other aspects of banking organizations
operations are unsatisfactory The regulators may also take action if they determine that the banking organization or
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its management is violating or has violated any law or regulation The regulators have the power to among other

things enjoin unsafe or unsound practices require affirmative actions to correct any violation or practice issue

administrative orders that can be judicially enforced direct increases in capital direct the sale of subsidiaries or

other assets limit dividends and distributions restrict growth assess civil monetary penalties remove officers and

directors and terminate deposit insurance

Engaging in unsafe or unsound practices or failing to comply with applicable laws regulations and

supervisory agreements could subject the Company its subsidiaries and their respective officers directors and

institution-affiliated parties to the remedies described above and other sanctions In addition the FDIC may
terminate banks depository insurance upon finding that the banks financial condition is unsafe or unsound or

that the bank has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or has violated an applicable rule regulation order or

condition enacted or imposed by the banks regulatory agency

Interstate Banking

Interstate Banking for State and National Banks

Under the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act which we refer to as the Riegle

Neal Act bank holding company may acquire banks in states other than its home state subject to any state

requirement that the bank has been organized and operating for minimum period of time not to exceed five years

and the requirement that the bank holding company not control prior to or following the proposed acquisition more

than 10% of the total amount of deposits of insured depository institutions nationwide or unless the acquisition is

the bank holding companys initial entry into the state more than 30% of such deposits in the state or such lesser or

greater amount setby the state The Riegle-Neal Act also authorizes banks to merge across state lines thereby

creating interstate branches The Dodd-Frank Act permits national or state bank with the approval of its regulator

to open branch in any state if the law of the state in which the branch is located would permit the establishment of

the branch if the bank were bank chartered in that state National banks may provide trust services in any state to

the same extent as trust company chartered by that state

Limits on Transactions with Affiliates

Federal law restricts the amount and the terms of both credit and non-credit transactions between bank

and its nonbank affiliates Transactions with any single affiliate may not exceed 10% of the capital stock and surplus

ofthebank

Bank Holding Companies as Source of Strength

Federal Reserve law requires that bank holding company serve as source of financial and managerial

strength to each bank that it controls and under appropriate circumstances to conmit resources to support each such

controlled bank

Under the prompt corrective action provisions if controlled bank is undercapitalized then the regulators

could require the bank holding company to guarantee the banks capital restoration plan In addition if the Federal

Reserve believes that bank holding companys activities assets or affiliates represent significant risk to the

financial safety soundness or stability of controlled bank then the Federal Reserve could require the bank holding

company to terminate the activities liquidate the assets or divest the affiliates The regulators may require these and

other actions in support of controlled banks even if such actions are not in the best interests of the bank holding

company or its stockholders Because we are bank holding company we and our consolidated assets are viewed

as source of financial and managerial strength for any controlled depository institutions such as Capital Bank

The Dodd-Frank Act also directs federal bank regulators to require that all companies that directly or

indirectly control an insured depository institution serve as sources of financial strength for the institution The term

source of financial strength is defined under the Dodd-Frank Act as the ability of company to provide financial

assistance to its insured depository institution subsidiaries in the event of financial distress The appropriate federal

banking agency for such depository institution may require reports from companies that control the insured

depository institution to assess their abilities to serve as sources of strength and to enforce compliance with the

source-of-strength requirements The appropriate federal banking agency may also require holding company to

provide financial assistance to bank with impaired capital The Dodd-Frank Act requires that federal banking

regulators propose implementing regulations no later than July 21 2.011 Under this requirement in the future we

could be required to provide financial assistance to Capital Bank should it experience financial distress Based on
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our ownership of national bank subsidiary the 0CC could assess us if the capital of Capital Bank were to become

impaired If we failed to pay the assessment within three months the 0CC could order the sale of our stock in

Capital Bank to cover the deficiency

In addition capital loans by us to Capital Bank will be subordinate in right of payment to deposits and

certain other indebtedness of Capital Bank In the event of our bankruptcy any commitment by us to federal bank

regulatory agency to maintain the capital of Capital Bank will be assumed by the bankruptcy trustee and entitled to

priority of payment

Depositor Preference

The FDI Act provides that in the event of the liquidation or other resolution of an insured depository

institution the claims of depositors of the institution including the claims of the FDIC as subrogee of insured

depositors and certain claims for administrative expenses of the FDIC as receiver will have priority over other

general unsecured claims against the institution If our insured depository institution fails insured and uninsured

depositors along with the FDIC will have priority in payment ahead of unsecured nondeposit creditors including

us with respect to any extensions of credit they have made to such insured depository institution

Regulatory Capital Requirements

In General

Bank regulators view capital levels as important indicators of an institutions financial soundness FDIC
insured depository institutions and their holding companies are required to maintain minimum capital relative to the

amount and types of assets they hold The final supervisory judgment on an institutions capital adequacy is based

on the regulators individualized assessment of numerous factors

As bank holding company we are subject to various regulatory capital adequacy requirements

administered by the Federal Reserve In addition the 0CC imposes capital adequacy requirements on our subsidiary

bank The FDIC also may impose these requirements on Capital Bank and other depository institution subsidiaries

that we may acquire or control in the future The FDI Act requires that the federal regulatory agencies adopt

regulations defining five capital tiers for banks well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can

initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken could have

direct material effect on our financial condition

Quantitative measures established by the regulators to ensure capital adequacy require that bank

holding company maintain minimum ratios of capital to risk-weighted assets There are three categories of capital

under the guidelines With the implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act certain changes have been made as to the

type of capital that falls under each of these categories For us as bank holding company Tier capital includes

common shareholders equity qualifying preferred stock and trust preferred securities issued before May 19 2010

less goodwill and certain other deductions including portion of servicing assets and the unrealized net gains and

losses after taxes on securities available for sale Tier capital includes preferred stock and trust preferred

securities not qualifying as Tier capital subordinated debt the allowance for credit losses and net unrealized gains

on marketable equity securities subject to limitations by the guidelines Tier capital is limited to the amountof

Tier capital i.e at least half of the total capital must be in the form of Tier capital Tier capital includes

certain qualifying unsecured subordinated debt See Changes in Laws Regulations or Policies and the Dodd-

Frank Act

Under the guidelines capital is compared with the relative risk related to the balance sheet To derive the

risk included in the balance sheet risk weighting is applied to each balance sheet asset and off-balance sheet item

primarily based on the relative credit risk of the asset or counterparty For example claims guaranteed by the US
government or one of its agencies are risk-weighted at 0% and certain real estate-related loans risk-weighted at 50%
Off-balance sheet items such as loan commitments and derivatives are also applied risk weight after calculating

balance sheet equivalent amounts credit conversion factor is assigned to loan commitments based on the

likelihood of the off-balance sheet item becoming an asset For example certain loan cominitntents are converted at

50% and then risk-weighted at 100% Derivatives are converted to balance sheet equivalents based on notional

values replacement costs and remaining contractual terms For certain recourse obligations direct credit substitutes

residual interests in asset securitization and other securitized transactions that expose institutions primanly to credit
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riskthe capital amounts and classification under the guidelines are subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators

about components risk weightings and other factors

Banks and bank holding companies currently are required to maintain Tier capital and the sum of Tier

and Tier capital equal to at least 6% and 10% respctively of their total risk-weighted assets including certain

off-balance sheet items such as standby letters of credit to be deemed well capitalized The federal bank

regulatory agencies may however sethigher capital requirements for an individual bank or when banks

particular circumstances warrant At this time the bank regulatory agencies are more inclined to impose higher

capital requirements in order to meet well-capitalized standards and future regulatory change could impose higher

capital standards as routine matter

The Federal Reserve may also set higher capital requirements for holding companies whose

circumstances warrant it For example holding companies experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions are

expected to maintain strong capital positions substantially above the minimum supervisory levels without

significant reliance on intangible assets Also the Federal Reserve considers tangible Tier leverage ratio

deducting all intangibles and other indications of capital strength in evaluating proposals for expansion or

engaging in new activities In addition the federal hank regulatory agencies have established minimum leverage

Tier capital to adjusted average total assets guidelines for banks within their regulatory junsdictions These

guidelines provide for minimum leverage ratio of 5% for banks to be deemed well capitalized Our regulatory

capital ratios and those of Capital Bank are in excess of the levels established for well-capitalized institutions

As an additional means to identify problems in the financial management of depository institutions the

FDI Act requires federal bank regulatory agencies to establish certain non-capital safety and soundness standards for

institutions for which they are the primary federal regulator The standards relate generally to operations and

management asset quality interest rate exposure and executive compensation The agencies are authorized to take

action against institutions that fail to meet such standards

In addition the Dodd-Frank Act requires the federal banking agencies to adopt capital requirements that

address the risks that the activities of an institution pose to the institution and the public and private stakeholders

including risks arising from certain enumerated activities The federal banking agencies may change existing capital

guidelines or adopt new capital guidelines in the future pursuant to the Dodd Frank Act the implementation of

Basel III described below or other regulatory or supervisory changes We cannot be certain what the impact of

changes to existing capital guidelines will have on us or Capital Bank

Base Base II and Base IllAccords

The current risk-based capital guidelines that apply to us and our subsidiary bank are based on the 1988

capital accord referred to as Basel of the International Basel Committee on Banking Supervision which we refer

to as the Basel Committee committee of central banks and bank supervisors as implemented by federal bank

regulators In 2008 the bank regulatory agencies began to phase in capital standards based on second capital

accord issued by the Basel Committee referred to as Basel II for large or core international banks and bank

holding companies generally defined for U.S purposes as having total assets of $250 billion or more or

consolidated foreign exposures of $10 billion or more Because we do not anticipate controlling any large or core
international bank in the foreseeable future Basel II will not apply to us

On September 12 2010 the Group of Governors and Heads of Supervision the oversight body of the Basel

Committee announced agreement on the calibration and phase in arrangements for strengthened set of capital

requirements lmown as Basel III While the timing and scope of any implementation of Basel III remains

uncertain the following items provide brief description of the relevant provisions of Basel III and their potential

impact on our capital levels if applied to us and Capital Bank

New Minimum Capital Requirements Subject to implementation by the federal banking agencies
Basel III would be expected among other things to increase required capital ratios of banking institutions to which

it applies as follows

Minimum Common Equity The minimum requirement for common equity the highest form of loss

absorbing capital would be raised from the current 0% level before the application of regulatory

adjustments to 3.5% as of January 11 2013 and 4.5% by January 2015 after the application of

stricter adjustments The capital conversion buffer discussed below would cause required total
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common equity to rise to 7.0% by January 2019 4.5% attributable to the minimum required

common equity plus 2.5% attributable to the capital conservation buffer

Minimum Tier CapitaL The minimum Tier capital requirement which includes common equity

and other qualifying financial instruments based on stricter criteria would increase from 4.0% to 4.5%

by January 2013 and 6.0%by January 2015 Total Tier capital would rise to 8.5% byJanuary

2019 6.0% attributable to the minimum required Tier capital ratio plus 2.5% attributable to the

capital conservation buffer as discussed below

Minimum Total Capital The minimum Total Capital Tier and Tier capital requirement would

increase to 8.0% 10.5% by January 2019 including the capital conservation buffer

Capital Conservation Buffer The capital conservation buffer would add 2.5% to the regulatory

minimum common equity requirement adding 0.625% during each of the three years beginning in

January 2016 through January 12019 The buffer would be added to common equity after the

application of deductions The purpose of the conservation buffer is to ensure that banks maintain

buffer of capital that can be used to absorb losses during periods of financial and economic stress It is

expected that while banks would be allowed to draw on the buffer during such periods of stress the

closer their regulatory capital ratios approach the minimum requirement the greater the constraints that

would be applied to earnings ditributions

Countercyclical Buffer Basel III expects regulators to require as appropriate to national

circumstances countercyclical buffer within range of 0% to 2.5% of common equity or other

fully loss-absorbing capital The purpose of the countercyclical buffer is to achieve the broader goal of

protecting the banking sector from periods of excess aggregate credit growth For any given country it

is expected that this buffer would only be applied when there is excess credit growth that is resulting in

perceived system-wide buildup of risk The countercyclical buffer when in effect would be

introduced as an extension of the capital conservation buffer range

Regulatory Deductions from Common Equity The regulatory adjustments i.e deductions and

prudential filters including minority interests in financial institutions mortgage-servicing rights and

deferred tax assets from timing differences would be deducted in increasing percentages beginning

January 2014 and would be fully deducted from common equity by January 2018 Certain

instruments that no longer qualify as Tier capital such as trust preferred securities also would be

subject to phaseout over 10-year period beginning January 2013

Non-Risk-Based Leverage Ratios These capital requirements are supplemented by non-risk-based

leverage ratio that will serve as backstop to the risk-based measures described above In July 2010

the Governors and Heads of Supervision agreed to test minimum Tier leverage ratio of 3.0% during

the parallel run period Based on the results of the parallel run penod any final adjustments would be

carried out in the first half of 2017 with view to adopting the 3.0% leverage ratio on January 2018

based on appropriate review and calibration

Basel III also introduces non-risk adjusted Tier leverage ratio of 3% based on measure of total

exposure
that includes balance sheet assets net of provisions and valuation adjustments as well as potential future

exposure to off balance sheet items such as derivatives Basel III also includes both short and long term liquidity

standards The phase in of the new rules is to commence on January 2013 with the phase in of the capital

conservation buffer commencing on January 2016 and the rules to be fully phased in by January 2019

In November 2010 Basel III was endorsed by the Group of Twenty G-20 Finance Ministers and Central

Bank Governors and will be subject to individual adoption by member nations including the United States On

December 16 2010 the Basel Committee issued the text of the Basel III rules which presents the details of global

regulatory standards on bank capital adeqUacy and liquidity agreed by the Basel Committee and endorsed by the

G-20 leaders In January 2011 the Basel Committee issued further guidance on the qualification criteria for

inclusion in Tier capital The federal banking agencies will likely implement changes to the current capital

adequacy standards applicable to us and our bank subsidiary in light of Basel III If adopted by federal banking

agencies Basel III could lead to higher capital reqUirements including restrictive leverage ratio and new liquidity

ratios The ultimate impact of the new capital and liquidity standards on us and our bank subsidiary is currently

being reviewed and will depend on number of factors including the rule-making and implementation by the U.S

banking regulators
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Prompt Corrective Action

The FDI Act requires federal bank regulatory agencies to take prompt corrective action with respect to

FDIC-insured depository institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements depository institutions

treatment for purposes
of the prompt corrective action provisions will depend upon how its capital levels compare to

various capital measures and certain other factors as established by regulation

Under this system the federal banking regulators have established five capital categories well capitalized

adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized in which all

institutions are placed The federal banking regulators have also specified by regulation the relevant capital levels

for each of the other categories Federal banking regulators are required to take various mandatory supervisory

actions and are authorized to take other discretionary actions with .respect to institutions in the three undercapitalized

categories The severity of the action depends upon.the capital category in which the institution is placed Generally

subject to narrow exception the banking regulator must appoint receiver or conservator for an institution that is

critically undercapitalized

Federal Reserve B.oard regulations require that each bank maintain reserve balances on deposits with the

Federal Reserve Bank

Reserve Requirements

Pursuant to regulations of the Federal Reserve all banks are required to maintain average daily reserves at

mandated ratios against their transaction accounts In addition reserves must be maintained on certain non-personal

time deposits These reserves must be maintained in the form of vault cash or in an account at Federal Reserve

Banks

Deposit Insurance Assessments

FDIC-insured banks are required to pay deposit insurance premium assessments to the FDIC The FDIC

has adopted risk-based assessment system whereby FDIC-insured depository institutions pay insurance premiums

at rates based on their risk classification An institutions risk classification is assigned based on its capital levels and

the level of supervisory concern the institution poses to the regulators The FDIC recently raised assessment rates to

increase funding for the DIF which is currently underfunded

The Dodd-Frank Act makes permanent the general $250000 deposit insurance limit for insured deposits In

addition federal deposit insurance for the full net amount of deposits in non-interest-bearing transaction accounts

was extended to January 2013 for all insured banks

The Dodd-Frank Act changes the deposit insurance assessment framework primarily by basing

assessments on an institutions total assets less tangible equity subject to risk-based adjustments that would further

reduce the assessment base for custodial banks rather than domestic deposits which is expected to shift greater

portion of the aggregate assessments to large banks as described in detail below The Dodd-Frank Act also

eliminates the upper limit for the reserve ratio designated by the FDIC each year increases the minimum designated

reserve ratio of the DIF from 1.15% to 1.35% of the estimated amount of total insured deposits by September 30

2020 and eliminates the requirement that the FDIC pay dividends to depository institutions when the reserve ratio

exceeds certain thresholds

.The Dodd-Frank Act requires the DIF to reach reserve ratio of 1.35% of insured deposits by September

30 2020 On December 20 2010 the FDIC raised the minimum designated reserve ratio of DIF to 2% The ratio is

higher than the minimum reserve ratio of 1.35% as set by the Dodd-Frank Act Under the Dodd-Frank Act the

FDIC is required to offset the effect of the higher reserve ratio on insured depository institutions with consolidated

assets of less than $10billion.

On February 2011 the FDIC approved .final rule on Assessments Dividends Assessment Base and

Large Bank Pricing The final rule mandated by the Dodd-Frank Act changes the deposit insurance assessment

system from one that is based on domestic deposits to one that is based on average consolidated total assets minus

average tangible equity Because the new assessment base under the Dodd-Frank Act is larger than the current

assessment base the final rules assessment rates are lower than the current rates which achieves the FDICs goal of

not significantly altering the total amount of revenue collected from the industry In addition the final rule adopts
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scorecard assessment scheme for larger banks and suspends dividend payments if the DIF reserve ratio exceeds

1.5% but provides for decreasing assessment rates when the DIF reserve ratio reaches certain thresholds The final

rule also determines how the effect of the higher reserve ratio will be offset for institutions with less than $10 billion

of consolidated assets

Continued action by the FDIC to replenish the DIF as well as changes contained in the Dodd-Frank Act

may result in higher assessment rates Capital Bank may be able to pass part or all of this cost on to its customers

including in the form of lower interest rates on deposits or fees to some depositors depending on market conditions

The FDIC may terminate depository institutions deposit insurance upon finding that the institutions

financial condition is unsafe or unsound or that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or has

violated any applicable rule regulation order or condition enacted or imposed by the institutions regulatory

agency If deposit insurance for banking business we invest in or acquire were to be terminated that would have

material adverse effect on that banking business and potentially on the Company as whole

Permitted Activities and Investments by Bank Holding Companies

The BHCA generally prohibits bank holding company from engaging in activities other than banking or

managing or controlling banks except for activities determined by the Federal Reserve to be so closely related to

banking or managing or controlling banks as to be proper incident thereto Provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Financial Modernization Act of 1999 which we refer to as the GLB Act expanded the permissible activities of

bank holding company that qualifies as financial holding company Under the regulations implementing the GLB
Act financial holding company may engage in additional activities that are financial in nature or incidental or

complementary to financial activity Those activities include among other activities certain insurance and securities

activities We have not yet determined whether it would be appropriate or advisable in the future to become

financial holding company

Privacy Provisions of the GLB Act and Restrictions on Cross-Selling

Federal banking regulators as required under the GLB Act have adopted rules limiting the ability of banks

and other financial institutions to disclose nonpublic information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties The

rules require disclosure of privacy policies to consumers and in some circumstances allow consumers to prevent

disclosure of certain personal information to nonaffiliated third parties The privacy provisions of the GLB Act

affect how consumer information is transmitted through diversified financial services companies and conveyed to

outside vendors

Federal financial regulators have issued regulations under the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act
which have the effect of increasing the length of the waiting period after privacy disclosures are provided to new

customers before information can be shared among different companies that we own or may come to own for the

purpose of cross-selling products and services among companies we own number of states have adopted their

own statutes concerning financial privacy and requiring notification of security breaches

Anti-Money Laundering Requirements

Under federal law including the Bank Secrecy Act the PATRIOT Act and the International Money
Laundering Abatement and Anti-Terrorist Financing Act certain types of financial institutions including insured

depository institutions must maintain anti-money laundering programs that include established internal policies

procedures and controls designated compliance officer an ongoing employee training program and testing of the

program by an independent audit function Among other things these laws are intended to strengthen the ability of

U.S law enforcement agencies and intelligence communities to work together to combat terrorism on variety of

fronts Financial institutions are prohibited from entering into specified financial transactions and account

relationships and must meet enhanced standards for due diligence and customer identification in their dealings with

non-U.S financial institutions and non-U.S customers Financial institutions must take reasonable steps to conduct

enhanced scrutiny of account relationships to guard against money laundering and to report any suspicious

information maintained by financial institutions Bank regulators routinely examine institutions for compliance with

these obligations and they must consider an institutions compliance in connection with. the regulatory review of

applications including applications for banking mergers and acquisitions The regulatory authorities have imposed
cease and desist orders and civil money penalty sanctions against institutions found to be violating these

obligations
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The OFAC is responsible for helping to insure that U.S entities do not engage
in transactions with certain

prohibited parties as defined by various Executive Orders and Acts of Congress OFAC publishes lists of persons

organizations and countries suspected of aiding harboring or engaging in terrorist acts known as Specially

Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons If we or Capital Bank find name on any transaction account or wire

transfer that is on an OFAC list we or Capital Bank must freeze or block such account or transaction file

suspicious activity report and notify the appropriate authorities

Consumer Laws and Regulations

Banks and other financial institutions are subject to numerous laws and regulations intended to protect

consumers in thçir transactions with banks These laws include among others laws regarding unfair and deceptive

acts and practices and usury laws as well as the following consumer protection statutes Truth in Lending Act Truth

in Savings Act Electronic Funds Transfer Act Expedited Funds Availability Act Equal Credit Opportunity Act

Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act Fair Housing Act Fair Credit Reporting Act Fair Debt Collection Act

GLB Act Home Mortgage Disclose Act Right to Financial Privacy Act and Real Estate Settlement Procedures

Act

Many states and local jurisdictions have consnmer protection laws analogous and in addition to those

listed above These federal state and local laws regulate the manner in which financial institutions deal with

customers when taking deposits making loans or conducting other types of transactions Failure to comply with

these laws and regulations could giye rise to regulatory sanctions customer rescission rights action by state and

local attorneys general and civil or criminal liability

The Dodd-Frank Act creates the CFPB new independent bureau that will have broad authority to

regulate supervise and enforce retail frnancial services activities of banks and various non-bank providers The

CFPB will have authority to promulgate regulation issue orders guidance and policy statements conduct

examinations and bring enforcement actions with regard to consumer financial products and services In general

banks with assets of $10 billion or less such as Capital Bank will be subject to regulation of the CFPB but will

continue .to be examined for consumer compliance by theii bank regulator However given our growth and bank

acquisition strategy if our total assets were to exceed $10 billion then we will become subject to the CFPB

exclusive examination authority and primary enforcement authority

The Community Reinvestment Act

The CRA is intended to encourage banks to help meet the credit needs of their service areas including low

and moderate-income neighborhoods consistent with safe and sound operations The regulators examine banks and

assign each bank public CRA rating banks record of fair lending compliance is part of the resulting CRA

examination report The CRA then requires bank regulators to take into account the banks record in meeting the

needs of its service area when considering an application by bank to establish branch or to conduct certain

mergers or acquisitions The Federal Reserve is required to consider the CRA records of bank holding company

controlled banks when considering an application by the bank holding company to acquire bank or to merge with

another bank holding company

When we apply for regulatory approval to make certain investments the regulators will consider the CRA

record of the target institution and our depository institution subsidiary An unsatisfactory CRA record could

substantially delay approval or result in denial of an application

Changes in Laws Regulations or Policies and the Dodd-Frank Act

Various federal state and local legislators introduce from time to time measures or take actions that would

modify the regulatory requirements or the examination or supervision
of banks or bank holding companies

Such

legislation could increase or decrease the cost of doing business limit or expand permissible activities or affect the

competitive balance among banks and other financial institutions all of which could affect our investment

opportunities and our assessment of how attractive such opportunities may be We cannot predict whether potential

legislation will be enacted and if enacted the effect that it or any implementing regulations would have on our

business results of operations or financial condition

The Dodd-Frank Act which was signed into law on July 21 2010 will have broad impact on the

financial services industry imposing significant regulatory and compliance changes increased capital leverage and
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liquidity requirements and numerous other provisions designed to improve supervision and oversight of the financial

services sector The following items briefly describe some of the key provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act

Source of Strength The Dodd-Frank Act requires all companies that directly or indirectly control

depository institution to serve as source of strength for the institution

Limitation on Federal Preemption The Dodd-Frank Act may limit the ability of national banks to rely

upon federal preemption of state consumer financial laws Under the Dodd-Frank Act the 0CC will

have the ability to make preemption determinations only if certain conditions are met and on case-by-

case basis The Dodd-Frank Act also eliminates the extension of preemption to operating subsidiaries

of national banks However the Dodd-Frank Act preserves certain preemption standards articulated by
the U.S Supreme Court and existing interpretations thereunder as well as express preemption

provisions in other federal laws such as the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Truth in Lending

Act that specifically address the application of state law in relation to that federal law The Dodd-

Frank Act authorizes state enforcement authorities to bring lawsuits under state law against national

banks and authorizes suits by state attorney generals against national banks to enforce rules issued by
the CFPB With this broad grant of enforcement authority to states institutions including national

banks could be subject to varying and potentially conflicting interpretations of federal law by various

state attorney generals state regulators and the courts

Mortgage Loan Origination and Risk Retention The Dodd-Frank Act imposes new standards for

mortgage loan originations on all lenders including banks in an effort to require steps to verify

borrowers ability to repay The Dodd-Frank Act also generally requires lenders or securitizers to

retain an economic interest in the credit risk relating to loans the lender sells or mortgages and other

asset-backed securities that the securitizer issues The risk retention requirement generally will be 5%
but could be increased or decreased by regulation

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau The Dodd-Frank Act creates the CFPB within the Federal

Reserve The CFPB is tasked with establishing and implementing rules and regulations under certain

federal consumer protection laws with respect to the conduct of providers of certain consumer financial

products and services The CFPB has rulemaking authority over many of the statutes governing

products and services offered to bank customers For banking organizations with assets of more than

$10 billion the CFPB has exclusive rule-making and examination and primary enforcement authority

under federal consumer financial laws In addition the Dodd-Frank Act permits states to adopt

consumer protection laws and regulations that are stricter than those regulations promulgated by the

CFPB

Deposit Insurance The Dodd-Frank Act makes permanent the general $250000 deposit insurance

limit for insured deposits The Dodd-Frank Act also provides unlimited deposit coverage for

noninterest-bearing transaction accounts until January 2013 Amendments to the FDI Act also revise

the assessment base against which an insured depository institutions deposit insurance premiums paid

to the DIF will be calculated Under these amendments the assessment base will no longer be the

institutions deposit base but rather its
average consolidated total assets less its average tangible

equity Additionally the Dodd-Frank Act makes changes to the minimum designated reserve ratio of

the DIF increasing the minimum from 1.15% to 1.35% of the estimated amount of total insured

deposits and eliminating the requirement that the FDIC pay dividends to depository institutions when

the reserve ratio exceeds certain thresholds

Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders The Dodd-Frank Act generally enhances the restrictions on

transactions with affiliates under Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act including an

expansion of the definition of covered transactions and an increase in the amount of time for which

collateral requirements regarding covered credit transactions must be satisfied Insider transaction

limitations are expanded through the strengthening of loan restrictions to insiders and the expansion of

the types of transactions subject to the various limits including derivatives transactions repurchase

agreements reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending or borrowing transactions

Restrictions are also placed on certain asset sales to and from an insider to an institution including

requirements that such sales be on market terms and in certain circumstances approved by the

institutions board of directors
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Corporate Governance The Dodd-Frank Act addresses many investor protection corporate

governance and executive compensation matters that ivill affect most U.S publicly traded companies

including the Company The Dodd-Frank Act grants stockholders of U.S publicly traded

companies an advisory vote on executive compensation enhances independence requirements for

compensation committee members requires companies listed on national securities exchanges to

adopt incentive-based compensation clawback policies for executive officers and provides the SEC

with authorityto adopt proxy access rules that would allow stockholders of publicly traded companies

to nominate candidates for election as director and have those nominees included in companys

proxy materials

Interchange Fees Under the so-called Durbin Amendment of the Dodd-Frank Act interchange

transaction fees that card issuer receives or charges for an electronic debit transaction must be

reasonable and proportional to the cost incurred by the card issuer in processing the transaction

Banks that have less than $10 billion in assets are exempt from the interchange transaction fee

limitation On June 29 2011 the Federal Reserve issued final rule establishing standards for

determining whether the amount of any interchange transaction fee is reasonable and proportional

taking into consideration fraud prevention costs and prescribing regulations to ensure that network

fees are not used directly or indirectly to compensate card issuers with respect to electronic debit

transactions or to circumvent or evade the restrictions that interchange transaction fees be reasonable

and proportional Under the final rule the maximum permissible interchange fee that an issuer may
receive for an electronic debit will be the sum of $0.21 per transaction and five basis points multiplied

by the value of the transaction The Federal Board also approved on June 29 2011 an interim final rule

that allows for an upward adjustment of no more than $001 to an issuers debit card interchange fee if

the issuer develops and implements policies and procedures reasonably designed to achieve certain

fraud prevention standards set out in the interim final rule The Dodd Frank Act also bans card issuers

and payment card networks from entering into exclusivity arrangements for debit card processing and

prohibits card issuers and payment networks from inhibiting the ability of merchants to direct the

routing of debit card transactions over networks of their choice Finally merchants will be able to set

minimum dollar amounts for the use of credit card and provide discounts to consumers who pay with

various payment methods such as cash

Many of the requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act will be implemented over time and most will be subject

to regulations implemented over the course of several years Given the uncertainty surrounding the manner in which

many of the Dodd-Frank Acts provisions will be implemented by the various regulatory agencies and through

regulations the full extent of the impact on our operations is unclear The changes resulting from the Dodd-Frank

Act may impact the profitability of our business activities require changes to certain of our business practices

impose upon us more stringent capital liquidity and leverage requirements or otherwise adversely affect our

business

Statistical Information

Certain statistical information is found in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM 1A RiSK FACTORS

RISK FACTORS
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Our business is subject to variety of risks including the risks describedbelow as well as adverse business

conditions and changes in regulations and the local regional and national economic environment The risks and

uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing us Additional risks and uncertainties not known to us or

not described below which we have not determined to be material may also impair our business operations You

should carefully consider the risks described below together with all other information in this report including

information contained in the Business Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations and Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk sections This report

cOntains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties including statements about our future

plans objectives intentions and expectations Many factors including those described below could cause actual

results to differ materially from those discussed in forward-looking statements If any of the following risks actually

occur our business financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected and we may not be

able to achieve our goals Such events may cause actual results to differ materially from expected and historical

results andthe trading price of our common stock could decline

Risks Relating to the Potential Merger of TIB Financial Corp and CBF

The potential merger has been approved without your vote

CBF owns over 94% of the common stock of the Company Accordingly under Flonda law no vote of the

Companys Board of Directors or shareholders is required to complete the merger As result the merger may be

completed even if opposed by all of the Companys shareholders unaffiliated with CBF

Neither CBF nor the Company has hired anyone to represent you and CBF has conflict of interest in the merger

CBF and the Company have not negotiated the merger at arm length or hired independent persons

to negotiate the terms of the merger for you Since CBF initiated and structured the merger without negotiating

with the Company or any independent person and CBF has an interest in acquiring your shares at the lowest possible

price if independent persons had been hired the terms of the merger may have been more favorable to you

Because there is currently no market for CBFs Class common stock and marketfor CBFs class common

stock may not develop you cannot be sure of the market value of the merger consideration you will receive

Upon completion of the merger each share of the Companys common stock will be converted into
merger

consideration consisting of 0.7205 of share of CBFs Class common stock Prior to the initial public offering of

CBFs Class common stock which is expected to be completed substantially concurrently with the merger there

has been no established public market for CBFs Class common stock An active liquid trading market for CBFs
Class common stock may not develop or be sustained following the initial public offering If an active trading market

does not develop holders of CBFs Class common stock may have difficulty selling their shares at an attractive

price or at all CBF has applied to have its Class common stock listed on Nasdaq but its application may not be

approved In addition the liquidity of any market that may develop or the price that CBFs stockholders may obtain for

their shares of Class common stock cannot be predicted The initial public offering price for CBF Class

common stock will be determined by negotiations between CBF its stockholders who choose to sell their shares in

the initial public offering and the representative of the underwriters and may not be indicative of prices that will

prevail in the open market following the offering

The outcome of CBFs initial public offering will affect the market value of the consideration the

Companys shareholders will receive upon completion of the merger Accordingly you will not knOw or be able to

calculate the market value of the merger consideration you would receive upon completion of the merger There

will be no adjustment to the exchange ratio for changes in the anticipated outcome of CBFs initial publicoffering or

changes in the market price of the Companys common stock

If CBF completes the merger without completing its initial public offering the size of the outstanding public float

of CBFs Class common stock will be low and the value and liquidity of CBFs common stock may be adversely

affected

While the merger is expected to be completed substantially concurrently with CBFs initial public offering

CBF controls when the merger will take place and there can be no guarantee that CBFs initial public offering will

occur substantially concurrently with the merger or at all If the merger is completed and CBFs initial public

offering is delayed or does not occur there will be fewer publicly traded shares of CBFs Class common stock

outstanding than if the initial public offering is completed as anticipated and as result the value and liquidity of

CBFs shares of Class common stock that you receive in the merger may be adversely affected
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The shares of CBFs Class common stock to be received by the Company shareholders as result of the merger

will have dfferent rights than the shares of the Companys common stock

The rights associated with the Company common stock are different from the rights associated with CBF

Class common stock For example the Companys Board of Directors is divided into two classes with the term of

office of one class expiring each year CBFs Board of Directors will not be classified at the time of the merger In

addition as Florida corporation the Company is subject to provisions of Florida law that require vote of at least

two thirds of the Companys shareholders to approve business combinations with certain large shareholders these

provisions do not apply to the merger because CBF owns more than 90% of the Companys common stock These

provisions do not apply to CBF because it is Delaware corporation In addition the Companys shareholders are

permitted to act by written consent without meeting whereas CBF shareholders cannot act by written consent

Also holders of at least 50% of the Companys common stock may call special meeting of TIB Financial Corp.s

shareholders whereas special meetings of CBF shareholders can only be called by CBFs Chairman Chief

Executive Officer or its Board of Directors

Risks Relating to the Companys Banking Operations

Continued or worsening general business and economic conditions could have material adverse effect on our

business financial position results of operations and cash flows

Our business and operations are sensitive to general business and economic conditions in the United States

If the economy is unable to steadily emerge from the recent recession that began in 2007 or CBF experiences

worsening economic conditions such as so-called double dip recession CBF growth and profitability could be

adversely affected Weak economic conditions may be characterized by deflation fluctuations in debt and equity capital

markets including lack of liquidity and/or depressed prices in the secondary market for mortgage loans increased

delinquencies on mortgage consumer and commercial loans residential and commercial real estate price declines

and lower home sales and commercial activity All ofthese factors would be detrimental to our business On August

2011 Standard Poors lowered the long-term sovereign credit rating of U.S Government debt obligations from

AAA to AA On August 2011 SP also downgraded the long-term credit ratings of U.S government-sponsored

enterprises These actions initially have had an adverse effect on financial markets and although we are unable to

predict the longer-term impact on such markets and the participants therein it may be material and adverse

in addition significant concern regarding the creditworthiness of some of the governments in Europe most

notably Greece has contributed to volatility in financial markets in Europe and globally and to funding pressures on

some globally active European banks leading to greater investor and economic uncertainty worldwide failure to

adequately address sovereign debt concerns in Europe could hamper economic recovery or contribute to return to

recessionary economic conditions and severe stress in the financial markets including inthe United States

Our business is also significantly affected by monetary and related policies of the U.S federal government

its agencies and government-sponsored entities Changes in any of these policies are influenced by macroeconomic

conditions and other factors that are beyond our control are difficult to predict and could have material adverse effect

on our business financial position results of operations and cash flows

The geographic concentration of our markets in the southeastern region of the United States makes our

business highly susceptible to downturns in the local economies and depressed banking markets which could be

detrimental to our financial condition

Unlike larger financial institutions that are more geographically diversified our national bank subsidiary

Capital Bank is regional banking franchise concentrated in the southeastern region of the United States Capital Bank

operates branches located in Florida North Carolina South Carolina Tennessee and Virginia As of December 31
2011 32% of Capital Banks loans were in Florida 26% were in North Carolina 12% were in South Carolina 29%

were in Tennessee and 1% was in Virginia deterioration in local economic conditions in the loan market or in the

residential commercial or industrial real estate market could have material adverse effect on the quality of Capital

Banks portfolio the demand for is products and services the ability of borrowers to timely repay loans and the value

of the collateral securing loans In addition if the populationor income growth in the region is slOwer than projected

income levels deposits and real estate development could be adversely affected and could result in the curtailment of
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our expansion growth and profitability If any of these developments were to result in losses that materially and

adversely affected Capital Banks capital CBF the Company and Capital Bank might be subject to regulatory

restrictions on operations and growth and to requirement to raise additional capital

We depend on our executive officers and key personnel to continue the implementation of our long-term business

strategy and could be harmed by the loss of their services

We believe that our continued growth and future success will depend in large part on the skills of our

management team and its ability to motivate and retain these individuals and other key personnel In particular we

rely on the leadership and experience in the banking industry of its Chief Executive Officer Eugene Taylor Mr
Taylor is the former Vice Chairman of Bank of America and has extensive experience executing and overseeing bank

acquisitions including NationsBank Corp.s acquisition and integration of Bank of America Maryland National Bank

and Bamett Banks The loss of service of Mr Taylor or one or more of our other executive officers or key personnel

could reduce our ability to successfully implement our long-term business strategy our business could suffer and the

value of our common stock could be materially adversely affected Leadership changes will occur from time to time

and we cannot predict whether significant resignations will occur or whether we or CBF will be able to recruit

additional qualified personnel We believe our management team possesses
valuable knowledge about the banking

industry and that their knowledge and relationships would be ery difficult to replicate Although Eugene Taylor

has entered into an employment agreement with CBF and it is expected that prior to Qie completion of the initial

public offering Christopher Marshall Bruce Singletary and Kenneth Posner will have entered into

employment agreements with CBF it is possible that they may not complete the term of their employment

agreements or renew them upon expiration Our success also depends on the experience of Capital Banks branch

managers and lending officers and on their relationships with the customers and communities they serve The loss of

these key personnel could negatively impact our banking operations The loss of key personnel or the inability to

recruit and retain qualified personnel in the future could have an adverse effect on our business financial condition

or operating results

Capital Banks loss sharing agreements impose restrictions on the operation of its business failure to comply with

the trns of the loss sharing agreements with the FDIC or other regulatory agreements or orders may result in

sign jflcant losses or regulatory sanctions and Capital Bank is exposed to unrecoverable losses on the Failed

Banks assets that it acquired

In July 2010 Capital Bank purchased substantially all of the assets and assumedall of the deposits and certain

other liabilities of the Failed Banks in FDIC-assisted transactions and material portion of its revenue is derived from

such assets Certain of the purchased assets are covered by the loss sharing agreements with the FDIC which provide

that the FDIC will bear 80% of losses on the covered loan assets acquired in the acquisition of the Failed Banks Capital

Bank is subject to audit by the FDIC at its discretion to ensure it is in compliance with the terms of these agreements

Capital Bank may experience difficulties in complying with the requirements of the loss sharing agreements the terms

of which are extensive and failure to comply with
any

of the terms could result in specific asset or group of assets

losing their loss sharing coverage

The FDIC has the right to refuse or delay payment partially or in full for such loan losses if Capital Bank

fails to comply with the terms of the loss sharing agreements which are extensive Additionally the loss sharing

agreements are limited in duration Therefore any losses that Capital Bank experiences after the terms of the loss

shanng agreements have ended will not be recoverable from the FDIC and would negatively impact net income

Capital Banks loss sharing agreements also impose limitations on how it manages loans covered by loss

sharing For example under the loss sharing agreements Capital Bank is not permitted to sell covered loan even if

in the ordinary course of business it is determined that taking such action would be advantageous These restrictions

could impair Capital Bank ability to manage problem loans and extend the amount of time that such loans remain on

its balance sheet and could negatively impact Capital Bank business financial condition liquidity and results of

operations

In addition to the loss shanng agreements in August 2010 Capital Bank entered into an Operating

Agreement with the 0CC which we refer to as the 0CC Operating Agreement in connection with the

acquisition of the Failed Banks Capital Bank and with respect to certain provisions the Company and CBF is also

subject to an Order of the FDJC dated July 16 2010 which we refer to as the FDIC Order issued in connection
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with the FDICs approval of CBFs deposit insurance applications for the Failed Banks The 0CC Operating

Agreement and the FDIC Order require that Capital Bank maintain various financial and capital ratios and require

prior regulatory notice and consent to take certain actions in connection with operating the business and they restrict

Capital Banks ability to pay dividends to CBF and the Company and to make changes to its capital structure

failure by CBF or Capital Bank to comply with the requirements of the 0CC Operating Agreement or the FDIC

Order could subject CBF to regulatory sanctions and failure to comply or the objection or imposition of additional

conditions by the 0CC or the FDIC in connection with any materials or information submitted thereunder could

prevent CBF from executing its business strategy and negatively impact our business financial condition liquidity

and results of operations

Any requested or required changes in how we determine the impact of loss share aŒcounting on our financial

information could have material adverse effect on our reported results

material portion of our financial results is based on loss share accounting which is subject to

assumptions and judgments made by us our accountants and the regulatory agencies to whom we report such

information Loss share accounting is complex accounting methodology If these assumptions are incorrect or

the accountants or the regulatory agencies to whom we report require that management change or modify these

assumptions such change or modification could have material adverse effect on our financial condition operations

or previously reported results As such any financial information generated through the use of loss share accounting

is subject to modification or change Any significant modification or change in such information could have

material adverse effect on our results of operations and our previously reported results

Our financial information reflects the application of the acquisition method of accounting Any change in the

assumptions used in such methodology could have an adverse effect on our results of operations

As result of CBFs recent acquisition of us our financial results are heavily influenced by the application of

the acquisition method of accounting The acquisition method of accounting requires management to make

assumptions regarding the assets purchased and liabilities assumed to determine their fair market value Capital

Banks interest income interest
expense

and net interestmargin which were equal to $226.4 million $32.8 million

and 3.41% respectively for the year ended December 31 2011 reflect the impact of accretion of the fair value

adjustments made to the carrying amounts of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities and Capital Banks

non-interest income which totaled $40.7 million as of December 31 2011 for periods subsequent to the

acquisitions includes the effects of discount accretion and amortization of the FDIC indemnification asset In

addition the balances of non-performing assets were significantly reduced by the adjustments to fair value

recorded in conjunction with the relevant acquisition If our assumptions are incorrect or the regulatory agencies to

whom we report require that we changeor modify assumptions such change or modification could have material

adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations or our previously reported results

Our business is highly susceptible to credit risk

As lender Capital Bank is exposed to the risk that its customers will be unable to repay their loans

according to their terms and that the collateral ifany securing the payment of their loans may not be sufficient to

assure repayment The risks inherent in making any loan include risks with respect to the period of time over which

the loan may be repaid risks relating to proper loan underwriting and guidelines risks resulting from changes in

economic and industry conditions risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers and risks resulting from

uncertainties as to the future value of collateial The credit standards procedures and policies that Capital Bank has

established for borrowers may not prevent the incurrence of substantial credit losses

Although Capital Bank does not have long enough operating history to have restructured many of its

loans for borrowers in financial difficulty in the future it may restructure originated or acquired loans if Capital Bank

believes the borrowers have viable business plan to fully pay off all obligations However for its originated

loans if interest rates or other terms are modified upon extension of credit or if terms of an existing loan are

renewed in such situation and concession is granted Capital Bank may be required to classify such action as

troubled debt restructunng which we refer to as TDR Capital Bank would classify loans as TDRs when certain

modifications are made to the loan terms and concessions are granted to the borrowers due to their financial difficulty

Generally these loans would be restructured to provide the borrower additional time to execute its business plan With

respect to restructured loans Capital Bank may grant concessions by reduction of the stated interest rate for the

remaining original life of the debt or extension of the maturity date at stated interest rate lower than the current
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market rate for new debt with similar risk In situations where TDR is unsuccessful and the borrower is unable to

satisfy the terms of the restructured agreement the loan would be placed on nonaccrual status and written down to the

underlying collateral value

Recent economic and market developments and the potential for continued economic disruption present

considerable risks to CBF and it is difficult to determine the depth and duration of the economic and financial market

problems and the many ways in which they may impact CBFs business in general Any failure to manage such credit

risks may materially adversely affect CBFs business and its consolidated results of operations and financial condition

signficant portion of Capital Banks loan portfolio is secured by real estate and events that negatively impact

the real estate market could hurt its busines

significant portion of Capital Banks loan portfolio is secured by real estate As of December 31 2011

approximately 84% of Capital Banks loans had real estate as primary or secondary component of collateral The

real estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source of repayment in the event of default by the borrower

and may deteriorate in value during the time the credit is extended continued weakening of the real estate market in

Capital Banks primary market areas could continue to result in an increase in the number of borrowers who default on

their loans and reduction in the value of the collateral securing their loans which in turn could have an adverse effect on

Capital Banks profitability and asset quality If Capital Bank is required to liquidate the collateral securing loan to

satisfy the debt during period of reduced realestate values its earnings and shareholders equity could be adversely

affected

Additionally recent weakness in the secondary market for residential lending could have an adverse impact

on Capital Banks profitability Significant ongoing disruptions in the secondary market for residential mortgage loans

have limited the market for and liquidity of most mortgage loans other than conforming Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
loans The effects of ongoing mortgage market challenges combined with the ongoing correction in residential real

estate market prices and reduced levels of home sales could result in further price reductions in single family home

values adversely affecting the value of collateral securing mortgage loans held any future mortgage loan originations

and gains on sale of mortgage loans Continued declines in real estate values and home sales volumes and financial

stress on borrowers as result ofjob losses or other factors could have further adverse effects on borrowers that result in

higher delinquencies and charge-offs in future periods which could adversely affect Capital Banks financial position

and results of operations

Capital Banks construction and land development loans are based upon estimates of costs and the values of the

complete projects

While Capital Bank intends to focus on originating loans other than non-owner occupied commercial real

estate loans its portfolio includes construction and land development loans which we refer to as CD loans

extended to builders and developers primarily for the construction and/or development of properties These loans have

been extended on presold and speculative basis and they include loans for both residential and commercial

purposes

In general CD lending involves additional risks because of the inherent difficulty us estimating

propertys value both before and at completion of the project Construction costs may exceed original estimates asa

result of increased materials labor .or other costs In addition because of current uncertainties in the residential and

commercial real estate markets property values have become more difficult to determine than they have been

historically The repayment of construction and land acquisition and development loans is often dependent in part on the

ability of the borrower to sell or lease the property These loans also require ongoing monitoring In addition

speculative construction loans to residential builder are often associated with homes that are not presold and thus

pose greater potential risk than construction loans to individuals on their personal residences Slowing housing sales

have been contributing factor to an increase in non performing loans as well as an increase in delinquencies

As of December 31 2011 CD loans totaled $509 million or 12% of Capital Bank total loan portfolio of

which $86 million was for construction and/or development of residential properties and $423 million was for

construction/development of commercial properties As of December 31 2011 non-performing CD loans covered

under FDIC loss share agreements totaled $39.4 million and non-performing CD loans not covered under FDIC loss

share agreements totaled $94.9 million
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Capital Banks non-owner occupied commercial real estate loans may be dependent on factors outside the control of

its borrnwers

While Capital Bank intends to focus on originating loans other than non owner occupied commercial real

estate loans in the acquisitions it acquired non owner occupied commercial real estate loans for individuals and

businesses for various purposes which are secured by commercial properties These loans typically involve

repayment dependent upon mcome generated or expected to be generated by the property securing the loan in

amounts sufficient to cover operating expenses and debt servióe This may be adversely affected by changes in the

economy or local market conditions Non-owner occupied commercial real estate loans expose lender to greater

credit risk than loans secured by residential real estate because the collateral securing these loans typically cannot be

liquidated as easily as residential real estate In such cases Capital Bank may be compelled to modif the terms of

the loan or engage in other potentially expensive work-out techniques If Capital Bank forecloses on non-owner

occupied commercial real estate loan the holding period for the collateral typically is longer than 1-4 family

residential property because there are fewer potential purchasers of the collateral Additionally non owner occupied

commercial real estate loans generally have relatively large balances to single borrowers or related groups of

borrowers Accordingly charge offs on non owner occupied commercial real estate loans may be larger on per

loan basis than those incurred with Capital Bank residential or consumer loan portfolios

As of December 31 2011 Capital Banks non-owner occupied commercial real estate loans totaled $903.9

million or 21% of its total loan portfolio As of December 31 2011 non-performing non-owner occupied

commercial real estate loans covered under FDIC loss share agreements totaled $15.3 million and non-performing non-

owner occupied commercial real estate loans not covered under FDIC loss share agreements totaled $49.5 million

Repayment of Capitid Banks commercial business loans is dependent on the cash flows of borrowers which may
be unpredictable and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value

Capital Banks business plan focuses on originating different types of commercial business loans Capital Bank

classifies the types of commercial loans offered as owner-occupied term real estate loans business lines of credit and

term equipment financing Commercial business lending involves risks that are different from those associated with non-

owner occupied commercial real estate lending Capital Banks commercial business loans are primarily underwritten

based on the cash flow of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral including real estate The

borrowers cash flow maybe unpredictable and collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value Some of Capital

Banks commercial business loans are collateralized by equipment inventory accounts receivable or other business

assets and the liquidation of collateral in the event of default is often an insufficient source of repayment because

accounts receivable may be uncollectible and inventories may be obsolete or of limited use

As of December 31 2011 Capital Banks commercial business loans totaled $1.4 billion or 32% of its

total loan portfolio Of this amount $902.8 million was secured by owner-occupied real estate and $465.8 million

was secured by business assets As of December 31 2011 non-performing commercial business loans covered

under FDIC loss share agreements totaled $29.8 million and non-performing commercial business loans not covered

under FDIC loss share agreements totaled $67.7 million

Capital Banks allowance for loan losses and fair value adjustments may prove to be insufficient to absorb losses

for loans that it originates

Lending money is substantial part of Capital Banks business and each loan carries certain risk that it

will not be repaid in accor4ance with its terms or that any underlying collateral will not be sufficient to assure

repayment This risk is affected by among other things

cash flow of the borrower and/or the project being financed

the changes and uncertainties as to the future value of the collateral in the case of

collateralized loan

the duration of the loan

the discount on the loan at the time of acquisition

the credit history of particular borrower and

changes in economic and industry conditions
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Non-performing loans covered under loss share agreements with the FDIC totaled $124.2 million and

Non-performing loans not covered under loss share agreements with the FDIC totaled $258.3 million as of

December 31 2011 Capital Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses with respect to loans it originates which

is reserve established through provision for loan losses charged to expense which management believes is

appropriate to provide for probable losses in Capital Bank loan portfolio The amount of this allowance is

determined by Capital Bank management team through periodic reviews As of December 31 2011 the allowance

on loans covered by loss share agreements with the FDIC was $11.8 million and the allowance on loans not covered

by loss share agreements with the FDIC was $22 million As of December 31 2011 the ratio of Capital Bank

allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans covered by loss share agreements with the FDIC was 9.5% and

the ratio of its allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans not covered by loss share agreements with the

FDIC was 8.9%

The application of the acquisition method of accounting to CBF completed acquisitions impacted

Capital Banks allowance for loan losses Under the acquisition method of accounting all loans were recorded in

financial statements at their fair value at the time of their acquisition and the related allowance for loan loss was

eliminated because the fair value at the time was determined by the net present value of the expected cash flows

taking into consideration estimated credit quality Capital Bank may in the future determine that the estimates of

fair value are too high in which case Capital Bank would provide for additional loan losses associated with the

acquired loans As of December 31 2011 the allowance for loan losses on purchased credit-impaired loan pools

totaled $26.3 million of which $11.8 million was related to loan pools covered by loss share agreements with the

FDIC and $14.5 million was related to loan pools not covered by loss share agreements with the FDIC

The determination of the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses inherently involves high

degree of subjectivity and requires Capital Bank to make significant estimates of current credit risks and future trends

all of which may undergo material changes Changes in economic conditions affecting borrowers new information

regarding existing loans that Capital Bank originates identification of additional problem loans originated by

Capital Bank and other factors both within and outside of managements control may require an increase in the

allowance for loan losses If current trends in the real estate markets continue Capital Banks management expects

that it will continue to experience increased delinquencies and credit losses particularly with respect to

construction land development and land loans In addition bank regulatory agencies periodically review Capital

Banks allowance for loan losses and may require an increase in the provision for probable loan losses or the

recognition of further loan charge-offs based on judgments different than those of management In addition if

charge-offs in future periods exceed the allowance for loan losses Capital Bank will need additional provisions to

increase the allowance for loan losses Any increases in the allowance for loan losses will result in decrease in net

income and possibly capital and may have material adverse effect on Capital Banks financial condition and

results of operations

Capital Bank continues to hold and acquire other real estate which has led to increased operating expenses and

vulnerability to additional declines in real property values

Capital Bank forecloses on and take title to the real estate serving as collateral for many of its loans as part

of its business Real estate owned by Capital Bank and not used in the ordinary course of its operations is referred to

as other real estate owned or OREO property At December 31 2011 Capital Bank had $168 million of

OREO Increased OREO balances have led to greater expenses as costs are incurred to manage and dispose of the

properties Capital Banks management expects that its earnings will continue to be negatively affected by various

expenses associated with OREO including personnel costs insurance and taxes completion and repair costs

valuation adjustments and other expenses associated with property ownership as well as by the funding costs

associated with assets that are tied up in OREO Any further decrease in real estate market prices may lead to

additional OREO write-downs with corresponding expense in Capital Banks statement of operations Capital

Banks management evaluates OREO properties periodically and writes down the carrying value of the properties if

the results of such evaluations require it The
expenses

associated with OREO and any further property write-downs

could have material adverse effect on Capital Banks financial condition and results of operations

Capital Bank is subject to environmental liability risk associated with lending activities

significant portion of Capital Banks loan portfolio is secured by real property During the ordinary

course of business Capital Bank may foreclose on and take title to properties securing certain loans In doing so

there is risk that hazardous or toxic substances could be found on these properties If hazardous or toxic

substances are found Capital Bank may be liable for remediation costs as well as for personal injury and property

32



damage Environmental laws may require Capital Bank to incur substantial expenses to address unknown liabilities

and may materially reduce the affected propertys value or limit the Banks ability to use or sell the affected

property In addition future laws or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing

laws may increase Capital Banks exposure to environmental liability Although Capital Bank has policies and

procedures to perform an environmental review before initiating any foreclosure action on nonresidential real

property these reviews may not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards The remediation costs

and any other financial liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could have material adverse effect on

Capital Banks financial condition and results of operations

Delinquencies and defaults in residential mortgages have increased creating backlog in courts and an

increase in industry scrutiny by regulators as well as resulting in proposed new laws and regulations governing

foreclosures Such laws and regulations might restrict or delay Capital Banks ability to foreclose and collect

payments for single family residential loans under the loss sharing agreements

Recent laws delay the initiation or completion of foreclosure proceedings on specified types of residential

mortgage loans some for limited period of time or otherwise limit the ability of residential loan servicers to take

actions that may be essential to preserve the value of the mortgage loans Any such limitations are likely to cause

delayed or reduced collections from mortgagors and generally increased servicing costs As servicer of mortgage

loans any restriction on Capital Banks ability to foreclose on loan any requirement that the Bank forego portion

of the amount otherwise due on loan or any requirement that the Bank modify any original loan terms will in some

instances require Capital Bank to advance principal interest tax and insurance payments which may negatively impact

its business financial condition liquidity and results of operations

In addition for the single family residential loans covered by the loss sharing agreements Capital Bank cannot

collect loss share payments until it liquidates the properties securing those loans These loss share payments could be

delayed by an extended foreclosure process including delays resulting from court backlog local or national

foreclosure moratoriums or other delays and these delays could have material adverse effect on Capital Banks

results of operations

Like other financial services institutions Capital Banks asset and liability structures are monetary in nature

Such structures are affected by variety offactors including changes in interest rates which can impact the value of

financial instruments held by the Bank

Like other financial services institutions Capital Bank has asset and liability structures that are essentially

monetary in nature and are directly affected by many factors including domestic and international economic and

political conditions broad trends in business and finance legislation and regulation affecting the national and

international business and financial communities monetary and fiscal policies inflation currency values market

conditions the availability and cost of short-term or long-term funding and capital the credit capacity or

perceived creditworthiness of customers and counterparties and the level and volatility of trading markets Such

factors can impact customers and counterparties of financial services institution and may impact the value of

financial instruments held by financial services institution

Capital Banks earnings and cash flows largely depend upon the level of its net interest income which

is the difference between the interest income it earns on loans investments and other interest earning assets and the

interest it pays on interest bearing liabilities such as deposits and borrowings Because different types of assets and

liabilities may react differently and at different times to market interest rate changes changes in interest rates can

increase or decrease Capital Bank net interest income When interest beanng liabilities mature or reprice more

quickly than interest earning assets in period an increase in interest rates could reduce net interest income

Similarly when interest earning assets mature or reprice more quickly and because the magnitude of repricing of

interest earning assets is often greater than interest bearing liabilities falling interest rates could reduce net

interest income

Additionally an increase in interest rates may among other things reduce the demand for loans and

Capital Banks ability to originate loans and decrease loan repayment rates while decrease in the general level of

interest rates may adversely affect the fair value of the Banks financial assets and liabilities and its ability to realize

gains on the sale of assets decrease in the general level of interest rates may affect Capital Bank through among

other things increased prepaymeiits on its loan and mortgage-backed securities portfolios and increased competition

for deposits
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Accordingly changes in the level of market interest rates affect Capital Banks net yield on interest earning

assets loan origination volume loan and mortgage-backed securities portfolios and its overall results Changes in

interest rates may also have significant impact on any future mortgage loan origination revenues Historically there

has been an inverse correlation between the demand for mortgage loans and interest rates Mortgage origination

volume and revenues usually decline during periods of rising or high interest rates and increase during periods of

declining or low interest rates Changes in interest rates also have significant impact on the carrying value of

significant percentage of the assets on Capital Banks balance sheet Interest rates are highly sensitive to many
factors beyond the Banks managements control including general economic conditions and policies of various

governmental and regulatory agencies particularly the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System which we

refer to as the Federal Reserve Capital Banks management cannot predict the nature and timing of the Federal

Reserves interest rate policies or other changes in monetary policies an-d economjc conditions which could

negatively impact the Banks financial performance

Capital Bank has benefited in recent periods from favorable interest rate environment but management
believes that this environment cannot be sustained indefinitely and interest rates would be expected to rise as the

economy recovers strengthening economy would be expected to cause the Board of Governors of the Federal

Reserve to increase short term interest rates which would increase Capital Bank borrowing costs

The fair value of Capital Banks investment securities can fluctuate due to market conditton out of

managements controL

As of December 31 2011 approximately 94% of Capital Banks investment securities portfolio was

comprised of U.S government agency and sponsored enterprises obligations U.S government agency and

sponsored enterprises mortgage-backed securities and securities of municipalities As of December 31 2011 the fair

value of Capital Banks investment securities portfolio ws approxim4tely $827.4 million Factors beyond Capital

Banks control can significantly influence the fair value of securities in its portfolio and can cause potential adverse

changes to the fair value of these securities These factors include but are not limited to rating agency downgrades

of the securities defaults by the issuer or with respect to the underlying securities changes in market interest

rates and continued instability in the credit markets In addition Capital Bank has historically taken conservative

investment posture concentrating on government issuances of short duration In the future Capital Bank may seek

to increase yields through more aggressive investment strategies which may include greater percentage of

corporate issuances and structured credit products Any of these mentioned factors among others could cause

other-than-temporary impairments in future periods and result in realized loss which could have material adverse

effect on Capital Banks business The process for determining whether impairment is other-than-temporary usually

requires complex subjective judgments about the future financial performance of the issuer and any collateral

underlying the security in order to assess the probability of receiving all contractual principal and interest payments

on the security Because of changing economiô and market conditions affecting issuers and the performance of the

underlying collateral Capital Bank may recognize realized and/or unrealized losses in future periods which could have

an adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations

Capital Bank has sign jflcant deferred tax asset that may not be fully realized in the future

Capital Bank net deferred tax asset totaled $1642 million as of December 31 2011 The ultimate

realization of deferred tax asset is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods prior

to the expiration of the related net operating losses If Capital Banks estimates and assumptions about future

taxable income are not accurate the value of its deferred tax asset may not be recoverable and may result in

valuation allowance that would impact the Bank earnings

Recent market disruptions have caused increased liquidity risks and jf Capital Bank is unable to maintain sufficient

liquidity it may not be able to meet the cash flow requirements of its depositors and borrowers

The recent disruption and illiquidity in the credit markets have generally made potential funding sources

more difficult to access less reliable and more expensive Capital Banks liquidity is generally used to make loans

and to repay deposit liabilities as they become due or are demanded by customers and further deterioration in the credit

markets or prolonged period without improvement of market liquidity could present significant challenges in the

management of Capital Banks liquidity and.could adversely affect its business results of operations and prospects For

example if as result of sudden decline in depositor confidence resulting from negative market conditions
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substalitial number of bank customers tried to withdraw their bank deposits simultaneously Capital Banks reserves

may not be able to cover the withdrawals

Furthermore an inability to increase Capital Banksdeposit base at all or at attractive rates would impede

its ability to fund the Bank continued growth which could have an adverse effect on the Banks business results

of operations and financial condition Collateralize4 borrowings such as advances from the FHLB are an important

potential source of liquidity Capital Bank borrowing capacity is generally dependent on the value of the

collateral pledged to the FHLB An adverse regulatory change could reduce Capital Banks borrowing capacity or

eliminate certain types of collateral and could otherwise modify ven eliminate the Banks access to FHLB
advances Federal Fund line borrowings and discount window advances Liquidity may also be adversely

impacted by bank supervisory and regulatory authorities mandating changes in the composition of Capital Bank

balance sheet to asset classes that are less liqui4. Any such change or termination may have an adverse effect on

Capital Banks liquidity

Capital Banks access to other funding sources could be impaired by factors that are not specific to the Bank
such as disruption in the financial markets or negative views and expectations about the prospects for the financial

services industry in light of recent turmoil faced by banking organizations and the unstable credit markets Capital

Bank may need to incur additional debt in the future to achieve its business objectives in connection with future

acquisitions or for other reasons Aily borrowIngs if sought may not be available to Capital Bank or if available

may not be on favorable tenn Without sufficient liquidity Capital Bank may not be able to meet the cash flow

requirements of its depositors and borrowers which could have material adverse effect on the Banks financial

condition and results of operations

Capital Bank may not be able to retain or develop strong core deposit base or other low-cost funding sources

Capital Bank expects to depend on checking savings and money market deposit account balances and other

forms of customer deposits as its primary source of funding for the Banks lending activities Capital Banks future

growth will largely depend on its ability to retain and grow strong deposit base Because 43% of Capital Banks

deposits as of December 31 2011 were titne deposits it may prove harder to maintain and grow the Banks deposit

base than would otherwise be the case Capital Bank is also working to transition certain of its customers to lower

cost traditional banking services as higher cost funding sources such as high interest certificates of deposit mature

There may be competitive pressures to pay higher interest rÆtŁs on deposits which could increase funding costs and

compress net interest margins Customers may nöttthnsition to lower yielding savings or investment products or

continue their business with Capital Bank which could adversely affect its operations In addition with recent

concerns about bank failures customers have become concemed about the extent to which their deposits are

insured by the FDIC particularly customers that may maintain deposits in excess of insured limits Customers may
withdraw deposits in an effort to ensure that the amount that they have on deposit with Capital Bank is fully insured

and may place them in other institutions or make investments that are perceived as being more secure Further even if

Capital Bank is able to grow and maintain its deposit base the account and deposit balances can decrease when

customers perceive alternative investments such as the stock market as providing better risk/return tradeoff If

customers move money out of bank deposits and into other investments or similar products at other institutions

that may provide higher rate of return Capital Bank could lose relatively lo cost source of funds increasing its

funding costs and reducing the Banks net interest income and net income Additionally any such loss of funds

could result in lower loan originations which could materially negatively impact Capital Banks growth strategy

and results ofopçrations

Capital Bank operates in highly competitive industry and faces signficant competition from other financial

institutions and financial services providers which may decrease its growth or profits

Consumer and commercial banking is highly competitive Capital Banks market contains not only large

number of community and regional banks but also significant presence of the countrys largest commercial banks

Capital Bank competes withother state and national financial institutions as well as savings and loan associations

savings banks and credit unions for depusits and loans In addition Capital Bank competes with financial

intermediaries such as consumer finance companies mortgage banking companies insurance companies securities

firms mutual funds and several govemment agencies as well asmajor retailers all actively engaged in providing

variotis types of loans and other financial services Some of these competitors may have long history of successful

operations in Capital Banks markets greater ties to local businesses and more expansive banking relationships

as well as better established depositor bases Competitors with greater resources may possess an advantage by being
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capable of maintaining numerous banking locations in more convenient sites operating more ATMs and

conducting extensive promotional and advertising campaigns or operating more developed Internet platform

The financial services industry could become even more competitive as result of legislative regulatory

and technological changes and continued consolidation Banks securities firms and insurance companies can merge
under the umbrella Of financial holding company which can offer virtually any type of financial service including

banking securities underwriting insurance both agency and underwriting and merchant banking Increased

competition among financial services companies due to the recent consolidation of certain competing financial

institutions may adversely affect Capital Banks ability to market its products and services Also technology has

lowered bathers to entry and made it possible for banks to compete in Capital Banks market without retail

footprint by offering competitive rates as well as non-banks to offer products and services traditionally provided by

banks Many of Capital Banks competitors have fewer regulatory constraints and may have lower cost structures

Additionally due to their size many competitors may offer broader range of products and services as well as

better pricing for certain products and services than Capital Bank can

Capital Banks ability to compete successfully depends on anumber of factors including

the ability to develop maintain and build upon long term customer

relationships based on quality service and high ethical standards

the ability to attract and retain qualified employees to operate the Banks

business effectively

the ability to expand the Banks market position

the scope relevance and pricing of products and services offered to meet

customer needs and demands

the rate at which the Bank introduces new products and services relative to

its competitors

customer satisfaction with the Bank level of service and

industry and general economic trends

Failure to perform in
any of these areas could significantly weaken Capital Banks competitive position which

could adversely affect its growth and profitability which in turn could harm the Banks business financial condition

and results of operations

Capital Bank may be adversely affected by the soundness of other financial institutions

Capital Banks ability to engage in routine funding ançl other transactions could be adversely affected by

the actions and commercial soundness of other financial institutions Financial services institutions are interrelated

as result of trading clearing counterparty or other relationships Defaults by or even rumors or questions about

one or more financial institutions or the financial services industry generally may lead to market-wide liquidity

problems and losses of depositor creditor and counterparty confidence and could lead to losses or defaults by us or

by other institutions

Capital Bank is subject to losses due to the errors or fraudulent behavior of employees or thirdparties

Capital Bank is exposed to many types of operational risk including the risk of fraud by employees and

outsiders clerical recordkeeping errors- and transactional errors Capital Banks business is dependent on its

employees as well as third party service providers to process large number of increasingly complex transactions

Capital Bank could be materially adversely affected if one of its employees causes significant operational

breakdown or failure either as result of human error or where an individual purposefully sabotages or fraudulently

manipulates the Banks operations or systems When Capital Bank originates loans it relies upon information supplied

by loan applicants and third parties including the information contained in the loan application property appraisal and

title information if applicable and employment and income documentation provided by third parties If any of this

information is misrepresented and such misrepresentation is not detected prior to loan funding Capital Bank generally

bears the risk of loss associated with the misrepresentation Any of these occurrences could result in diminished

ability of Capital Bank to operate its business potential liability to customers reputational damage andregulatory

intervention which could negatively impact the Banks business financial condition and results of operations
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Capital Bank is dependent on its information technology and telecommunications systems and third-party

servicers and systems failures interruptions or breaches of security could have an adverse effrct on the Banks

financial condition and results of operations

Capital Banks business is highly dependent on the successful and uninterrupted functioning of its

information technology and telecommunications systems
and third-party servicers Capital Bank outsources many of

its major systems such as data processing
loan servicing and deposit processing systems The failure of these

systems or the termination of third-party softWare license or service agreement on which any of these systems is

based could interrupt the Bank operations
Because Capital Banks information technology and telecommunications

systems interface with and depend on third party systems
the Bank could experience

service denials if demand for

such services exceeds capacity or such third party systems fail or experience interruptions If sustained or repeated

system failure or service demal could result in deterioration of Capital Banks ability to process new and renewal

loans gather deposits and provide customer service compromise the Bank ability to operate effectively damage

its reputation result in loss of customer business and/or subject the Bank to additional regulatory scrutiny and

possible financial liability any of which could have material adverse effect on the Banks financial condition and

results of operations

In addition Capital Bank provides its customers the ability to bank remotely including online over the

Internet The secure transmission of confidential information is critical element of remote banking Capital Banks

network óould be vulnerable to unauthorized access computer viruses phishing schemes spam attacks human

error natural disasters power loss and other security breaches Capital Bank may be required to spend significant

capital and other resources to protect against the threat of security breaches and computer viruses or to alleviate

problems caused by security breaches or viruses To the extent that Capital Bank activities or the activities of its

customers involve the storage and transmission of confidential information security breaches and viruses could

expose
the Bank to claims litigation and other possible liabilities Any inability to prevent security breaches or

computer viruses could also cause existing customers to lose confidence in Capital Banks systems and could

adversely affect its reputation results of operations and ability to attract and maintain customers and businesses In

addition security breach could also subject Capital Bank to additional regulatory scrutiny expose the Bank to civil

litigation and possible financial liability and cause reputational damage

Hurricanes or other adverse weather events would negatively affect Capital Banks local economies or disrupt its

operations which would have an adverse effect on the Banks business or results of operations

Capital Banks market areas in the southeastern region of the United States are susceptible to natural disasters

such as hurricanes tornadoes tropical storms other severe weather events and related flooding and wind damage and

manmade disasters such as the 2010 oil spill in the Gulf of Mexico Capital Banks market areas in Tennessee

are susceptible to natural disasters such as tornadoes and floods These natural disasters could negatively impact

regional economic conditions cause decline in the value or destruction of mortgaged properties and an increase in

the risk of delinquencies foreclosures or loss on loans originated by Capital Bank damage its banking facilities

and offices and negatively impact the Banks growth strategy
Such weather events can disrupt operations

result in

damage to properties and negatively affect the local economies in the markets where Capital Bank operates
The

Banks management cannot predict whether or to what extent damage that may be caused by future hurricanes or

tornadoes will affect Capital Banks operations or the economies in its current or future market areas hnt such

weather events could negatively impact economiC cOnditions in these regions and result in decline in local loan

demand and loan originations decline in the value or destruction of properties securing Capital Banks loans and

an increase in delinquencies foreclosures or loan losses Capital Banksbusiness or results of operations may be

adversely affected by these and other negative effects of natural or manmade disasters

Risks Relating to Capital Banks Growth Sfrategy

Capital Bank may not be able to effectively manage its growth

Capital Bank future operating results depend to large extent on its ability to successfully manage its

rapid growth Capital Bank rapid growth has placed and it may continue to place significant demands on its

operations and management Whether through additional acquisitions or organic growth Capital Bank current plan

to expand its business is dependent upon

the ability of its officers and other key employees to continue to implement

and improve its operational credit financial management and other

internal risk controls and -processes
and its reporting systems and

procedures in order to manage growing number of client relationships
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to scale its technology platform

to integrate its acquisitions and develop consistent policies throughout the

various businesses and

to manage growing number of client relationships

Capital Bank may not successfully implement improvements to or integrate its management information

and control systems procedures and processes in an efficient or timely manner and may discover deficiencies in

existing sysXems and controls In particular Capital Banks controls and procedures must be.able to accommodate

an increase in expected loan volume and the infrastructure that comes with nçw branches and banks Thus Capital

Banks growth strategy may divert management from its existing businesses and may require the Bank to incur

additional expenditures to expand its administrative and operational infrastructure and if Capital Bank is unable to

effectively manage and grow its banking franchise its businessand the Banks consolidated results of operations and

financial condition could be materially and adversely impacted. In addition if Capital Bank is unable to manage

future expansion in its operations the Bank may experience compliance and operational problems have to slow the

pace of growth or have to incur additional expenditures beyond current projections to support such growth any one of

which could adversely affect Capital Banks business

Many of Capital Banks new activities and expansion plans require regulatory approvals andfailure to obtain them

may restrict its growth

Capital Bank intends to complement and expand its business by pursuing strategic acquisitions of banks and

other financial institutions Generally any acquisition of target financial institutions or assets by CBF or Capital

Bank will require approval by and cooperation from number of governmental regulatory -agencies possibly

including the Federal Reserve the 0CC and the FDIC as well as state banking regulators In acting on such

applications of approval federal banking regulators consider amOng other factors

the effect of the acquisition on competition

the financial condition and future prospects of the applicant and the banks involved

the managerial resources of the applicant and the banks involved

the- convenience and needs of the community including the record of performance under the

Community Reinvestment Act which we refer to as the CRA and

the effectiveness of the applicant in combating money laundering activities

Such regulators could deny an application based on the above criteria or other considerations or the

regulatory approvals may not be granted on terms that are acceptable to CBF or Capital Bank For example Capital

Bank could be required to sell branches as condition.to receiving regulatory approvals and such condition may

not be acceptable to CBF or Capital Bank ox may reduce the benefit of any acquisition

The success of future transactions will depend on CBFs ability to successfully identtfy and consummate

transactions with target financial institutions that meet its investrn ent criteria Because of the sign jficant competition

for acquisition opportunities and the limited number of potential targets CBF may not be able to successfully

consummate acquisitions necessary to grow its business

The success of future transactions will depend on CBFs ability to successfully identify and consummate

transactions with target financial institutions that meet its investment criteria There are significant risks associated

with CBFs ability to identify and successfully consummate transactions with target financial institutions There are

limited number of acquisition opportunities and CBF expects to encounter intense competition from other banking

organizations competing for acquisitions and alsoftxvm other investment funds and- entities looking to acquire

financial institutions Many of these entities are well established and have extensive experience in identifying and

effecting acquisitions directly or through affiliates Many of these competitors possess ongoing banking operations

with greater technical humati and other resources than CBF and capital Bank do and CBSs financial resources

will be relatively limited when contrasted with those of many of these competitors These organizations may be

able to achieve greater cost savings through consolidating operations than CBF could CBFs ability to compete in

acquiring certain sizable target institutions -will be limited by its available financial resources These inherent

competitive limitations give others an advantage in pursuing the acquisition of certain target financial

institutions In addition increased competition may drive up the-prices for the types of acquisitions CBF intends to

target which would niake the identification and successful consummation of acquisition opportunities more
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difficult Competitors may be willing to pay more for target financial institutions than CBF believes are justified

which could result in CBF having to pay more for target financial institutions than it prefers or to forego target

financial institutions As result of the foregoing CBF may be unable to successfully identify and consummate

future transactions to grow its business on commercially attractive terms or at all

Because the institutions CBF intends to acquire may have distressed assets CBF may not be able to realize the

value it predicts from these assets or make sufficient provision for future losses in the value of or accurately

estimate the future write-downs taken in respect of these assets

Delinquencies and losses in the loan portfolios and other assets of financial instititions that CIF acquires

may exceed its initial forecasts developed during the due diligence investigation prior to acquiring those institutions

Even if CBF conducts extensive due diligence on an entity it decides to acquire this diligence may not reveal all

material issues that may affect particular entity The dligeiice prOcess in FDIC-assisted transactiOns is also

expedite4 due to the short acquisition timeline that is typical for these depository institutions If during the diligence

process CBF fails to identify issues specific to an entity or the environment in which the .entity operates CBF may
be forced to later write down or write off assets restructure its operations or incur impairment or other charges that

could result in other reporting losses Any of these events could adversely affect the financial con4ition liquidity

capital position and value of institutions CBF
acquires

and of CBF as whole If any of the foregoing adverse

events occur with respect to one subsidiarythey may adversely affect other of CBFs subsidiaries or the CBF as

whole Current economic conditiotis have created an uncertain environment with respect to asset valuations and

there is no certainty that CBF will be able to sell assets of target institutions if it determines it would be in its best

interests to do so Theinstitutions CBF will target may have substantial amounts of asset classes for which there is

currently limited or no marketability

The success of future transactions will depend on CBFs ability to successfully combize the target financial

institutions business with CBFs existing banking business and if CBF experiences difficulties with the integration

process the aAticipated benefits of the acquisition may net be realized fully or at all or may take longer to

realize than expected

The success of future transactions will depend in part on CBFs ability to successfully combine the target

financial institutions business with its existing banking business As with any acquisition involving financial

institutions theft may be business disruptions that result in the loss of customers or cause customers to remove their

accounts and move their business to competing banking institutions It is possible that the integration process could

result in additional expenses in connection with the integration processes and the disruption of ongoing business or

inconsistencies in standards controls procedures and policies that adversely affect Capital Bank ability to

maintain relationships with clients customers depositors and employees or to achieve the anticipated benefits of the

acquisition Integration efforts including integration of the target financial institution systems into Capital Bank

systems may divert the Bank management attention and resources and CBF may be unable to develop or

experience prolonged delays in the development of the systems necessary to operate its acquired banks such as

financial reporting platform or human resources reporting platform call center If CBF experiences difficulties

with the integration process the anticipated benefits of any future transaction may not be realized fully or at all or

may take longer to realize than expected Additionally CBF and Capital Bank may be unable to recognize synergies

operating efficiencies and/or expected benefits within expected timeframes within expected cost projections or at

all CBF may also not be able to preserve the goodwill of the acquired financial institution

Projected operating results for entities to be acquired by CBF may be inaccurate and may vaiysigitf icantly from

actual results

CBF will generally establish the pricing of transactions and the capital structure of entities to be acquired

on the basis of financial projections for such entities In general projected operating results will be based primarily

on management judgments In all cases projections are only estimates of future results that are based upon

assumptions made at the time that the projections are developed and the projected results may vary significantly

from actual results General economic political and market conditions which are not predictable can have material

adverse impact on the reliability of such projections In the event that the projections made in connection with CBFs

acquisitions or future projections with respect to new acquisitions are not accurate such inaccuracies could

materially and adversely affect Capital Banks business and CBFs consolidated results of operations and financial

condition

Changes in accounting standards may affect how wereport our financial condition and results of operations
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Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial condition

and results of operations From time to time the Financial Accounting Standards Board which we refer to as the

FASB or other regulatory authorities change the financial accounting and reporting standards that govern the

preparation of financial statements These changes can be hard to predict and can materially impact how we record

and report our financial condition and results of operations In some cases we could be required to apply new or

revised standard retroactively resulting in us restating prior period financial statements

Risks Relating to the Regulation of Capital Banks Industry

Capital Bank operates in highly regulated indust.y and the kms and regulations that govern its operations

corporate governance executive compensation and financial accounting or reporting includrng changes in them

or Capital Banks failure to comply with them may adversely affect us

Capital Bank is stibject to extensive regulation and supervision that govern almost all aspects of its

operations Intended to protect customers depositors consumers deposit insurance funds and the stability Of the U.S

financial system these laws and regulations among other matters prescribe minimum capital requirements impose

limitations on thO COmpany and Capital Banks business activities limit the dividend or distributions that Capital

Bank or the Company can pay restrict the ability of institutiOns to guarantee Capital Banks debt and impose certain

specific accounting requirements that may be more restrictive and may result in greater or earlier charges to earnings

orreductions in the Banks capital than GAAP Compliance with laws and regulations can be difficult and costly and

changes to laws and regulations often impose additiOnal compliance costs Capital Bank is currently facing increased

regulation and supervision of the industry as result of thO financial crisis in the banking and financial markets Such

additional regulation and supervision may increase Capital Banks costs and limit its ability to pursue business

opportunities Further the Company CBF or Capital Banks failure to comply with these laws and regulations

even if the failure was inadvertent or reflects difference in interpretation could subject the Bank to restrictions on

its business activities fines and other penalties any of which could adversely affect its results of operations capital

base and the price
of CBF or the Company securities Further any new laws rules and regulations could make

compliance more difficult or expensive or otherwise adversely affect Capital Banks business and financial condition

Capital Bank is periodically subject to examination and scrutiny by number of banking agencies and depending

upon the findings and determinations of these agencies the Bank may be required to make adjustments to its

business that could adversely affect iL

Federal and state banking agencies periodically conduct examinations of Capital Bank business including

compliance with applicable laws and regulations If as result of an examination federal banking agency

were to determine that the financial condition capital resources asset quahty asset concentration earmngs prospects

management liquidity sensitivity to market risk or other aspects of any of Capital Bank operations has

become unsatisfactory or that the Bank or its management is in violation of any law or regulation it could take

number of different remedial actions as it deems appropriate These actions include the power to enjom unsafe or

unsoLnd practices to require
affirmative actions to correct any conditions resulting from any violation or practice

to issue an administrative order that can be judicially enforced to direct an increase in Capital Banks capital to

restrict its growth to change the asset composition of its portfolio or balance sheet to assess civil monetary

penalties against its officers or directors to remove officers and directors and if it is concluded that such

conditions cannot be corrected or there is an imminent risk of loss to depositors tO terminate its deposit insurance

If Capital Bank becomes subject to such regulatory actions its business results of operations and reputation may be

negatively impacted

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 may have material

effect on Capital Banks operations

On July 21 2010 President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection which we refer to as the Dodd-Frank Act which imposes significant regulatory and compliance

changes The key effects of the Dodd-Frank Act on Capital Banks business are

changes to regulatory capital requirements

exclusion of hybrid securities including trust preferred securities issued on or after May 19

2010 from Tier capital

creation of new government regulatory agencies such as theFinancial Stability Oversight

Council which will oversee systemic risk and the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
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which will develop and enforce rules for bank and non-bank providers of consumer financial

products

potential limitations on federal preemption

changes to deposit insurance assessments

regulation of debit interchange fees the Bank earns

changes in retail banking regulations including potential limitations on certain fees the Bank

may charge and

changes in regulation of consumer mortgage loan origination and risk retention

In addition the Dodd Frank Act restricts the ability of banks to engage in certain proprietary trading or to

sponsor or invest in private equity or hedge funds The Dodd-Frank Act also contains provisions designed to limit

the ability of insured depository institutions their holding companies and their affiliates to conduct certain swaps and

derivatives activities and to take certain principal positions in financial instruments

Some provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act became effectiye immediately upon its enactment Many

provisions however will require regulations to be promulgated by various federal agencies in order to be

implemented some of which have been proposed by the applicable federal agencies The provisions of the Dodd-

Frank Act may have unintended effects which will not be clear until implementation The changes resulting from

the Dodd-Frank Act may impact the profitability of Capital Banks business activities require changes to certain of

its business practices impose upon the Bank more stringent capital liquidity afid leverage requirements or

otherwise adversely affect Capital Banks business These changes may also require Capital Bank to invest significant

management attention and resources to evaluate and make any changes necessary to comply with new statutory and

regulatory requirements Failure to comply with the new requirements may negatively impact Capital Bank results of

operations and financial condition While management cannot predict what effect any presently contemplated or

future changes in the laws or regulations or their interpretations would have on Capital Bank or the Company these

changes could be materially adverse to the Company Capital Bank and CBF

The shortterm and long-term impact of the new regulatory capital standards and the forthcoming new capital

rules is uncertain

On September 12 2010 the Group of Governors and Heads ofSupervision the oversight body of the Base

Committee on Banking Supervision announced an agreement to strengthened set of capital requirements for

internationally active banlung organizations in the United States and around the world known as Basel III Basel

III increases the requirements for minimum common equity minimum Tier capital and minimum total capital to

be phased in over time until fully phased in by January 2019

Various provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act increase the capital requirements of bank holding companies

such as the Company and non-bank financial companies that are supervised by the Federal Reserve The

leverage and risk-based capital ratios of these entities may not be lower than the leverage and risk-based capital ratios

for insured depository institutions In particular bank holding companies many of which have long relied on trust

preferred securities as component of their regulatory capital will no longer be permitted to count trust preferred

securities toward their Tier capital While the Basel III changes and other regulatory capital requirements will

likely result in generally higher regulatory capital standards it is difficult at this time to predict how any new

standards will ultimately be applied to the Company CBF and Capital Bank

The FDICs restoration plan and the related increased assessment rate could adversely affect Capital Banks

earnings

The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured depository institutions such as Capital Bank up to applicable

limits The amount of particular institutions deposit insurance assessment is based on that institutions risk

classification under an FDIC risk-based assessment system An institutions risk classification is assigned based on its

capital levels and the level of supervisory concern the institution poses to its regulators Market developments have

significantly depleted the deposit insurance fund of the FDIC which we refer to as the DIF and reduced the ratio

of reserves to insured deposits As result of recent economic conditions and the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act

the FDIC has increased the deposit insurance assessment rates and thus raised deposit premiums for insured

depository institutions If these increases are insufficient for the DIF to meet its funding requirements there may
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need to be further specia assessments or increases in deposit insurance premiums Capital Bank is generally unable

to control the amount of premiums that it is required to pay for FDIC insurance If there are additional bank or

financial institution failures Capital Bank may be required to pay even higher FDIC premiums than the recently

increased levels Any future additional assessments increases or required prepayments in FDIC insurance premiums

may materially adversely affect results of operations including by reducing Capital Banks profitability or limiting

its ability to pursue certain business opportunities

Capital Bank is subject to federal and state andfair lending laws and failure to comply with these laws could lead

to material penalties

Federal and state fair lending laws and regulations such as the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair

Housing Act impose nondiscriminatory lending requirements on financial institutions The Department of Justice

Consumer Financial Proteºtion Bureau and other federal and state agencies are responsible for enforcing these laws

and regulations Private parties may alsØ have the ability to challenge an institutions performance under fair lending

laws in private class action litigatiOn successful challenge to Capital Banks performance under the fair lending

laws and regulations could adversely impact the Banks rating under the Community Reinvestment Act and result

in wide variety of sanctions including the required payment of damages and civil money penalties injunctive

relief imposition of restrictions on merger and acquisition activity and restrictions on expansion activity which

could negatively impact Capital Bank reputation business financial condition and results of operations

Capital Bankfaces risk of noncompliance and enforcement action with the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti..money

laundering statutes and regulations

The federal Bank Secrecy Act the Uniting and Strengthening Amenca by Providing Appropriate Tools

Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 which we refer to as the PATRIOT Act and other laws

and regulations require financial institutions among other duties to institute and maintain effective anti money

laundering programs and file suspicious activity and currency transaction reports as appropriate The federal

Financial Crimes Enforcement Network established by the Treasury Department to administer the Bank

Secrecy Act is authorized to impose significant civil money penalties for violations of those requirements and has

recently engaged in coordinated enforcement efforts with the individual federal banking regulators as well as the

U.S Department of Justice Drug Enforcement Administration and Internal Revenue Service There is also increased

scrutiny of compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of Foreign Assets Control which we refer to as

OFAC If Capital Banks policies procedures and systems are deemed deficient or the policies procedures and

systems of the financial institutions that CBF hasalready acquired or may acquire in the future are deficient Capital

Bank would be subject to liability including fines and regulatory actions such as restrictions on its ability to pay

dividends and the necessity to obtain regulatory approvals to proceed withcertain aspects of its business plan

including its acquisition plans which would negatively impact its business financial condition and results of

operations Failure to maintain and implement adequate programs to combat money laundering and terrOrist

financing could also have serious reputational consequences for Capital Bank

Federal state and local consumer lending laws may restrict Capital Banks ability to originate certain mortgage

loans or increase the Banks risk of liability with respect to such loans and could increase its cost of doing

business

Federal state and local laws have been adopted that are intended to eliminate certain lending practices

considered predatory These laws prohibit practices such as steering borrowers away from more affordable

products selling unnecessary insurance to borrowers repeatedly refinancing loans and making loans without

reasonable expectation that the borrowers will be able to repay the loans irrespective of the value of the

underlying property It is Capital Banks policy not tO make predatory loans but these laws create the potential for

liability with respect to the Banks lending and loan investment activities They increase Capital Banks cost of

doing business and ultimately may prevent the Bank from making certain loans and cause it to reduce the average

percentage rate or the points and fees on loans that it does make

The Federal Reserve may require the Company or CBF and its other subsidiaries to commit capital resources to

support Capital Bank

The Federal Reserve which examines the Company and CBF requires bank holding company to act as

source of financial and managerial strength to subsidiary bank and to commit resources to support such
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subsidiary bank Under the source of strength doctrine The Federal Reserve may require bank holding

company to make capital injections into troubled subsidiary bank and may charge the bank holding company with

engaging in unsafe and unsound practices for fitilure to commit resoUrces to such subsidiary bank In addition the

Dodd-Frank Act directs the federal bank regulators to require that all companies that directly or indirectly control an

insured depository institution serve as source Qf strength for the institution Under these requirements in the future

the Company or CBF could be required to provide financial assistance to Capital Bank if it experiences financial

distress

capital injection may be requiredat times when the Company or CBF do not have the resources to

provide it and therefore the Company or CBF may be required to borrow the funds hvthe event of bank holding

companys bankruptcy the bankruptcy trustee will assume any commitment by the holding company to federal bank

regulatory agency to maintain the capial of asubsidiary bank Moreover bankruptcy law provides that claims based

on any such commitment will be entitled to it priority of payment over the claims of the holding cOmpanys

general unsecured creditors including the holders 6f its ilote obligations Thus any borrowing that must be done by

the holding company in order to make the required capital injection becomes more difficult and expensice and will

adversely impact the holding companys cash flows financial condition results of operations and prospects

Stockholders may he deemed to beading in conØert or otherwise in control of Capital Bank which could impose

prior approval requirements and result in adverse regulatory consequences for such holders

The Company and CBF are bank holding ornpanies regulated by the Fral Reserve Accoring1y

acquisition of control of CBF or the Company or bank subsidiary requires prior regulatory notice or approval

With certain limited exceptions federal regulations prohibit potential investors from directly or indirectly

acquiring ownership or control p1 or the power to vote more than 10% more than 5% if the acquirer is bank

holding company of any class of our voting securities or obtaining the ability to control
ink any manner the

election of majority of directors or otherwise exercising controlling influence over CBF or Capital Banks

management or policies without prior notice or applicationto and approval of the Federal Reserve under the

Change in Bank COntrol Act or the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended which we refer to as the

BHCA Any bank holding company or foreign bank with U.S presence also is required to obtain-the approval of

the Federal Reserve under the BHCA to acquire -or retain more than 5% of the Company or CBFs outstanding voting

securities

In addition to -regulatory apprdals any stockholder deemed to control the Company or CBF for

purposes of the BHCA would become subject to investment and activity restrictions and ongoing regulation and

supervision Any entity owning 25% or more of any class of the Company or CBFs voting securities Or lesser

percentage if such holder or group
otherwise exercises controlling influence over the Company or CBF may be

subject to regulation as bank holding cOmpany in accordance with the BHCA.- In additioii such holder may be

required to divest 5% or more of the voting securities of investments that may be deemed incompatible with bank

holding company status such as an investment in company engaged in non-financial activities

Regulatory determination of control of depository institution or holding company is based on all of the

relevant facts and circumstances In certain instances stockholders may be determinedto be acting in concert and

their shares aggregated for purposes of determining control for purposes of the Change in Bank Control Act Acting

in concert generally mears knowing participation in jOint- activity or parallel action towards the common goal

of acquiring control of bank or parent company whether or not pursuant to an express agreement How this

definition is applied in individual circumstances can vary among the varioiis federal bank regulatory agencies and

cannot always be predicted with certainty Many factors can lead to finding of acting in concert including whether

stockholders are commonly controlled or managed

stockholders are parties to an oral or written agreement or understanding regarding the

acquisition voting or transfer of control of voting securities of bank or bank holding

company

the holders each own stock in bank and are also management officials controlling

stockholders partners or trustees of another company or

both holder and controlling stockholder partner trustee or management official of the

holder own equity in the bank or bank holding company
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The Companys or CBFs common stock owned by holders determined by bank regulatory agency to be

acting in concert would be aggregated for purposes of determining whether those holders have control of bank

or bank holding company for Change in Bank Control Act purposes Because the control regulations under the

Change in Bank Control Act and the BHCA are complex potential investors should seek advice from qualified

banking counsel before making an investment in the Companys common stock

Risks Related to CBFs Common Stock Proposed to by Issues in the Merger

The market price of CBFs class common stock could decline due to the large number of outstanding shares

of its common stock eligible forfuture sale

Sales of substantial amounts of CBF Class common stock in the public market following the initial

public offering or in future offerings or the
perception that these sales could occur could cause the market price of

CBF Class common stock to decline These sales could also make it more difficult for CBF to sell equity or

equity related securities in the future at time and place that CBF deems
appropriate

In addition CBF intends to file registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act to register

additional shares of Class common stock for issuance under CBFs 2010 Equity Incentive Plan CBF may issue all

of these shares without any action or approval.by CBFs stockholders and these shares once issued including upon
exercise of outstanding options will be available for sale into the public market subject to the restrictions described

above if applicable to the holder Any shares issued in connection with acquisitions the exercise of stock options or

otherwise would dilute the percentage ownership held by investors who
acquire CBF shares in the merger

If shares of CBFs Class non-voting common stock are converted into shares of Class common stock your

voting power subsequent to the merger will be diluteL

Generally holders of CBFs Class non-voting common stock have no voting power and have no right

to participate in any meeting of stockholders or to have notice thereof However holders of Class non-voting
common stock that are converted into Class common stock will have all the voting rights of the other holders of

Class common stock Class non-voting common stock is not convertible in the hands of the initial holder However
transferee unaffiliated with the initial holder that receives Class non-voting common stock subsequent to

transfer permitted by CBFs certificate of incorporation may elect to convert each share of Class non-voting

common stock into one share of Class common stock Subsequent to the merger upon conversion of any Class

non-voting common stock your voting power will bç diluted in proportion to the decrease in your ownership of.the

total outstanding Class common stock

Tue market price of CBF Class common stock maybe volatile which could cause the value of an investment

in CBFs Class common stock to decline

The market price of CBFs Class common stock may fluctuate substantially due to variety of factors

many of which are beyond our control including

general market conditions

domestic and mternational economic factors unrelated to CBF or Capital Bank performance

actual or anticipated fluctuations in CBF or Capital Bank quarterly operating results

changes in or failure to meet publicly disclosed expectations as to CBF or Capital Banks future financial

performance

downgrades in securities analysts estimates of CBF or Capital Banks financial performance or lack of

research and reports by dus analysts

changes in market valuations or earnings of similar companies

any future sales of CBFs common stock or other securities and

additions or departures of key personnel

The stock markets in general have experienced substantial volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating

performance of particular companies These types of broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price
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of CBFs Class common stock hrthe past stockholders have sometimes instituted securities class action litigation

against companies following periods of volatility in the market price of their securities Any similar litigation against

the Company or CBF could result in substantial costs divert managements attention and resources and harm our

business or results of operations For example we are currently operating in and have benefited from protracted

period of historically low interest rates that will not be sustained indeflmtely and future fluctuations in interest rates

could cause an increase in volatility of the market price of CBF Class common stock

CBF and the Company do not currently intend to pay dividends on shares of their common stock in the

foreseeable future and the ability to pay dividends will be subject to restrictions under applicable banking laws

and regulations

CBF and the Company do not currently intend to pay cash dividends on their common stock in the

foreseeable future The payment of cash dividends in the future will be dependent upon various factors including

earnings if any cashbalances capital requirements and general financial condition The payment of any dividends

will be within the discretion of the theti-existing Board of Directors It is the present intention of the Boards of

Directors of the Company and CBF to retain all earnings if any for use in business operations in the foreseeable

future and accordingly the Boards of Directors do not currently anticipate declaring any dividends Because CBF

and the Company do not expect to pay cash dividends on their common stock for Some time any gains on an

investment in CBFs Class common stock will be limited to the appreciation if any of the market value of the

Class common stock

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to certain regulatory restrictions on the payment of cash

dividends Federal bank regulatory agencies have the authority to prohibit bank holding companies from engaging in

unsafe or unsound practices in conductm their business The payment of dividends by CBF and the Company

depending on their financial condition could be deemed an unsafe or imsound practice The ability to pay dividends

will directly depend on the ability of Capital Bank to pay dividends to us which in turn will be restricted by the

requirement that it maintains an adequate level of capital in
accordance with requirements of its regulators and in

the future can be expected to be further influenced by regulatory policies and capital guidelines In addition on August

24 2010 Capital Bank entered into the 0CC Operating Agreement which in certain circumstances will restrict Capital

Banks ability to pay dividends to us to make changes to its capital structure and to make certain other business

decisions

Certain provisions of CEFs certificate of incorporation and the loss sharing agreements may have anti-takeover

effrcrs which could limit the price investors might be willing to pay in the future for CBFs common stock and

could entrench management In addition Delaware law.may inhibit takeovers of CBF and could limit CBFs

ability to engage in certain strategw transactions its Board of Directors believes would be inthe best interests of

stockholders ..

CBFs certificate of incorporation contains provisions that may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals that

stockholders may consider to be in their best interests These provinións include the ability of CBFs Board of

Directors to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred stock which may make the removal of

managementmore difficult and may discourage transactions that otherwise cOuld involve payment of premium over

prevailing market prices for CBFs securities including its Class common stock

The loss sharing agreements with the FDIC require that Capital Bank receive prior FDIC consçnt which

may be withheld by the FDIC in its sole discretion prior to CBF Capital Bank or the ComÆnys stockholders

engaging in certain transactions If any such transaction is completed without prior FDIC consent..the FDIC would

have the right to discontinue the relevant loss shanng arrangement Among other things prior FDIC consent is

required for merger or consolidation of CBF or its bank subsidiary with or into another company if CBF

stockholders will own less than 66 66% of the combined company the sale of all or substantially all of the

assets of any of CBF bank subsidiary and sale of shares by stockholder or group of related

stockholders that will effect change in control of Capital Bank as determined by the FDIC with reference to the

standards set forth in the Change in Bank Control Act generally the acquisition of between 10% and 25% of any

class of CBF voting securities where the presumption of control is not rebutted or the acquisition by any person

acting directly or indirectly or tlough or iti conceit with one or more persons of 25% or more of
any class of

CBFs voting securities If CBF or any stockholder desired to enter into any such transaction the FDIC may not

grant its consent in timely manner without conditions or at all If one of these transactions were .o occur

without prior FDIC consent and the FtIC withdrew its loss share protection there could be material adverse

effect on Capital Banks financial condition results of operations and cash flows In addition statutes regulations
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and policies that govern bank holding companies including the BHCA may restrict CBFs ability to enter into certain

transactions

CBF is also subject to anti-takeover provisions under Delaware law CBF has not opted out of Section 203

of the Delaware General Corporation Law which we refer to as the DGCL which subject to certain exceptions

prohibits public Delaware corporation from engaging in business combination as defined in such section with an

interested stockholder defined generally as any person who beneficially owns 15% or more of the outstanding

voting stock of such corporation or any person affiliated with such person for period of three years following the

time that such stockholder became an interested stockholder unless prior to such time the board of directors of

such corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder

becoming an interested stockholder upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder

becoming an interested stockholder the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of such

corporation at the time the transaction commenced excluding for purposes of determining the voting stock

outstanding but not the outstanding voting stock owned by the interested stockholder the voting stock owned by

directors who are also officers or held in employee benefit plans in which the employees do not have confidential

right to tender or vote stock held by the plan or on or subsequent to such time the business combination is

approved by the board of directors of such corporation and authorized at meeting of stockholders by the affirmative

vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock of such corporation not owned by the interested stockholder

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

CBF is controlling shareholder and may have interests that differ from the interests of our other shareholders

Upon completion of the Investment CBF owned approximately 90% of the Companys outstanding voting

power As result CBF will be able to control the election of our directors determine our corporate and

management policies and determine the outcome of any corporate transaction or other matter submitted to our

shareholders for approval Such transactions may include mergers and acquisitions including the contemplated

potential merger of the Company with and into CBF sales of all or some of the Companys ÆssŁts including sales

of such assets to CBF and/or CBFs other subsidiaries or purchases of assets from CBF and/or CBFs other

subsidiaries and other significant corporate transactions

Five of our seven directors our Chief Executive Officer our Chief Financial Officer and our Chief Risk

Officer are affiliated with CBF CBF also has sufficient voting power to amend our organizational documents The

interests of CBF may differ from those of our other shareholders and it may take actions that advance its interests to

the detriment of our other shareholders Additionally CBF is in the business of making investments in or acquiring

financial institutions and may from time to time acquire and hold interests in businesses that compete directly or

indirectly with us CBF may also pursue for its own account acquisition opportunities that may be complementary

to our business and as result those acquisition opportunities may not be available to us

This concentration of ownership could also have the effect of delaying deferring preventing change in

our control or impeding merger or consolidation takeover or other business combination that could be favorable to

the other holders of our common stock and the trading prices of our common stock may be adversely affected by

the absence or reduction of takeover premium in the trading price

As controlled company we are exempt from certain Nasdaq corporate governance requirements

The Companys common stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market The Nasdaq

generally requires majority of directors to be independent and requires independent director oversight over the

nominating and executive compensation functions However under the rules applicable to the Nasdaq if another

company owns more than 50% of the voting power of listed company that company is considered controlled

company and exempt from rules relating to independence of the board of directors and the compensation and

nominating committees The Company is controlled company because CBF beneficially owns more than 50% of

the Companys outstanding voting stock Accordingly the Company is exempt from certain corporate governance

requirements and its shareholders may not have all the protections that these rules are intended to provide

We may choose to voluntarily delist our common stock from NASJJAQ or cease to be reporting issuer under

SEC rules

46



We may choose to or our majority shareholder CBF may cause us to voluntarily delist from the NAsdaq
Global Select Market If we were to delist from Nasdaq we may or may not list ourselves on another exchange and

may or may not be required to continue to file periodic and current reports and other information as reporting

issuer under SEC rules delisting of our common stock could negatively impact shareholders by reducing the

liquidity and market price of our common stock reducing information available about the Company on an ongoing

basis and potentially reducingthe number of investors willing to hold or acquire our common stock In addition if

we were to delist from Nasdaq we would no longer be subject to any ofthecorporate governance rules applicable to

Nasdaq listed companies See also As controlled company we are exempt from certain Nasdaq corporate

governance requirements

Future issuance or sales of our common stock or other securities will dilute the ownership interests of our

existing shareholders and could depress the market price of our common stock

In order to maintain our capital at desired levels or required regulatory levels or to fund future growth the

Company Board may decide from time to time to issue additional shares of common stock preferred stock or

securities convertible into exchangeable for or representing rights to acquire shares of our common stock The sale

of these shares may significantly dilute our shareholders ownership interest and the per share book value of our

common stock New investors in the futuremay also have rights preferences and privileges senior to our current

shareholders which may adversely impact our current shareholders

Resales of our common stock or other securities in the public market may cause the market price of our common
stock to fall

Sales of substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market by our shareholders

including CBF or the perception that such sales are likely to occur could cause the market price of our common
stock to decline Pursuant to the Investment we have agreed to provide customary registration rights for the shares

of common stock issued to CBF and CBF can exercise those rights in order to sell additional shares of our common
stock at its discretion We cannot predict the effect if any that future sales of our common stock in the market or

availability of shares of our common stock for sale in the market will have on the market price of our common
stock We therefore can give no assurance that sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the market or

the potential for large amounts of sales in the market would not cause the price of our common stock to decline or

impair our ability to raise capital through sales of our cOmmon stock

Market conditions and other factors may affect the value of our common stock

The trading price of the shares of our common stock will depend on many factors which may change from

time to time including the factors substantially similar to those identified above under The market price of

CBFs Class common stock may be volatile which could cause the value of an investment in CBFs Class

common stock to decline

The trading volume in our common stock has been low and the sale of substantial amounts of our common stock

in the public market could depress the price of our common stock

Our common stock is thinly traded The average daily trading volume of our shares on The Nasdaq Global

Select Market during 2011 was approximately 1846 shares Thinly traded stock can be more volatile than stock

trading in an active public market In recent years the stock market has experienced high level of price and

volume volatility and market prices for the stock of many companies have experienced wide price fluctuations that

have not necessarily been related to their operating performance Therefore our shareholders may not be able to sell

their shares at the volumes prices or times that they desire

We cannot predict the effect if any that future sales of our common stock in the market or availability of

shares of our common stock for sale in the market will have on the market price of our common stock We
therefore can give no assurance sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the market or the potential for

large amounts of sales in the market would not cause the price of our common stock to decline or impair our ability

to raise capital through sales of our common stock

Holders of our junior subordinated debentures have rights that are senior to those of our common stockholders
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We have supported our continued growth through the issuance of trtst preferred securities from special

purpose trusts and accompanying junior subordinated debentures At December 31 2011 we had outstanding trust

preferred securities and accompanying junior subordinated debentures with face values totaling $33.0 million

Payments of the principal and interest on the trust preferred securities of these special purpose trusts are

conditionally guaranteed by us Further the accompanying junior subordinated debentures we issued to the special

purpose trusts are senior to our shares of common stock As result we must make payments on the junior

subordinated debentures before any dividends can be paid on our common stock and in the event of our bankruptcy

dissolution or liquidation the holders of the junior subordinated debentures must be satisfied before any
distributions can be made on our common stock We have the right to defer distributions on our junior subordinated

debentures and the related trust preferred securities for up to five years during which time no dividends may be

paid on our commoi stock As discussed above pursuant to the board resolution adopted on October 2009 we

began deferring interest payments on our junior.subordinated debentures in October 2009

An investment in our common stock is not an insured deposit

Our common stock is not bank deposit and therefore is not insured against loss by the FDIC any other

deposit insurance fund or .by any other public or private entity Investment in our common stock is inherently risky

for the reasons described in this Risk Factors section and elsewherein this report and is subject to the same market

forces that affect the price of common stock in any company As result our shareholders may lose some or all of

tkeir investment in our common stock

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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ITEM PROPERTIES

The Companys executive offices are located at 599 9th Street North Naples Florida As discussed in

Item effective as of April 29 2011 the Companys primary operating subsidiary TIB Bank was merged with and

into NAFH National Bank Subsequent to the merger the Company began to account for its ownership inNAFH
Bank under the equity method of accountingand the assets and liabilities of the Bank were de-consolidated from the

Companys balance sheet Due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 there are no

properties that are operated by the Company

The information set forth on page 14 of Item Business Facilities and Real Estate is incorporated herein

by reference
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

While the Company and the Bank are from time to time parties to various legal proceedings arising in the

ordinary course of their business management believes after consultation with legal counsel that at December 31
2011 there wereno proceedings threatened or pending against the Company or the Bank that will individually or in

the aggregate have material adverse effect on the consolidatedresu1ts of operations or financial condition of the

Company

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOUSURES

None

PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol TIBB As of December 31

2011 there were 636 registered shareholders of record and 12349935 shares of our common stock outstanding The

share and per share amounts discussed throughout this document have been adjusted to account for the effects of

six 1% one percent stock dividends declared for shareholders of record on July 2008 September 30 2008
December 31 2008 March 31 2009 June 30 2009 and September 30 2009 and distributed July 17 2008 October

10 2008 January 10 2009 April 10 2009 July 10 2009 and October 10 2009 respectively and the effects of the

for 100 reverse stock split effective after the close of business on December 15 2010

On January 2010 we received letter from NASDAQ that stated the Companys common stock closed

below the required minimum $1.00 per share bid price for the previous 30 consecutive business days The letter also

indicated that in accordance with listing rules we have period of 180 calendar days until July 2010 to regain

compliance with this requirement The Company was not able to regain compliance and requested hearing to

appeal NASDAQs determination to delist the Companys common stock The hearing was held on August 2010

and the Company requested an extension to January 2011 to regain compliance The request was subsequently

granted The Company was not able to regain compliance with the continued listing requirements of the NASDAQ
Global Select market by January 2011 However through rights offering which was completed on January 18

2011 and for 100 reverse stock split effective December 15 2010 the Company met the continued listing

requirements of the NASDAQ Capital Market Accordingly we requested that NASDAQ transfer the Companys
shares to The NASDAQ Capital Market The request was granted and was effective upon the open of trading on

January27 2011

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low su1e prices per share for our

common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

2011 2010

Quarter Ended High Low High Low

March 31 23.02 17.50 $172.00 $58.08

June 30 19.70 11.00 192.00 45.00

September 30 14.45 9.17 200.00 31.00

December 31 10.82 8.51 48.00 19.34

We did not pay any cash dividends for the years ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2011 Our

ability to pay cash dividends to our shareholders is primarily dependent on the earnings of the Bank as well as the

dividend restrictions under the terms of our outstanding junior subordinated debentures Payment of dividends by

the Bank to us is also limited by dividend restrictions in capital requirements imposed by bank regulators

Information regarding restrictions on the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to us is contained in Note 15 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item hereof
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The Company received request from the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta for the Companys Board of

Directors to adopt resolution that it will not declare or pay any dividends on its outstanding common or preferred

stock nor will it make any payments or distributions on the outstanding trust preferred securities or corresponding

subordinated debentures without the prior written approval of the Reserve Bank The Board adopted this resolution

on October 2009 On September 22 2010 the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta FRB and the Company entered

into written agreement where the Company agrees among other things that it will not make any payments on the

outstanding trust preferred securities or declare or pay any dividends without the prior written approval of the FRB
Deferral of the trust preferred securities is-allowed for up to 60 months without being considered an event of default

The Company submitted written request to the FRB to authorize the payment of deferred and current interest

payments through the next payment date and future interest payments when due as scheduled on the three trust

preferred securities On September 28 2011 pursuant to receipt of the FRBs approval concurrent interest

payments were made for each of the trust preferred securities and the Company began the process of exiting from

the deferral period

With respect to information regarding our securities authorized for issuance under equity incentive plans

the information contained in the section entitled Executive Compensation Equity Compensation Plan

Information of our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein

by reference

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

For the year ended December 31 2011 we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock
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STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The stock price performance graph below shall not.be deemed incorporated by reference by any general

statement incorporating by reference this Form 10-K into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the extent the Company specifically incorporates this information by

reference and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such Acts

Thegraph below compares the cumulative total return of the Company the Nasdaq Composite Index and

peer group index

4-I lB Financial Corp NASDAQ Composite SNL Southeast Bank

Period Ending

Total Return Performance

125

100

75

50

25

12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31108 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11

Index 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11

TIB Financial Corp 100.00 49.75 26.92 4.01 1.30 0.56

NASDAQ Composite 100.00 110.66 66.42 96.54 114.06 113.16

SNL Southeast Bank 100.00 75.33 30.50 30.62 29.73 17.39
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data presented below as of and for the years ended December 31 2011

2010 2009 2008 and 2007 is derived from our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and from oUr records

The information presented below should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and

related notes and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share

data

Balance Sheet Data and Ratios

As of December 31

Successor Company Predecessor Company

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

$204623Total assets $1756866
Investment securitjes 418092

Total loans 1004329
Allowance for loan losses 402

Deposits 1367025

Shareholders equity 177378 176750

Allowance for loan losses/total loans NA NM
Allowance for loan losses/loans originated in

Successor period NA 1.76%

Non-performing assets/total assets NA 4.84%

Non-performing loans/total loans NA 5.61%

Allowance for loan losses/non-performing loans NA NA

$1705407 $1610114 $1444739

250339 225770 160357

1196164 1223319 1127667

29083 23783 14973

1369384 1135668 1049958

55518 121114 96240

2.43% 1.94% 1.33%

NA NA NA
5.71% 2.95% 1.88%

6.09% 3.25% 1.43%

39.93% 59.79% 93.08%
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Income Statement and Performance Data

Dollars and shares in

thousands except per share

data

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after

provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income tax expense benefit
Income loss before preferred

allocation

Income from discontinued

operations net of taxes

Income earned by preferred

shareholders and discount

accretion

Gain on retirement of Series

preferred allocated to common

shareholders

Net income loss allocated to

common shareholders

Book value per common share

Basic earnings loss per

common share from

continuing operations

Basic earnings per common share

from discontinued operations

Basic earnings loss per

common share

Diluted earnings loss per

common share from

continuing operations

Diluted earnings per common

share from discontinued

operations

Diluted earnings loss per

common share

Basic weighted average common

equivalent shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average

common equivalent shares

outstanding

Dividends declared per common

share

Return on average assets
Return on average equity

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Three Months Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 September 30 December 31 December December

2011 2010 2010 2009 31 2008 312007

$21146 $15681 $52317 $81127 $88164 $94741

5481 3249 19435 35736 43504 48721

15665 12432 32882 45391 44660 46020

621 402 29697 42256 28239 9657

15044 12030 3185 3135 16421 36363

8626 2710 9326 14110 784 1362

21770 13923 65316 65342 50988 41921

900 257 13451 12853 1775

2800 560 52805 61548 20930 2421

2009 2662 165

24276

$2800 $560 $30538 $64210 $21095 $2421

$14.36 $14.96 $15.18 $141.63 $592.09 $709.26

$0.23 $0.05 $205.64 $433.27 $145.02 $18.54

$0.23 $0.05 $205.64 $433.27 $145.02 $18.54

$0.23 $0.03 $205.64 $433.27 $145.02 $18.54

$0.23 $0.03 $205.64 $433.27 $145.02 $18.54

12350 11817 149 148 145 131

12324 18320 149 148 145 131

$- $- $0.0005 $0.0023

0.40% 0.13% 3.16% 3.47% l.36% 0.18%
1.55% 1.25% 108.42% 53.92% 20.41% 2.52%
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Average equity/average assets 25.78% 10.19%

Net interest margin 3.08% 3.16%

Dividend payout ratio NM NM
Non-interest expense/tax

equivalent net interest income

and non-interest income from

continuing operations 89 .62% 91.76%

Non-interest income for 2009 and 2008 includes $5.1 million and $1.1 million of net gains on securities

sold respectively Non-interest income for 2009 2008 and 2007 includes charges related to the other than

temporary impairment of investment securities of $763000 $6.4 million and $5.7 million respectively as

discussed in more detail in the Investment Portfolio section of managements discussion and analysis

Non-interest expense for 2009 includes goodwill impairment charge of $5.9 million

Income tax expense benefit for 2009 includes valuation allowance against deferred income tax assets of

$30.4 million

For predecessor only calculation includes unvested shares of restricted

The computation of return on average assets and return on average equity is based on net income from

continuing operations

The computation of the dividend payout ratio is based on net income loss from continuing operations

2.91% 6.44% 6.65% 6.99%

2.84% 2.76% 3.10% 3.60%

NM NM NM NM

154.27% 109.47% 111.78% 87.86%
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIANCLAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Headquartered in Naples Florida Tifi Financial Corp is financial services comjany with 21% equity

method investment in Capital Bank NA national banking association with approximately $6.5 billion in total

assets and 143 full-service banking offices throughout southern Florida and the Florida Keys North Carolina South

Carolina Tennessee and Virginia TIB Financial Corp is also the parent company of Naples Capital Advisors Inc
registered investment advisor..

Capital Bank Financial Corp investment

On September 30 2010 the Transaction Date the Company completed the issuance and sale to CBF of

7000000 shares of Common Stock 70000 shares of Series Preferred Stock and warrant the Warrant to

purchase up to 11666667 shares of Common Stock of the Company the Warrant Shares for aggregate

consideration of $175000000 The consideration was comprised of approximately $162840000 in cash and

approximately $12160000 in the form of contribution to the Company of all 37000 outstanding shares of Series

Preferred Stock previously issued to the United States Department of the Treasury under the TARP Capital

Purchase Program and the related warrant to purchase shares of the Companys Common Stock which CBF

purchased directly from the Treasury The Series Preferred Stock and the related warrant were retired on

September 30 2010 and are no longer outstanding The 70000 shares of Series Preferred Stock received by CBF
converted into an aggregate of 4666667 shares of Common Stock following shareholder approval of an amendment

to the Companys Restated Articles of Incorporation the Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of

authorized shares of Common Stock to 50000000 The Warrant is exercisable in whole or in part and from time to

time from September 30 2010 to March 30 2012 at an exercise price of $15.00 per Warrant Share

As result of the Investment and following the completion on January 18 2011 of rights offering

pumuant to which shareholders of the Company as of July 12 2010 purchased 533029 shares of Common Stock

CBF owns approximately 94% of the issued and outstanding voting power of the Company Upon the completion of

the Investment Eugene Taylor Chairman Christopher Marshall Peter Foss William Hodges and

Bruce Singletary were named to board of directors of the Company the Company Board Mr Howard Gutman

and Mr Brad Boaz currently members of the Company Board remained as such following the closing of the

Investment All other members of the board of directors of the Company resigned effective September 30 2010

Because of the controlling proportion of voting securities in the Company acquired by CBF the Investment

is considered an acquisition for accounting purposes
and requires the application and push down of the acquisition

method of accounting The accounting guidance for acquisition accounting requires that the assets acquired and

liabilities assumed be recorded at their respective fair values as of the acquisition date Any purchase price in excess

of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill

The most significant fair value adjustments resulting from the application of the acquisition method of

accounting were made to loans Accounting guidance requires that all loans held by the Company on the

Transaction Date be recorded at their fair value The fair value of these acquired loans takes into account both the

differences in loan interest rates and market rates and any deterioration in their credit quality Because concerns

about the probability of receiving the full amount of the contractual payments from the borrowers was considered in

estimating the fair value of the loans stating the loans at their fair value results in no allowance for loan loss being

provided for these loans as of the Transaction Date As of September 30 2010 certain loans had evidence of credit

deterioration since origination and it was probable that not all contractually required principal and interest payments

would be collected Such loans identified at the time of the acquisition were accounted for using the measurement

provision for purchased credit-impaired PCI loans according to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification

ASC 310-30 The special accounting for PCI loans not only requires that they are recorded at fair value at the

date of acquisition and that any related allowance for loan and lease losses is not permitted to be carried forward

past the Transaction Date but it also governs how interest income will be recognized on these loans and how any

further deterioration in credit quality after the Transaction Date will be recognized and reported
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As result of the adjustments required by the acquisition method of accounting the Companys balance

sheet and results of operations from periods prior to the Transaction Date are labeled as Predecessor Company
amounts and are not comparable to balances and results of operations from periods subsequent to the Transaction

Date which are labeled as Successor Company. The lack of comparability arises from the assets and liabilities

having new accounting bases as result of recording them at their fair values as of the Transaction Date rather than

at their historical cost basis As result of the change in accounting bases items of income and expense such as the

rate of interest income and expense as well as depreciation and rental expense will change In general these

changes in income and expense relate to the amortizatipn of premiums or accretion of discounts to arrive at

contractual amounts due To call attention to this lack of comparability the Company has placed black line

between the Successor Company and Predecessor Company columns in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
in the tables in the notes to the statements and in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

TIB Bank Merger with Capital Bank NA

On April 29 2011 the Merger Date the Companys primary operating subsidiary TIB Bank was
merged with and into NAFH Bank an affiliate institution which had been wholly-owned by the Companys
controlling shareholder CBF preceding the Merger NAFH Bank was formed on July 16 2010 in connection with
the purchase and assumption of the operations of three banks Metro Bank of Dade County Miami Florida
Turnberry Bank Aventura Florida and First National Bank of the South Spartanburg South Carolina from the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC Pursuant to the merger agreement dated April 27 2011
between NAFH Bank and .Tffi Bank the Company exchanged its 100% ownership interest in TIB Bank for an
approximately 53% ownership interest in the surviving combined entity NAFH Bank Following the Merger CBF
was deemed to control NAFH Bank due to CBFs 94% ownership. interest in the Company and CBFs.direct
ownership of the remaining 47% interest in NAFH Bank subsequent to the Merger In addition five of the

Companys seven directors and the Companys Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer and Chief Risk
Officer are affiliated with CBF Accordingly subsequent to April 29 2011 the Company began to account for its

ownership in NAFH Bank under the equity method of accounting

On June 30 2011 Capital Bank wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Bank Corp an affiliated bank
holding company in which CBF has an 83% ownership interest was merged with and into NAFH Bank with NAFH
Bank as the surviving entity In connection with the transaction NAFH Bank also changed its name to Capital Bank
National Association On September 2011 GreenBank wholly-owned subsidiary of Green Bankshares Inc an
affiliated bank holding company in which CBF has 90% ownership interest was merged with and into Capital
Bank NA Subsequently and as result of those transactions the Company ownership interest in Capital BankNA was reduced to approximately 21% At December 31 2011 the Company net investment of $200 million in

Capital Bank NA was recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as Equity method investment in Capital BankNA which represented the Company pro rata ownership of Capital Bank NA total shareholders
equity In

periods subsequent to the Merger Date the Company has and will adjust this equity investment balance based on its

equity in Capital Bank NA net income and comprehensive income In connection with the Merger assets and
liabilities of the Bank were de-consolidated from the Company balance sheet resulting in significant decrease in

the total assets and total liabilities of the Company in the second quarter of 2011 Accordingly as of December 31
2011 no investments loans or deposits are reported on the Company Consolidated Balance Sheet and subsequent
to the Merger Date interest income and interest expense are the result of cash deposited in Capital Bank NA and
the outstanding trust preferred securities issued by the Company respectively

As of December 31 2011 following the mergers of TIB Bank Capital Bank and GreenBank as discussed
above Capital Bank NA had total assets of $6 billion total deposits of $5 billion and shareholders

equity of
$939 million As of December 31 2011 following the mergers Capital Bank NA operated 143 branches in

Florida North Carolina South Carolina Tennessee and Virginia
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Potential Merger of TIB Financial Corp.and Capital Bank Financial Corp

On September 201 CBFs Board Of Directors approved and adopted plan of merger The plan of

merger provides for the merger of Tffi Financial Corp with and into CBF with CBF continuing as the surviving

entity In the merger each share of TIB Financial Corp.s common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior

to the completion of the merger except for shares for whith appraisal rights are properly exercised and certain

shares held by CBF or TIB Financial Corp will be converted into the right to receive 0.7205 of share of CBF

Class common stock No fractional shares of Class cOmmOn stock will be issued in connection with the merger

and holders of TIB Financial Corp common stock will be entitled to receive cash in lieu thereof

Since CBF currently owns more than 90% of coiPmon stock of TIB Financial Corp under Delaware and

Florida law no vote of our stockholders is required to complete the merger

Consent Order and Written Agreement

On July 2010 TIB Bank entered into Consent Order which is formal agreement with the bank

regulatory agencies under which among other things the Bank had agreed to maintain Tier capital ratio of at

leastS% of total assets and total risk based capital ratio of at least 1% within 90 days The Consent Order

terminated on April 29 2011 when TIB Bank was merged with and into NAFH National Bank

On September 22 2010 the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta and the Company entered into written

agreement where the Company agreed among other things that it will dot make any payments on the outstanding

trust preferred securities or declare or pay any dividends without the prior written approval of the FRB The

Company submitted written request to the FRB to authortze the payment of deferred and current interest payments

through the next payment date and future interest payments when due as scheduled on the three trust preferred

securities On September 28 2011 pursuant to receipt of the FRB approval concurrent interest payments were

made for each of the trust preferred securities and the Company began the process
of exiting from the deferral

period On November 2011 the FRB notified the Company that the Written Agreement wasterminated effective

April 30 2011 given that TIB Bank was merged into Capital Bank and that the condition of the Company was

subsequently upgraded

NASDAQ Information

On July 2010 the Company received delisting notice from The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC which

was anticipated due to the Company non compliance with the NASDAQ $1 00 per share bid price requirement

The letter from the NASDAQ notified the Company that it was in violation of NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 5505 in

that the bid price
for its common stock was below the required listing standard and that its common stock would be

delisted from th NASDAQ on July 16 2010 unless the Company asked for hearing before NASDAQ Listing

Qualifications Hearing Panel This hearing was held on August 2010 During the hearing the Company requested

an extension to January 2011 for the Company to demonstrate closiug bid price of $1 00 per share in accordance

with the NASDAQ rules The Company advised NASDAQ that the Company intended to call special meeting of

its shareholders following the closing of the Investment to approve the adoption of an amendment to the Company

Restated Articles of Incorporation to affect reverse stock split and thereby regain compliance with the listing rules

On September 2010 the Company was advised by the NASDAQ that its request for an extension to January

2011 was granted On December 15 2010 the Company affected for 100 reverse stock split Additionally on

January 18 2011 the Company completed Rights Offering through which 533029 shares of the Companys

common stock were issued in exchange for approximately $8 million As result of these actions the Company

met the continued listing requirements
for the NASDAQ Capital Market Pursuant to our request the listing of the

Companys shares was transferred to the NASDAQ Capital Market effective upon the open of trading on January

27 2011

Performance Overview

Successor Company

The Company reported net income of $2.8 million for the year
ended December 31 2011 Basic and

diluted income per common share was $0.23 The most signif icant factor for 2011 was the Merger activity

discussed above in the second quarter of 2011 The Company began to account for its ownership in Capital Bank

NA under the equity method of accounting and the assets and liabilities of the Bank were de-consolidated from the

Companys balance sheet The net income includes the four months of the operations of TIB Bank from January
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2011 through April 29 2011 the date of the merger and eight months of equity in income fron investment in

Capital Bank NA from April 30 2011 to December 31 2011 The provision for loan losses of $621000 recorded

during 2011 reflects the allowance for loan losses established for loans originated subsequent to September 30

2010

The Company reported net income of $560000 for the three months ended December 31 2010 Basic and

diluted income per common share was $0.05 and $0.03 respectively The most significant factor for the 2010 net

income was increases in net interest income due to the impact of the purchase accounting adjustments which

revalued deposits and borrowings to yield market interest rates as of September 30 2010 The provision for loan

losses of $402000 recorded reflects the allowance for loan losses established for loans originated subsequent to

September 30 2010 No net charge-offs or losses on the disposition of other real estate owned were recorded as

credit losses experienced were incorporated in the net discounts recorded on loans and other real estate acquired as

of September 30 2010

Predecessor Company

The net loss for the nine months ended September 30 2010 was $52 million Basic and diluted loss per

common share was $205 64 Contnbuting to the loss during the nine months ended September 20 2010 were $21

million of valuation adjustments losses on sale and operating expenses associated with foreclosed real estate no -tax

benefit recorded in the current period as result of the Companys deferred tax assets being fully reserved and $2.1

million in expenses incurred in connection with our capital raise activities and the termination of related consulting

agreement

For the year ended December 31 2009 our operations resulted in net loss before dividends and accretion

on preferred stock of $61.5 million The net loss allocated to common shareholders was $64.2 million or $433.27

per share for the year ended December 31 2009 The most significant factors contributing to the 2009 loss were

$42 million provision for loan losses $13 million provision
for income taxes and $5 million goodwill

impairment charge partially offset by $4 million in net gains from investment securities and $1 million gain

resulting from the death benefit received from bank owned life insurance policy covenng former employee

Dollars in thousands Successor Company Predecessor Company

Year Ended Three Months Nine Months Year Ended

December 31 Ended December Ended September December 31

2011 31 2010 30 2010 2009

Netinterestincome $15665 $12432 $32882 $45391

Provision for loan losses 621 402 29 697 42 256

Non-interest income 530 710 557 629

Equity in income from investment in Capital Bank
NA 4084
Life insurance gain

134 1186

Investment securities gains 12 2635 4295

Non-interest expense 18898 13923 63249 59455

Capital raise expense 2067
Impairment charge 872 887

Income loss before income taxes $1900 $817 $52805 48097

Net income loss before income taxes excluding

life insurance capital raise expenses

investment securities gains impairment charge $4760 $817 $53507 $47691

Non-interest income excludes gains on the conversion of life insurancepolicies covering former

employee and former director investment securities gains and losses and equity income from investment

in Capital Bank NA

Non-interest expense excludes capital raise costs and impairment charges
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Successor Company

Net interest income was $15.7 million for the year ended December 31 2011 Net interest income-for the

twelve months ended December 31 2011 was significantly impacted by the Merger discussed above Accordingly

as result of the deconsolidation of the Bank net interest income includes only four months of the operations of TIB

Bank and twelve months of interest expense on the Companys trust preferred securities Net interest income was

$12.4 million for the three months ended December 31 2010 .and was significantly impacted by the purchase

accounting adjustments to the interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities Additionally -the high level of

cash and highly liquid investment securities maintained during the three months ended December 31 2010 had an

unfavorable impact on .the margin and the overall yield on earning assets Was unfavorably impacted

Predecessor Company

Net interest income for the nine months ended September 30 2010 was $32.8 million Net interest income

for this period was impacted by the increase in the net interest margin due to reductions of the cost of interest

bearing deposits and the successful repricing or replacement of maturing higher priced time deposits with lower cost

funding in this continuing low interest rate environment Partially offsetting the increase in the net interest margin

was continued higher levels of nonperforming loans and the change in asset mix resulting in lower volumes of

higher yielding loans and investment securities Net interest income was $45 million for the year ended December

31 2009

The monetary policy pursued by the Federal Reserve affects market interest rates inôluding the prime rate

our loan yields our deposit and borrowing costs and our net interest margin Our earning assets and deposits

increased with the acquisition of Riverside offset by increases in non-performing loans

Successor Company

Non-interest income for the year ended December 31 2011 was $8 million which includes the four

months of the operations of TIB Bank eight months of equity in income from investment in Capital Bank NA and

twelve months of operations of Naples Capital Advisors Inc Non-interest income for the three months ended

December 31 2010 was $2.7 million

Predecessor Company

Non-interest income for the nine months ended September 30 2010 was $9.3 million which included $2.6

million of investment security gains and $134000 death benefit received on bank owned life insurance policy

covering former employee Non interest income for the year ended December 31 2009 was $14 million which

included $4 million of investment security gains and $1 million death benefit received on bank owned life

insurance policy covering former employee

Successor Company

Non-interest expense for the year ended December 31 2011 was $21.8 million includes the four months of

the operations of TIB Bank twelve months of operations of Naples Capital Advisors Inc and the operations of the

Company During 2011 the Companys registered investment advisor Naples Capital Advisors Inc experienced

decrease in assets under advisement following the departure of certain employees leading to $2 million customer

relationship intangible impairment Non-interest expens.e for..the three months ended December 31 2010 was $13.9

million FDIC insurance continued to remain elevated due to higher deposit insurance premiums in 2010

Predecessor Company

Non-interest expense for the nine months ended September 30 2010 was $65.3 million Non-interest

expense includes $21.7 million of OREO valuation adjustments and related expense and $2.1 million of expense

related to our capital raise initiative Non-interest expense for the year ended December 31 2009 was $65.3

million Non-interest expense for 2009 includes $5.9 million goodwill impairment charge Salary and employee

benefits include increases in employee benefits largely due to employee medical insurance costs the addition of new

positions to manage the higher level of problem assets plus merit adjustments for certain employees and-due to the

lower level of loan origination activity during 2009 the amount of salary and benefit costs capitalized as direct loan

origination costs decreased FDIC insurance costs include one-time special assessment of $800000 Information
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system conversion costs of $223000 were incurred in merging the operations of The Bank of Venice and OREO

valuation adjustments and expenses increased due to higher levels of foreclosed assets

Successor Company

Due to the Merger the assets and liabilities of the Bank were dc-consolidated from the Companys balance

sheet The deconsolidation resulted in significant decrease in the total assets and total liabilities of the Company in

the second quarter of 2011 Accordingly as of December 31 2011 no investments loans or deposits are reported on

the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet Total assets were $204.6 million as of December 31 2011 Total assets

were $1.76 billionas of December 31 2010 Total loans were $1.00 billion as of December 31 2010 Due to the

application of the acquisition method of accounting loans were recorded at their fair value at September 302010

As of December 31 2010 the allowance for loan losses totaled $402000 The allowance represents

allowance for loan losses established for loans originated subsequent to September 30 2010

Economic and Operating Environment Overview

We are operating in an environment characterized by slow-paced economic recovery with ongoing

pressure on employment and property values and continued dislocations in the banking industry In our local

markets the economic recovery is slower than the nation evidenced by the higher than average unemployment rate of

9.9% in Florida and North Carolina 9.5% in South Carolina and 8.7% in Tennessee during December 2011

Although the aforementioned states unemployment rates at the end of 2011 have decreased from their 2010 rates

they are higher than the federal rate of 8.5% South Florida continues to suffer from elevated unemployment and

continued pressure on home prices which have declined 1.95% in the fourth quarter of 2011 as measured by

SP/Case-Shiller Home Prices Indices North Carolina South Carolina and Tennessee are also experiencing

employment and home pnce pressure although not as severe as South Flonda

In response to the continuing economic stress the Federal Reserve maintained an accommodating

monetary policy through open market transactions and maintained the targeted fed funds rate at 0% to 0.25%

throughout 2011 Accordingly the prime rate remained at 3.25% during the year

We experience competition from both large regional banks and small community banks but are

nonetheless finding opportunities to originate high-quality loans and to grow low-cost customer deposits consistent

with our operating strategy Large numbers of banks in our markets continue to struggle with weak capital levels

credit quality and earnings performance and many are subject to regulatory orders

Analysis of Financial Condition

Total assets at December 31 2011 were $204.6 million As discussed above due to the Merger the

Company began to account for its ownership in Capital Bank NA under the equity method of accounting and the

assets and liabilities of the Bank were dc-consolidated from the Companys balance sheet The deconsolidation

resulted in significant decrease in the total assets and total liabilities of the Company in the second quarter of 2011

Accordingly as of December 31 2011 no investments loans or deposits are reported on the Companys
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Total assets at December 31 2010 were $1 76 billion Total loans at December 31 2010 were $1 00

billion Due to the application of the acquisition method of accounting loans were recorded at their fair value at

September 30 2010

Total deposits were $1.37 billion at December 31 2010

At December 31 2011 trust preferred securities had carrying value of $23.2 million and notional

value of $33.0 million which was comparable to the balance at December 31 2010 Borrowed funds consisting of

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advanced and short-term borrowings totaled $178.3 million at December 31
2010

Shareholders equity totaled $177.4 million at December 31 2011 increasing $628000 from $176.8

million at December 31 2010
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Results of Operations

Net income

Successor Company

Twelve months ended December 31 201

The Company reported net income of $2.8 million for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 which

includes four months of the operations of TIB Bank eight months of equity in income from investment in Capital

Bank NA and twelve months of operations of Naples Capital Advisors Inc Basic and diluted income
per common

share was $0.23 Net income includes interest expense of $1.9 million for the twelve months ended December 31
2011 related to trust preferred securities The provision for loan losses of $621000 recorded reflects the allowance

for loan losses established for loans originated subsequent to September 30 2010 No net charge-offs or losses on

the disposition of other real estate owned were recorded as credit losses experienced were incorporated in the net

discounts recorded on loans and other real estate acquired as of September 30 2010

The return on average assets for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 was 40% On the same

basis the return on average shareholders equity was 55% for the same penod of 2011

Three months ended December 31 2010

The Company reported net income of $560 000 for the three months ended December 31 2010 Basic and

diluted income per common share was $0 05 and $0 03 respectively Increases in net interest income are primarily

due to the impact of the purchase accounting adjustments which revalued market deposits and borrowings to yield

market interest rates as of September 30 2010 The provision for loan losses of $402000 recorded reflects the

allowance for loan losses established for loans originated subsequent to September 30 2010 No net charge-offs or

losses on the disposition of other real estate owned were recorded as credit losses experienced were incorporated in

the net discounts recorded on loans and other real estate acquired as of September 30 2010

The return on average assets for the three months ended December 31 2010 was 0.13% On the same

basis the return on average shareholders equity was 1.25% for the same period of 2010

Predecessor Company

Nine months ended September 30 2010

The net loss for the nine months ended September 30 2010 was $52.8 million Basic and diluted loss per

common share was $205.64

Theloss on average assets for the nine months ended September 30 2010 was 4.22% On the same basis

the loss on average shareholders equity was 144.96% forthe same period of 2010

Contributing to the loss during the nine months ended September 20 2010 were $21.7 million of valuation

adjustments losses on sale and operating expenses associated with foreclosed real estate no tax benefit recorded in

the current period as result of the Companys deferred tax assets being fully reserved and $2.1 million in expenses

incurred in connection with our capital raise activities and the termination of related consulting agreement

Twelve months ended December 31 2009

The net loss for the twelve months ended December 31 2009 was $61 million Basic and diluted loss per

common share was $433 27

The loss on average assets for 2009 was 3.47% and the loss on average shareholders equity was 53.92%

Contributing significantly to the loss during 2009 were the $42 million provision for loan losses the

valuation allowance against deferred income tax assets of $30.4 million and the goodwill impairment charge of $5.9

million partially offset by $5.1 million in net gains on securities sold and $1.2 million gain resulting from the
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death benefit received from Bank owned life insurance policy covering former employee In response to

continued slowing economic activity and softening real estate values in our markets our allowance for loan losses

increased to $29.1 million or 2.43% of total loans resulting from our provision for loan losses of $42.3 million

exceeding net charge-offs of $37.0 million for the period

Net interest income

Net Interest income in 2011 was significantly impacted by the Merger discussed above Accordingly as

result of the deconsolidation of the Bank interest-bearing liabilities which consisted of trust preferred securities

significantly exceeded interest-earning assets thus creating negative net interest income and negative net interest

margin in periods subsequent to the Merger

Net interest income was the largest component of our income and was affected by the interest rate

environment and the volume and the composition of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities Our

interest-earning assets included loans federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell

interest-bearing deposits in other banks and investment securities Our interest-bearing liabilities included deposits

federal funds purchased subordinated debentures advances from the FHLB and other short term borrowings

Rate and volume variance analyses allocate the change in interest income and interest expense between that

which is due to changes in the rate earned or paid for specific categories of assets and liabilities and that which is

due to changes in the average balance between two periods Because of the purchase accounting adjustments and

the Merger the amounts for twelve months ended December 31 2011 three months ended December 31 2010 nine

months ended September 30 2010 and twelve months ended December31 2009 are not comparable

Successor Company

Twelve months ended December 31 2011

Net interest income was $15.7 million for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 Due to the Merger
discussed above net interest income includes only four months of the operating results of TIB Bank Accordingly

as result of the deconsolidation of the Bank the reported average
balances of interest earning assets and liabilities

along with interest income and expense for the period decreased significantly Net interest income was also

impacted by the purchase accounting adjustments required as result of the Investment Because of the accretion of

discounts and premiums established by re-valuing the assets and liabilities to their fair values as of September 30

2010 the rates at which interest income and expense are accrued changed from prior periods irrespective of whether

market rates or contractual rates changed The net interest margin for the twelve months ended December 31 2011

was to 3.08%
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Three months ended December 31 2010

Net interest income was $12.4 million for the three months ended December 31 2010 while the net interest

margin was 3.16% The net interest income was significantly impacted by the purchase accounting adjustments to

the interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities Because of the accretion of new discounts and premiums

established by re-valuing the assets and liabilities to their fair value as of September 30 2010 the rates at which

interest income and
expense are accrued changed from prior periods irrespective of whether market rates or

contractual rates changed Due to the continued favorable repricing of deposit liabilities coupled with the purchase

accounting adjustments the net interest margin increased to 3.16% Additionally the high level of cash and highly

liquid investment securities maintained during the three months ended December 31 2010 while available to be

redeployed to fund higher yielding assets as such opportunities arise have an unfavorable impact on the margin and

the overall yield on earning assets is unfavorably impacted these lower yielding assets

Predecessor Company

Nine months ended September 30 2010

Net interest income was $32.9 million for the nine months ended September 30 2010 while the net interest

margin was 2.84% The increase in the net interest margin is due to reductions of the cost of interest bearing

deposits and the successful repricing or replacement of maturing higher priced time deposits with lower cost funding

in this continuing low interest rate environment Partially offsetting the increase in the net interest margin was

continued higher levels of nonperforming loans and the change in asset mix resulting in lower volumes of higher

yielding loans and investment securities

Interest and dividend income for the nine months of 2010 was impacted by lower balances of loans higher

levels of nonperforming loans and significant declines in market interest rates and the related impact on loan and

investment yields Due to the lower interest rate environment the lower volumes of higher yielding loans and the

higher level of non-accrual loans the yield of our loans declined

Partially offsetting the decline in interest and dividend income were decreases in interest expense on

deposits as result of lower interest rates paid The average interest cost of interest bearing deposits declined and

the overall cost of interest bearing liabilities declined

Twelve months ended 2009

Net interest income was $45.4 million for the year ended December 31 2009 The increase in this period

from prior periods was due to the significant increase in interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities as

result of the assumption of the Riverside deposits and investment of the proceeds and the growth of the Company
The net interest margin was 2.76%

The net interest margin continued to be adversely impacted by the level of nonaccrual loans and non-

performing assets which reduced the margin by an estimated 19 basis points during the twelve months ended

December 31 2009 The utilization of the proceeds from the Riverside transaction to reduce borrowings and

brokered time deposits and purchase investment securities further reduced the net interest rate spread because

greater portion of the Companys assets were comprised of lower yielding investment securities and short-term

money market investments We continue to maintain higher level of short-term investments in light of the

continuing economic stress and elevated volatility of financial markets which has also reduced the margin

The decrease in interest and dividend income was mainly attributable to decreased average rates on loan

balances and investment securities due primarily to the 400 basis point decrease in prime rate and the significant

decline in other interest rates combined with higher level of non-performing loans Partially offsetting this decline

were decreases in the interest cost of transaction accounts time deposits and borrowings due to decreases in deposit

interest rates paid and other market interest rates Increases in balances and changes in product mix favoring higher

yielding products led to an increase in interest expense on savings deposits
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The following table presents the average balances and yields for interest earning assets and interest bearing

liabilities for the year ended December 31 2011

Average Balance Sheet

Interest-earning assets

Loans12
Investment securities

Interest bearing deposits in other banks

FHLB stock

Total interest-earning assets

Non-interest earning assets

Cash and due from banks

Premises and equipment net

Equity method investment in Capital Bank NA
Other assets

Total non-interest earning assets

Total Assets

Interest bearing liabilities

Interest bearing deposits

Time deposits

Money market

NOW accounts

Savings deposits

Total interest-bearing deposits

Short-term borrowings and FHLB advances

Long-term borrowings

Total interest bearing liabilities

Non-interest bearing liabilities and

shareholders equity

Demand deposits

Other liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total non-interest bearing liabilities and

shareholders equity

8380

14121

133074

37011

192586

$702447

69517

4532

181095

255144

0.57%

8.19%

1.23%

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

Interest rate spread

Net interest income

Net interest margin

$702447

$15707

2.93%

3.08%

Average loans include non-performing loans

Interest income and rates include the effects of tax equivalent adjustment using applicable Federal tax rates

in adjusting tax exempt interest on tax exempt investment securities and loans to fully taxable basis

Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

2011

Average Income Yields

Dollars in thousands Balances Expense Rates

$334344

133931

38509

3077

509861

$17777

3267

113

31

21188

5.32%

2.44%

0.29%

1.01%

4.16%

1.14%

0.73%

0.31%

0.66%

0.89%

$207725

67691

58281

34776

368473

$2367

497

181

231

3276

55809 320

23021 1885

447303 5481
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The following table presents average balances of the Company the taxable-equivalent interest earned and

the rate paid thereon during the three months ended December 31 2010 and the nine months ended September 30
2010

Dollars in thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loans l2
Investment securities

Interest-bearing deposits in other banks

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Federal finds sold and securities sold

under agreements to resell

Total interest-earning assets

Non-interest-earning assets

Cash and due from banks

Premises and equipment net

Other assets

Total non-interest-earning assets

Total assets

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing deposits

Time deposits

Money market

NOW accounts

Savings deposits

Total interest-bearing deposits

Other interest-bearing liabilities

Short-term borrowings and FHLB

advances

Long-term borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Non-interest-bearing liabilities and

shareholders equity

Demand deposits

Other liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total non-interest-bearing liabilities and

shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

Interest rate spread tax equivalent basis

Net interest income tax equivalent basis

Net interest margin taxequiya1ent

basis

$1010946 $13722 5.39%

380126 1876 1.96%

162159 103 0.25%

9572 11 0.46%

0.00%

3.99%

1372447 3249

189566

14092

178800

382458

$1754905

1.01%

0.88%

0.32%

0.67%

0.87%

182073

14002

48704

244779

$1672316

2.15%

1.05%

0.35%

0.71%

1.57%

2.56%

4.28%

1.82%

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Three Months Ended December 31_2010

Average Income Yields

Balances Expense Rates

Niæº Months Ended September 30 2010

Average Income Yields

Balances Expense Rates

$1131509

301584

108712

10278

$45532

6687

204

26

5.38%

2.96%

0.25%

0.34%

0.00%

4.52%1562803 15712

22608

43521

125973

192102

$1754905

$732516 $1866

184597 411

172519 137

75796 128

1165428 2542

1552087 52449

22070

47711

50448

120229

$1672316

$708892 $11391

185821 1460

201570 534

78661 418

1174944 13803

190912 3659

61681 1973

1427537 19435

175503

31.516

248

459

0.56%

5.78%

0.94%

3.05%

3.16%

$12463

2.70%

$33014

2.84%

Average loans include non-performing loans

Interest income and rates include the effects of tax equivalent adjustment using applicable statutory tax rates in adjusting tax exempt

interest on tax exempt investment securities and loans to fully taxable basis

Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets
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The following table presents the average balances and yields for interest earning assets and interest bearing

liabilities for the year ended December 31 2009

Dollars in thousands

Interest-earning asseta

Loans 1l2
Investment securities

Money Market Mutual Funds

Interest bearing deposits in other banks

FHLB stock

Federal funds sOldIRpo

Total interest earning assets

Non-interest earning assets

Cash and due from banks

Premises and equipment net

Other assets

Total non-interest earning assets

Total Assets

30182

39759

53161

123102

$1772804

5303 2.49%

2787 4.42%

2.43%

Average loans include non-performing loans Interest on loans includes loan fees of $498

Interest income and rates include the effects of tax equivalent adjustment using applicable Federal tax rates

in adjusting tax exempt interest on tax exempt investment securities and loans to fully taxable basis

Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

Average Balance Sheet

Predecessor Company 2009

Average Income Yields

Balances Expense Rates

$1225804 $68960 5.63%

327963 12071 3.68%

1277 132 0.42%

50947 124 0.24%

10771 24 0.23%

2940 0.17%

1.649.702 81.316 4.93%

Interest bearing liabilities

Interest bearing deposits

Time deposits

Money market

NOW accounts

Savings deposits

Total interest-bearing deposits

$696606

196469

182398

116956

1192429

$21452

2817

1235

2142

27646

Short-term borrowings and FHLBadVànces 212585

Long-term borrowings 63000

3.08%

1.43%

0.68%

1.83%

2.32%

1468014 35736Total interest bearing liabilities

Non-interest bearingliabilities and

shareholders equity

Demand deposits

Other liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total non-interest bearing liabilities and

shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

Interest rate spread

Net interest income

Net interest margin

173083

17557

114150

304790

$1772804

2.50%

$45580

2.76%
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Changes in net interest income

The Company is unable to provide an analysis of the changes in net interest income due to volume and rate changes

because there are no comparable periods as the periods required to be presented are being of different lengths due to

the Merger discussed above and due to the investment by CBF

Non-interest income

Dollars in thousands

Equity in income from investment in

Capital Bank NA
Investment advisory and trust fees

Service charges on deposit accounts

Other

Debit card income

Fees on mortgage loans sold

Earnings on bank owned life insurance

policies

Investment securities gains losses net

Loss on sale of indirect auto loans

Life insurance gain

Gain on sale of assets

Total non-interest income

The Company is unable to provide comparable analysis in this discussion of non-interest income because

there are no comparable periods presented due to the Merger and investment by CBF discussed above

Successor Company

Twelve months ended December 31 2011

The non-interest incothe for the twelve months ended December31 2011 includes only four months of the

operations of TIB Bank and eight months of equity in income from investment in Capital Bank NA of $4.1 million

net of tax Investment advisory fees of $1.3 million were earned by NCA during the period Prior to the Merger the

Bank earned fees of $498000 from the origination and sale of $23.5 million of residential mortgages in the

secondary market Additionally the Company recorded $700000 of management fee income pursuant to third

party reliance agreement which covered services provided by TIB Bank employees on behalf of the Companys

affiliate NAFH Bank prior to the Merger

Three months ended December31 2010

During the three months ended December 31 2010 fees from the origination and sale of $23.0 million of

residential mortgages in the secondary market were $449000 Investment advisory fees of $354000 were earned

during the quarter through NCA

The following table presents the principal components of non-interest income for the year ended December

31 2011 for the three months ended December 31 2010 for the nine months ended September 30 2010 and for the

year ended December 31 2009

Successor company Predecessor company

Three Months Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended

December December 31 September 30 December 31

31 2011 2010 2010 2009

$4084 $- $- $-

1293 354 948 997

1070 864 2585 4165

951 547 682 698

559 386 1101 1066

498 449 1219 1143

159 110 354 546

12 2635 4295

344
134 1186

12 14

$8626 $2710 $9326 $14110
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Predecessor Company

Nine months ended September 30 2010

During the nine months ended September30 2010 investment security gains of $2.6 million were realized

on the sale of $208.6 million of available for sale securities Fees from the origination and sale of $48.2 million of

residential mortgages in the secondary market were $1.2 million Investment advisory fees of $948000 were earned

by NCA during the period An insurance gainof $134000 was recognized on bank owned life insurance policy

and $344000 loss was recorded on the sale of $20.1 million of indirect auto loans during the first quarter of 2010

Twelve months ended December 31 2009

During the year ended December 31 2009 investment security gains of $4.3 million were realized on the

sale of $525.4 million of available for sale securities gain of $1.2 million was recognized resulting from the death

benefit received from bank owned life insurance policy covering former employee Investment advisory fees of

$997000 were earned by NCA during the period Fees from the origination and sale of $57.8 million of residential

mortgages in the secondary market were $1.1 million

Non-interest expenses

Salary and employee benefits

Net occupancy and equipment expense

Impairment expense

Accounting legal and other professional

FDIC and state assessments

Amortization of intangibles

Computer services

Foreclosed asset related expense

Insurance non-building

Other operating expenses

Postage coUrier and armored car

Marketing and community relations

Operating sUpplies

Special FDIC assessment

Operational charge-offs

Capital Raise Expense

Total non-interest expenses

Dollars in thousands

The following table presents the principal components of non-interest expense for the year ended

December 31 2011 for the three months ended December 31 2010 for the nine months ended September 30 2010

and for the
year ended December 31 2009

Successor company Predecessor company

Three Months Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 September 30 December 31
2011 2010 2010 2009

$9009 $6632 $19859 $28594

2760 2051 6948 9442

2872 5887
1995 856 2866 3271

1278 1184 3515 3163

733 364 1168 1430

628 849 2022 2708

565 536 21687 3149
531 447 171 870

527 310 1859 2945

378 260 823 1084

267 258 860 1128

176 128 402 716

800

51 48 69 155

2067

$21770 $13923 $65316 $6342

The Company is unable to provide comparable analysis in this discussion of non interest expense because there are

no comparable periods due to the Merger discussed above
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Successor Company

Twelve months ended December 31 2011

Non-interest expense for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 includes only four months of the

operations of TIB Bank The Companys registered investment advisor Naples Capital Advisors Inc experienced

decrease in assets under advisement following the departure of certain employees leading to the $2.9 million

customer relationship intangible impairment recorded in 2011 Due to the Investment the corresponding

improvement in our financial condition and capital position and the Merger the ratepaid for FDIC insurance costs

declined Foreclosed asset related expenses of $565000 includes OREO workout related expenses along with

ownership costs such as real estate taxes insurance and other costs to own and maintain the properties and were

reduced by net gains on the sale of OREO of approximately $121000 Non-interest expense also includes

management fee expense
related to services provided to the Company by employees of Capital Bank NA of

$214000 and $106000 of professional fees associated with the bank mergers and the Companys potential merger

with and into CBF

Three months ended December 31 2010

During the three months ended December 31 2010 non-interest expense included foreclosed asset related

expenses of $536000 which includes OREO workout related expenses along with ownership costs such as real

estate taxes insurance and other costs to own and maintain the properties and FDIC insurance costs of $1.2 million

Predecessor Company

Nine months ended September 30 2010

For the nine months ended September 30 2010 OREO valuation adjustments and related expenses were

$21 million Of this amount $19 million related to OREO valuation adjustments reflecting the decline in real

estate values determined by updated appraisals comparable sales and local market trends in asking prices and data

from recent closed transactions Other OREO operating and ownership expenses were $2 million Such costs

include real estate taxes insurance and other costs to own and maintain the properties Stock based compensation

expense of $561 000 related to the accelerated vesting of stock options and restricted stock due to the closing of the

Investment on September 30 2010 FDIC insurance costs of $3 million related to higher deposit insurance

premium rates in effect since the second quarter of 2010 Capital raise expense of $2 million related to our capital

raising initiatives and the termination of related consulting agreement

Twelve months ended December 31 2009

During the year ended December 31 2009 the Company recorded goodwill impairment charge Of $5.9

million and one-time special FDIC assessment of $800000 Foreclosed asset related expenses of $3.1 million

during 2009 included approximately $1 million of valuation adjustments on nine properties due to the decline in

real estate values reflected in updated appraisals as well as net losses of $168 000 recognized on the sales of thirteen

properties Legal and professional fees of $3.3 million included legal fees incurred in managing and resolving non-

performing loans and assets Other operating expense included $223000 of information system conversion costs

related to The Bank of Venice merger

Provision for income taxes

The provision for income taxes includes federal and state income taxes Fluctuations in effective tax rates

reflect the effect of the differences in the inclusion or deductibility of certain income and expenses respectively for

income tax purposes The effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31 2011 was 47% Due to the

Merger discussed above the deconsolidation of TIB Bank and the equitymethod of accounting for the Companys
investment in Capital Bank NA the effective tax rate reflected in the current period was lower than the statutory tax

rate As the equity in income from investment in Capital Bank NA is net of income tax expense such earnings are

treated as permanent difference and are not included in taxable income Excluding the impact of the equity method

earnings from Capital Bank NA the effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31 2011 would have

been approximately 36% As of December 31 2011 management considered the need for valuation allowance

and based upon its assessment of the relative weight of the positive and negative evidence available at the time of

the analysis concluded that valuation allowance was not necessary
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The effective income taxrate for the three months ended December 31 201 Oi.vas 3i No tax benefit was

recorded during the nine months ended September 30 2010 due to an offsetting increase in the valuation allowance

against deferred taxes The effective income tax rate for the year
ended December 31 2009 was 28% The income

tax expense reported during 2009 was due to the recognition ofa full valuation allowance against our deferred tax

assets as of December 31 2009 of which $304 million was recorded as income tax expense and the $1.2 million

relating to unrealized losses on available for sale securities was recorded as an adjustment to equity through

accumulated other comprehensive income

valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets is required when it is considered more likely than not

greater than 50% likelihood that all or part of the benefit related to such assets will not be realized In assessing the

need for valuation allowance management considered various factors including the significant cumulative losses

we had incurred prior to the Jnvestment by CBF coupled with the expectation as of December 31 2009 that our

future realization of deferred taxes will be limited as result of planned capital offering These factors represent

the most significant negative evidence that management considered in concluding that full valuation allowance

was necessary at December 31 2009 Excluding the impact of the valuation allowance the effective tax benefit

would have been approximately 35% for 2009 This benefit was reduced by the impairment charge recorded against

non deductible goodwtll which was partially offset by the impact of non-taxable gain resulting from the receipt of

proceeds from life insurance policy covering former employee

Our future effective income tax rate will fluctuate based on the amount of the equity in income from our

investment in Capital Bank NA and our overall level of taxable income See Notes and 13 of our consolidated

financial statements for additional information about the calculation of income tax expense and the various

components thereof Additionally there were no unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2011 and we do not

expect the total of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase in the next twelve months

Loan Portfolio

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loans

were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011 Total loans were $1.00

billion at the end of2OlO As of December 31 2010 real estate mortgage loans consisted of commercial real estate

mortgage loans of $600.4 million residential loans of $225.9 million construction and vacant land of $38.9

commercial and agricultural loans of $72.7 million The indirect auto portfolio was $28.0 million at December 31
2010 The balance of outstanding indirect loans declined in 2010 primarily due to an asset sale in March of 2010 of

$20.1 million

The following table presents the composition our loan portfolio at December 31

Dollars in thousands

Real estate mortgage loans

Commercial

Residential

Farmland

Construction and vacant land

Commercial and agricultural

loans

Indirect auto loans

Home equity loans

Other consumer loans

Subtotal

Less deferred loan costs fees
Less allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Successor Company Predecessor Company

2010 2009 2008 2007

$600372 $680409 $658516 $612084

225850 236945 205062 112138

12083 13866 13441 11361

38956 97424 147309 168595

60642 69246 71352 72076

28038 50137 82028 117439

29658 37947 34062 21820

8730 10190 11549 12154

1004329 1196164 1223319 1127667

301 1352 1656 1489

402 29083 23783 14973
$1004228 $1168433 $1201192 $1114183
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Two of the most significant components of the loan portfolio are commercial real estate and construction and vacant

land The following charts illustrate the composition of these portfolios as of December31

Dollars in thousands

Mixed Use CommerciaL/Residential

Office Buildings

Hotels/Motels

1-4 Family and Multi Family

Guestliouses

Retail Buildings

Restaurants

Marinas/Docks

Warehouse and Industrial

Other
________________________ ________________________

Total

2010 Successor Company

Construction and Percentage

Vacant Land Composition

$6729 17%

1491 4%

1522 4%

9742 25%

5601 15%

10687 27%

6282 16%

6644 17%

29214 75%

$38956 100%

2009 Predecessor Company

Construction and Percentage

Vacant Land Composition

$6024 6%

6574 7%

13127 13%

25725 26%

20684 21%

12773 13%

16877 17%

21365 23%

71699 74%

$97424 100%

2010 Successor Company
Commercial Percentage

Real Estate Composition

$88887 15%

92310 15%

69177 12%

57645 10%

89868 14%

68800 11%

40382 7%

19224 3%

28833 5%

45246 8%

$600372 100%

2009 Predecessor Company

Commercial Percentage

Real Estate Composition

$102901 15%

103426 15%

78992 12%

75342 11%

94663 14%

78852 12%

5Q395 7%

19521 3%

3232 5%

43989 6%

$680409 100%

Dollars in thousands

Construction

Residential owner occupied

Residential commercial developer

Commercial structure

Total construction

Land

Raw land

Residential lots

Land development

Commercial lots

Total land

Total
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Allowance ad Provision for Loan Losses

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

allowance for loan losses was reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

The allowance for loan losses is valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses in the loan

portfolio Our formalized process for assessing the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the resultant need

if any for periodic provisions to the allowance charged to income includes both individual loan analyses and loan

pool analyses Individual loan analyses are periodically performed on loan relationships of significant size or

when otherwise deemed necessary and primarily encompass commercial real estate and other commercial loans

The result is that commercial real estate loans and commercial loans are divided into the following risk categories

Pass Special Mention Substandard and Loss The allowance consists of specific and general components When

appropriate specific reserve will be established for individual loans based upon the risk classifications and the

estimated potential for loss The specific component relates to loans that are individually classified as impaired

Otherwise we estimate an allowance for each risk category The general allocations to each risk category are based

on factors including historical loss rate perceived economic conditions local national and global perceived

strength of our management recent trends in loan loss history and concentrations of credit

Home equity loans indirect auto loans residential loans and consumer loans generally are not analyzed

individually and or separately identified for impairment disclosures These loans are grouped into pools and

assigned risk categories based on their current payment status and managements assessment of risk inherent in the

various types of loans The allocations are based on the same factors mentioned above

Senior management and the Board of Directors review this calculation and the underlying assumptions on

routine basis not less frequently than quarterly

Due to the closing of the Investment on September 30 2010 which resulted in their ownership of

approximately 99% of the Company immediately following the Investment significant preliminary accounting

adjustments were recorded resulting in the Companys balance sheet being revalued to fair value The most

significant adjustments related to loans which previously were recorded based upon their contractual amounts and

were adjusted to reflect September 30 2010 estimated fair values During the nine months of 2010 prior to the

application of adjustments related to the application of the acquisition method of accounting the provision for loan

losses reflected increases in the amount of required valuation allowances on impaired loans The allowance for loan

losses had increased due primarily to the impact of recent historical charge-off experience on the factors used in

estimating the allowance for loan losses Partially offsetting the impact of historical loss rate factors used in

estimating the provision for loan losses were overall declines in loan balances outstanding declines in loans

classified as impaired and changes in the mix of loan types As of September 30 2010 due to the application of the

acquisition method of accounting loans were recorded at fair value and no allowance for loan losses was required

The provision for loan losses at December 31- 2011 and 2010 reflects the allowance for loan losses established for

loans originated subsequent to September 30 2010

The provision for loan losses is charge to income in the current period to replenish the allowance and

maintain it at level that management has determined to be adequate to absorb estimated incurred losses in the loan

portfolio Our provision for loan losses was $62 1000 for the twelve months ended December 31 2011 and

$402000 for the three months ended December 31 2010 Successor Company $29.7 million for the nine months

ended September 30 2010 Predecessor Company The provision for loan losses was impacted by many factors

including changes in the value of real estate collateralizing loans net charge-offs the decline in loans outstanding

the decline in impaired loans historical loss rates and the mix of loan types The higher provision for loan losses in

2010 and 2009 was primarily attributable to the national and local market economic recession and the continued

financial challenges of our consumer and commercial customers as well as the increase in our nonperforming loans

delinquencies and charge-offs Net charge-offs were $26.4 million or 2.33% of average loans during the first nine

months of 2010 and $37.0 million or 3.01% of average loans as of December 31 2009
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Changes affecting the allowance for loan losses are summarized below

Net charged off

Provision for loan losses

Acquisition of The Bank of Venice

Acquisition accounting adjustment

Reduction due to deconsolidation of the

Bank

Allowance for loan losses at end of period

Ratio of net charge-offs to average net loans

outstanding

26374 36956 19429 4932

29697 42256 28239 9657

667

Dollars in thousands Successor Company PredecesorCompany

Year Ended Three Months Nine Months Year Year Year

December Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended

31 2011 December31 September December December December

2010 302010 31 2009 312008 31 2007

Balance at begmmng of penod

$402 $- $29083 $23783 $14973 $9581

Charge-offs

Real estate mortgage loans

Commercial 9851 10418 1577 118

Residential 3151 3815 1897 63

Construction and vacant land 8062 11967 4324 1251

Commercial and agricultural loans 527 028 587 278

Indirect auto loans 24 2120 7292 10674 3110

Home equity loans 682 504 270 331

Other consumer loans 39 242 180 51

Total charge-offs 24 27432 37266 19509 5202

Recoveries

Real estatemortgage loans

Commercial 29 21

Residential 161 153 10

Construction and vacant land 13

Commercial and agricultural loans 803 45

Indirect auto loans 59 66 54 262

Home equity loans 11

Other consumer loans 14

Total recoveries 058 310 80 270

24

621 402

999

32406

$- $402 $- $29083 $23783 14973

N/M N/M 2.33% 3.01% 1.64% 0.45%
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The following table represents managements best estimate of the allocation of the allowance for loan

losses to the various segments of the loan portfolio

Real estate mortgage loans

Commercial

Residential

Farmland

Construction and vacant

land

Commercial and

agricultural loans

Indirect auto loans

Home equity loans

Other consumer loans

Unallocated

24 N/A

184 N/A

14 N/A

N/A

2868 8% 1313 12%

6% 2256

4% 5708

3% 694

1% 142

6% 1547

6% 5072

3% 213

1% 113

1095

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loans

were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Non-performing loans and impaired loans are defined differently Some loans may be included in both

categories whereas other loans may only be included in one category loan is considered impaired when it is

probable that not all principal and interest amounts will be collected according to the loan contract Generally

residential mortgages commercial and commercial real estate loans exceeding certain size thresholds established by

management are individually evaluated for impairment Nonaccrual loans and restructured loans where loan term

concessions benefitting the borrowers have been made are generally designated as impaired The application of

purchase accounting due to the September 30 2010 Investment impacted the disclosure for impaired loans All

loans impaired as well as non-impaired loans were recorded in the financial statements at their fair value and the

allowance for loan loss was eliminated because the fair value is determined by the net present value of the expected

cash flows taking into consideration the credit quality Consequently after recording the purchase accounting

adjustment none of the loans have carrying amount greater than their fair value

Within the context of the accounting for impaired loans described in the preceding paragraph there were no

impaired loans after the purchase accounting adjustment and based on payments received during the three months

ended December 31 2010 compared to the estimate of expected cash flows developed as of September 30 2010 no

new impairment was identified

If loan is considered to be impaired portion of the allowance is allocated so that the carrying value of

the loan is reported at the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted using the loans original rate or at

the fair value of collateral less disposition costs if repayment is expected solely from the collateral As of

December 31 2011 and 2010 there were no impaired loans

Dollars in thousands Successor Compaiy Predecessor Company

December 31 2011 December 312010 December 31 2009 December 31 2008 December 31 2007

%of %of %of %of %of

Total Total Total Total Total

Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans

$- $7 N/A

164 N/A

$13895

3897

198

57%

20%

1%

$11143

2393
134

54%

17%

1%

$5250
381

84

54%

10%

1%

3033

3244

1011

285

652

1218 15%

Impaired Loans

$0 $402 N/A $29083 100% $23783 100% $14973 100%

6%
11%

2%
1%
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Non-Performing Assets

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no non

performing assets were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Non-performing assets include non-accrual loans and investments securities repossessed personal property

and other real estate Loans and investments in debt securities are placed on non-accrual status when management

has concerns relating to the ability to collect the principal and interest and generally when such assets are 90 days

past due Non-performing assets were as follows for the periods ending December 31
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Dollars in thousands
Successor Company Predecessor Company

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Total non accrual loans $72 833 $39 776 $16 086

Accruing loans delinquent 90 days or more 56337

Total non-performing loans 56337 72833 39776 16086

Non-accrual investment securities2 795 759 763 3154

Repossessed personal property primarily indirect auto.loans 104 326 601 3136

Other real estate owned 25673 21352 4323 1846

Otherassets3 2111 2090 2076 2915

Total non-performing assets $- $85020 $97360 $47539 $27137

Allowance for loan losses $402 $29 083 $23 783 $14 973

Non performing assets as percent of total assets 84% 71% 95% 88%

Non performing loans as percent of total loans N/A 09% 25% 43%

Allowance for loan losses as percent of non performing loans N/A 39 93% 59 79% 93 08%

In December 2006 the Bank stopped aŁcfuing interest on loanpursuantto ruling madeby the USDA Accordingly

the loan was included in total non-accrual loans as of December 312006 and 2007. During 2008 the USDA repaid the

guaranteed portion of the loan in accordance with the provisions of the guarantee agreement There were no non-accrual

loans as of December31 2Q11 and 2010

In December 2007 we placed collateralized debt obligation CDO collateralized primarily by homebuilders

REITs real estate companies and commercial mortgage backed securities on non accrual This security had an original cost

of $6 million During 2008 two additional similarly secured collateralized debt obligations with original costs of $2

million each were also placed on nonaccrual As of December 31 2007 and throughout 2008 the estimated fair value of

these securities declined further and management has periodiàlly deemed such declines other than temporary Through

December 31 2008 we had recorded cumulative realized losses totaling $9.2 million relating to these securities During

2009 the remaining balance of these securities was written off and an additional CDO with an original cost of $5.0 million

collateralized by trust preferred securities of banks and insurance companies was placed on nonaccrual As this security has

been downgraded and interest payments are currently being deferred the estimated fair value of this security had declined to

approximately $759000 as of December 31 2009 Due to the Investment andthe application of the acquisition method of

accounting the recorded investment in this remaining CDO was adjusted to its September 30 2010 estimated fair value of

$807 000 As of December 31 2010 the estimated fair value had declined to $795 000 The estimated fair values for this

CDO are based upon analyses performed by an independent third-party engaged by the Company as of December 31 2010

and 2009 which estimated the fair value and credit loss potential of the security For additional details on these and other

investment securities see the section of managements discussion and analysis that follows entitled Investment Portfolio

In 1998 TIB Bank made $10.0 million loan to construct lumber mill in northern Florida Of this amount $6.4

million had been sold by the Bank to other lenders. The loan was 80% guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S

Department of Agriculture USDA In addition to business real estate and equipment the loan was collateralized by the

business owners interest in trust Under provisions of the trust agreement beneficiaries cannot receive trust assets until

November 2010 As of December 31 2010 the trust is in the process of liquidation and determining the distributions

payable to the trusts beneficiaries

The portion of this loan guaranteed by the USDA and held by us was approximately $1.6 million During the second

quarter of 2008 the USDA paid the Company the principal and accrued interest and allowed the Company to apply other

proceeds previously received to reduce capitalized liquidation costs and protective advances The non-guaranteed principal

and interest $2.0 million at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 and the reimbursable capitalized liquidation costs

and protective advance costs totaling approximately $146000 and $126000 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

are included as other assets in the financial statements

Florida law requires bank to liquidate or charge off repossessed real property within five years and repossessed

personal property within six months Since the property had not been liquidated during this period the Bank charged-off the

non guaranteed principal and interest totaling $2.0 million at June 30 2003 for regulatory purposes Since we believe this

amount is ultimately realizable we did not write off this amount for financial statement purposes under generally accepted

accounting principles
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Liquidity

Liquidity represents the ability to provide sufficient funds to cover operating obligations The Company is

obligated to repay its $8 million trust preferred secunty in 2030 its $5 million trust preferred secunty in 2031

and its $20 million trust preferred security in 2036 Funds for such payments can be obtained by capital

contributions from the Companys holding company CBF

On April 29 2011 the Companys primary operating subsidiary TIB Bank was merged with and into

NAFH Bank an affiliate institution which had been wholly-owned by the Companys controlling shareholder CBF
preceding the Merger Pursuant to the merger agreement dated April 27 2011 between NAFH Bank and TIB Bank
the Company exchanged its 100% ownership interest in TIB Bank for an approximately 53% ownership interest in

the surviving combined entity NAFH Bank CBF is deemed to control NAFH Bank due to NAFHs 94% ownership

interest in the Company and CBFs direct ownership of the remaining 47% interest in NAFH Bank subsequent to the

Merger Aàcordingly subsequent to April 29 2011 the Company began to account for its ownership in NAFH Bank

under the equity method of accounting and the assets and liabilities of the Bank were de-consolidated from the

Company balance sheet The deconsolidation resulted in significant decrease in the total assets and total

liabilities of the Company in the second quarter of 2011 Accordingly as of December 31 2011 no investments

loans or deposits are reported on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet and subsequent to the Merger Date

interest income and interest expense are the result of cash deposited in Capital Bank NA and the outstanding trust

preferred securities issued by the Company respectively.

On June 30 2011 Capital Bank wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Bank Corp an affiliated bank

holding company in which CBF has an 83% ownership interest was merged with and into NAFH Bank with NAFH
Bank as the surviving entity Subsequently and as result of that transaction the Companys ownership interest in

NAFH Bank was reduced to 33% In connection with the transaction NAFH Bank also changed its name to Capital

Bank NA On September 2011 GreenBank wholly owned subsidiary of Green Bankshares Inc an affiliated

bank holding company in which CBF has 90% ownership was merged with and into Capital Bank NA On

September 30 2011 Capital Bank Corp made contribution of $10.0 million additional capital to Capital Bank
NA Subsequently and as result of these transactions the Companys ownership interest in Capital Bank NA was

reduced tO 21%

On September 2011 CBFs Board of Directors approved and adopted plan of merger The plan of

merger provides for the merger of TIB Financial Corp with and into CBF with CBF continuing as the surviving

entity In the merger each share of TIB Financial Corp common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior

to the completion of the merger except for shares for which appraisal rights are properly exercised and certain

shares held by CBF or TIB Financial Carp will be converted into the nght to receive 7205 of share of CBF

Class common stock No fractional shares of Class Acommon stock will be issued in connection with the merger

and holders of TIB Financial Corp common stock will be entitled to receive cash in lieu thereof

Since CBF currently owns more than 90% of common stock of TIB Financial Corp under Delaware and

Flonda law no vote of our stockholders is required to complete the merger
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Major sources of net changes in cash and cash equivalents are as follows for the year ended December 31

2011 for the three months ended December 31 2010 for the nine months ended September 30 2010 and for the

year ended December 31 2009

Dollars in thousands Successor Company Predecessor Company

Three Months Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 September December

2011 2010 30 2010 31 2009

Provided by used in operating activities $7566 $25036 $9809 $3335
Provided by used in investing activities 71728 83371 6753 253675

Provided by used in financing activities 72279 32536 59207 156672
Net increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents $15 1573 $75.871 $62263 $93668

During the first second and third quarters of 2009 the Companys Board of Directors declared 1% one

percent stock dividends to holders of record as of March 31 2009 June 30 2009 and September 30 2009

respectively The stock dividends were distributed on April 10 2009 July 10 2009 and October 10 2009 The

decision to replace our quarterly cash dividend with stock dividend was made after consideration of the current

and projected economic and operating environment and to conserve cash and capital resources at the holding

companyto support the potential capital needs of the Bank

During 2011 the Company affected for 100 reverse stock split and launched rights offenng to

shareholders of record as of July 12 2010 which resulted in approximately $7.8 million of additional capital and

compliance with the continued listing requirements of the NASDAQ Capital Market

As of December 31 2011 our holding company had cash of approximately $2.2 million This cash is

available for providing additional capital support to Capital Banlç NA and for other general corporate purposes As

discussed abdve on October 2009 the Company adopted reolution that it would not declare or pay any

dividends on its outstanding common or preferred stock nor would it make any payments or distributions on the

outstanding trust preferred securities or corresponding subordinated debentures without the prior written approval of

the FRB The Company notified the trustees of its $20 million trust preferred securities due July 2036 and its $5

million trust preferred securities due July 31 2031 of its election to defer interest payments on the trust preferred

securitiesbeginning with the payments due in October2009 In January 2010 the Company notified the trustees of

its $8 million trust preferred securities due September 20 31 of its election to defer interest payments on the trust

preferred securities beginning with the payment dueMarch 2010 Deferral of the trust preferred securities is allowed

for up to 60 months without being considered an event of default Additionally the Company may not declare or pay
dividends on its capital stock including dividends on preferred stock or with certain exceptions repurchase capital

stock without first having paid all trust preferred interest and all cumulative preferred dividends that are due The

Company submitted written request to the FRB to authorize the payment of deferred and current interest payments

through the next payment date and future interest payments when due as scheduled on the three trust preferred

securities On September 28 2011 pursuant to receipt of the FRBs approval concurrent interest payments were

made on each of the trust preferred securities and the Company began the process of exiting from the deferral

period On November 2011 the FRB notified the Company that the Written Agreement was terminated effective

April 30 2011 given that TIB Bank was merged into Capital Bank and that the condition of the Company was

subsequently upgraded

Currently the 0CC Operating Agreement withCapital Bank prohibits the Bank from paying dividend for

three years following the July 16 2010 initial acquisition date Once the three-year period has elapsed the

agreement imposes other restrictions on Capital Banks ability to pay dividends including requiring prior approval

from the 0CC before any distribution is made Therefore the Company does not expect to receive dividends from

the Bank in the foreseeable future

Dividends that may be paid by national bank without express approval of the 0CC are limited to that

banks retained net profits for the preceding two years plus retained net profits up to the date of any dividend

declaration in the current calendar year Based on the retained net profits of the Bank declaration of dividends by

the Bank to the Company during 2011 if not subject to other restrictions would have been limited to approximately.

$9.2 million

79-



Investment Portfolio

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

investment securities were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

The following table presents the amortized cost unrealized gains unrealized losses and fair value for the

major categories of our investment portfolio for each reported period

Available for SaleDecember 31 2010 Successor Company

Dollars in thousands AmórtiiŁd Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

U.S Government agencies and corporations $40980 15 296 $40699

States and political subdivisions tax exempt 082 25 059

States and political subdivisions taxable 2308 151 2157

Marketable equity securities 102 28 74

Mortgage-backed securities residential 372409 946 4152 369203

Corporate bonds 2104 2105

Collateralized debt obligations 807 12 795

$421792 $964 $4664 $418092

Other than temporary impairment of available for sale securities

As discussed above due to the merger the Company does not hold investment securities as of December

31 2011 .There was no .other than temporary impairment of available for sale securities to report for 2011

As of December 31 2010 we owned three collateralized debt obligation investment securities

collateralized by debt obligations of homebuilders REITs real estate companies and commercial mortgage backed

securities with an aggregate original cost of $10.0 million Through December 31 2009 we recorded cumulative

other than temporary impairment losses of $10.0 milliondn these securities In determining the estimated fair value

of these securities we utilized discounted cash flow modeling valuation approach which is discussed in greater

detail in Note 19 Fair Value These securities are floating rate securities which were rated or better by an

independent and nationally recognized rating agency at the time of our purchase In late December 2007 these

securities were downgraded below investment grade by nationally recognized rating agency Due to the ratings

downgrade and the amount of unrealized loss management concluded that the loss of value was other than

temporary under generally accepted accounting principles and the Company wrote these investment securities down

to their estimated fair value This resulted in the recognition of other than temporary impairment loss of $3.9 million

in2007 During 2008 the estimated fair value of these securities declined further due to the occurrence of additional

defaults by certain underlying issuers and changes in the cash flow and discount rate assumptions used to estimate

the value of these securities During 2008 we concluded that the further declines in values were other than

temporary under generally accepted accounting principles Accordingly we wrote-down these investment securities

by an additional $5.3 million These additional write downs included the complete write off of two of the three

securities with an original cost of $2.0 million each The third security with an original cost of $6.0 million was

valued at an estimated fair value of $763000 as of December 31 2008 During 2009 additional defaults by

underlying issuers and corresponding changes in estimated future cash flow assumptions resulted in the write-down

of this third security to $0

As of December 31 2010 the Company owned collateralized debt security with an original cost of $5.0

million where the underlying collateral is comprised primarily of trust preferred securities of banks and insurance

companies This security was rated AA by nationally recognized rating agency at the time of our purchase The

inputs used in determining the estimated fair value of this security are Level inputs In determining the estimated

fair value management utilized discounted cash flow modeling valuation approach through September 30 2010

Discount rates utilized in the modeling of these securities were estimated based upon variety of factors including

the market yields of publicly traded trust preferred securities of larger financial institutions and other non-investment

grade corporate debt Cash flows utilized in the modeling of these securities were based upon actual default history

80



of the underlying issuers and varying assumptions of estimated future defaults of issuers During 2009 the estimated

fair value of this security declined further due to the occurrence of downgrades by rating agencies additional

defaults or deferrals by certain underlying issuers and changes in the estimated timing of the future cash flow and

discount rate assumptions used to estimate the value of this security As of December 31 2009 we engaged an

independent third party valuation firm to estimate the fair value and credit loss potential of this security

Management reviewed the assumptions and methodology employed in this analysis and while the assumptions
differed from those used in prior quarters to estimate the fair value of the security the general premise of the

methodology of discounting estimated future cash flows based upon the expected performance of the underlying
issuers collateralizing the security was consistent with managements previous approach Based upon this analysis
as of December 31 2010 management concluded that the further decline in value does not meet the definition of

other than temporary under generally accepted accounting principles because no credit loss has been incurred

Additionally during 2007 the market value of an investment in equity securities which the Company
originally acquired in 2003 for $3.0 million to obtain community reinvestment credit of publicly owned company
declined significantly During 2007 management determined that the decline was other than temporary
accordingly we wrote this investment down by $1.8 million Due to significant further declines in market value

during 2008 we wrote this investment down further by $1.1 million in 2008 and decided to sell portion of this

investment in December 2008 to ensure we would fully realize the associated capital loss carryback potential for

Federal income tax purposes In doing so we recognized an additional realized loss of approximately $124000 upon
the partial disposition of this investment in 2008

The write downs described above resulted in total recognized other than temporary impairment losses of

$763000 during 2009

We regularly reviewed each investment security for impairment based on criteria that include the extent to

which cost exceeds the estimated fair value the duration of that market decline the financial health of and specific

prospects for the issuers and our ability and intention with regard to holding the security to maturity For additional

detail regarding our impairment assessment process see Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated financial

statements below

Deposits

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no deposits
were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011
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The following table presents the average amount outstanding and the average rate paid on deposits for the

year ended December 31 2011 for the three months ended December 31 2010 for the nine months ended

September 30 2010 and for the year ended December 31 2009

Successor Company Predecessor CompanyDollars in

thousands

Non-interest bearing

deposits

Interest-bearing

deposits

NOW Accounts

Money market

Savings deposit

Time deposits

Total

Year Ended December Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Year Ended December

31 2011 December 31 2010 September 30 2010 31 2009

Average Average Average Average Average Average Average

Amount Rate Average Rate Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

$189566

172519

184597

75796

732516

$1354994

0.32

0.88%

0.67

1.01

0.74

$182073 $173083

201570 0.35% 18239S 0.68%

185821 1.05% 196469 1.43%

78661 071 116956 1.83%

708892 2.15 696606 308

$1357017 1.36% $1365512 2.02%
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

investments loans or deposits are reported on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31 2011

and subsequent to the Merger Date the only outstanding obligation is the trust preferred securities issued by the

Company

Our off balance sheet arrangements and contractual obligations at December 31 2011 are summarized in

the table that follows

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Over One Over

Year Three

Total Through Years

Amounts One Year Three Through Over Five

Committed or Less Years Five Years Years

$- $-

Contractual obligations

Time deposits $- $-

Operating lease obligations

Purchase obligations

FHLB Advances

Long-term debt ____________________________________________________
Total

____________________________________________

Long term debt at December 31 2011 consists of subordinated debentures ota1ing $23.2 million These

borrowings are further described in Note 12 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital Adequacy

There are various primary measures of capital adequacy for banks and bank holding companies
such as risk

based capital guidelines and the leverage capital ratio See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of December 31 2011 the Companys risk-based capital ratio of Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

was 98 4% its risk based ratio of total capital to risk weighted assets was 98 4% and its leverage ratio was 96 4%
Due to the merger and deconsolidation of the Bank discussed abo.ethe regulatory capital ratios are not meaningful

Subsequent to the merger and deconsolidation the primary source of support for Capital Bank NA is the

Companys majority shareholderCBF

On September 22 2010 the Federal Reserw Bank of Atlanta FRB and the Company entered into

written agreement where the Company agreed among other things that it would not make any payments on the

outstanding trust preferred securities or declare or pay any dividends without the prioitwritten approval of the FRB
On September 28 2011 pursuant to approval by the FRB of written request by the Company the Company
resumed payments of all amounts due for current and deferred interest through the next payment.dateforeaçhof its

trust preferred securities On November 2011 the FRB notified the Company that the Written Agreement was

terminated effective April 30 2011 given that TIB Bank was merged into Capital Bank and that the condition of the

Company was subsequently upgraded

On September 30 2010 the Company issued and sold to CBF 7000 000 shares of Common Stock 70 000

shares of Series Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 11 666667 shares of Common Stock of the

Company for aggregate ôonsideration of $175O million As resUlt of this investment the Company increased its

level of capital under capital adequacy guidelines

Dollars in thousands

Off-balance sheet arrangements

Commitments to extend credit

Standby letters of credit

Total

$-

23 176 23 176

$23176 $- $- $23176
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On January 18 2011 the Company concluded rights offering wherein legacy shareholders with rights to

purchase up to 1488792 shares of common stock at price of $15.00 per share acquired 533029 shares of newly

issued common stock The rights offering resulted janet proceeds of approximately $7.8 million

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP Application of these principles

requires management to make complex and subjective estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported in

the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes We base our estimates on historical experience and

on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under current circumstances

These assumptions form the basis for our judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are

not readily available from independent objective sources We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis Use of

alternative assumptions may have resulted in significantly different estimates Actual results may differ from these

estimates

Accounting policies are an integral part of our financial statements thorough understanding of these

accounting policies is essential when reviewing our reported results of operations and our financial position We
believe that the critical accounting policies and estimates discussed below involve additional management judgment

due to the complexity and sensitivity of the methods and assumptions used

Business Combinations

We account for transactions that meet the definition of purchase business combination by recording the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair value upon acquisition Intangible assets indemnification

contracts and contingent consideration are identified and recognized individually If the fair value of the assets

acquired exceeds the purchase price plus the fair value of the liabilities assumed bargain purchase gain is

recognized Conversely if the purchase price plus the fair value of the liabilities assumed exceeds the fairvalue of

the assets acquired goodwill is recognized

Fair Value Measurement

We use estimates of fair value in applying various accounting standards for our consolidated financial

statements Fair value measurements are used in one of four ways in the cOnsolidated balance sheet with

changes in fair value recorded in the consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income loss
in the consolidated balance sheets with changes in fair value recorded in the accumulated other comprehensive

loss section of the consolidated statements of changes in shareholders equity in the consolidated balance sheet

for instrUments carried at the lower of cost or fair value with impairment charges recorded in the consolidated

statements of operations and other comprehensive income loss and in the notes to our consolidated financial

statements

Fair value is defined as the price at which an asset may be sold or liability may be transferred in an orderly

transaction between willing and able market participants In general our policy in estimating fair values is to first

look at observable market prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets where available When these

are not available other inputs are used to model fair value such as prices of similar instruments yield curves

volatilities prepayment speeds default rates and credit spreads including for our liabilities relying first on

observable data from active markets Depending on the availability of observable inputs and prices different

valuation models could produce materially different fair value estimates The values presented may not represent

future fair values and may not be realizable

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of probable loan losses inherent in our loan

portfolio and the difference between the recorded investment and the present values of our most recent estimates of

expected cash flows for purchased impaired loans where we have identified additional impairment subsequent to the

date of acquisition Determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses is considered critical accounting

estimate because it requires significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of

expected future cash flows on impaired loans estimated losses based on risk characteristics of loans and

consideration of other qualitative factors all of which may be susceptible to significant change
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Accounting for Acquired Loans

We account for our acquisitions using the acquisition method of accounting All identifiable assets acquired

including loans are recorded at fair value as of their respective acquisition dates No allowance for loan losses

related to the acquired loans is recorded on the acquisition date as the fair value of the loans acquired incorporates

assumptions regarding credit risk Loans acquired are recorded at fair value exclusive Of the impact of guarantees

under any applicable loss sharing agreements with the FDIC The fair value estimates associated with the loans

include estimates related to expected prepayments and the amount and timing of undiscounted expected principal

interest and other cash flows

Loans acquired in transfer including business combinations with respect to which there is evidence of

credit deterioration since origination and it is probable at the date of acquisition that we will not collect all

contractually required principal and interest payments are accounted for under accounting guidancefor PCI loans

We have aggregated the PCI loans into poois of loans with common risk characteristics Over the life of these

acquired loans we continue to estimate cash flows expected to be collected on individual loans or on pools of loans

sharing common risk characteristics For each pooi of loans we estimate cash flows expected to be collected over

the remaining life of the pools loans based on assumptions about yields prepayments and magnitude and timing of

credit losses and discount those cash flows to present value using effective interest rates.to calculate the carrying

value The difference between our recorded investment or carrying value in the loans and our estimates of

cumulative lifetime undiscounted expected cash flows represents the accretable yield The accretable yield

represents the amount we expect to recognize as interest income over the remaining life of the loans The difference

between the cash flows that our customers legally owe us under the contractual terms of their loan agreements and

our cumulative lifetime expected cash flows represents the non-accretable difference The non-accretable difference

of pool is measure of the expected credit loss prepayments and other factors affecting expected cash flows for

that pool

Each quarter we estimate the expected cash flows for each pool and evaluate whether the present value of

future expected cash flows for each pool has decreased below its recorded investment and if so we recognize

provision for loan loss in our consolidated statement of income for that pool and appropriately adjust the amount of

accretable yield The expected cash flows are estimated based on factors which include loan grades established in

our ongoing credit review program likelihood of default based on observations of specific loans during the credit

review process as well as applicable industry data loss severity based on updated evaluation of cash flow from

available collateral and the contractual terms of the underlying loan agreement For any pool where the present

value of our most recent estimate of future cumulative lifetime cash flows has increased above its recorded

investment we transfer appropriate estimated cash flows from non-accretable difference to accretable yield which

is then recognized in income on prospective basis through an increase in the pools yield over its remaining life

For further discussion of our acquisitions and loan accounting see Notes and to our consolidated financial

statements

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at the lower

of their recorded investment or the fair value of the collateral at the date of foreclosure based on estimates including

some obtained from third parties less estimated costs to sell establishing new cost basis Subsequent to

foreclosure valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of cost or

fair value less estimated costs to sell Significant property improvements that enhance the salability of the property

are capitalized to the extent that the carrying value does not exceed estimated realizable value Legal fees

maintenance and other direct costs of foreclosed properties are expensed as incurred Given the number of properties

included in OREO and the judgment involved in estimating fair value of the properties accounting for OREO is

regarded as critical accounting policy

Deferred Tax Asset

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences between assets and liabilities

measured for financial reporting purposes and for income tax return purposes Realization of tax benefits for

deductible temporary differences depends on having sufficient taxable income of an appropriate character within the

carryforward periods Management must evaluate the probability of realizing the deferred tax asset and determine

the need for valuation reserve as of the date of the eonsolidated financial statements Given the judgment involved

and the amount of our deferred tax assets and liabilities this is considered critical accounting policy As of

December 31 2011 we had net deferred tax liability of $3.6 million
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-08 IntangiblesGoo4will and Other Topic 350
Testing Goodwill for Impairment ASU 201 1-08 ASU 201 108 amended guidancc on the annual goodwill

impairment test performed by the Company Under the amendedguidance the Company will have the option to first

assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform two-step impairment test If the Company

believes as resultof the qualitative assessment that it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit

is less than the carrying value the quantitative impairment test is required Ifthe Company believes the fair value of

reporting unit is greater than the carrying value no further testing is required company can choose to perform

the qualitative assessment on some or none of its reporting entities The amended guidance includes examples of

events and circumstances that might indicate that reporting units fair value is less than its carrying amount These

include macro-economic conditions such as deterioration iæthe entitys operating environment entity-specific

events such as declining financial performance and other events such as an expectation that reporting unit will be

sold The amended guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years

beginning after December 15 2011 However an entity can choose to early adopt the amended guidance even if its

annual test date is before the issuance of the final standard provided that the entity has not yet performed its 2011

annual impairment test or issued its financial statements The adoption of this update will not have an impact on the

Companys consolidated financial condition or results of operations

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of

Comprehensive Income ASU 2011-05 The new guidance amends existing guidance by eliminating the

option to present components of other comprehensive income which we refer to as OCI as part of the statement

of changes in shareholders equity ii requiring the presentation of each component of net income and each

component of OCI either in single continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive statements and

iiirequiring the presentation of reclassification adjustments on the face of the statement The new guidance does

not change the option to present components of OCI either before or after related income tax effects the items that

must be reported in OCI when an item of OCI should be reclassified to net income or the computation of earnings

per share which continues to be based onnet income This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods

beginning on or after December 15 2011 for public companies with early adoption permitted and retrospective

application required The adoption of this update is not expected to have an impact on the Companys consolidated

financial condition or results of operations but will alter future disclosures

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-04 FairValue Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to

Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRSs ASU 2011-

04 The amended guidance clarifies how principal market is determined ii establishes the valuation premise

for the highest and best use of nonfinancial assets iiiaddresses the fair value measurement of instruments with

offsetting market or counterparty credit risks iv extends the prohibition on blockage factors to all three levels of

the fair value hierarchy and requires additional disclosures including transfers between Level and Level of

the fair value hierarchy quantitative and qualitative information and description of an entitys valuation
process

for Level fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy disclosures for financial instruments not measured at

fair value This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15 2011 with

early adoption prohibited The adoption of this update is not expected to have material impact on the Companys

consolidated financial condition or results of operations

InApril 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-02 Receivables The new guidance amended existing guidance for

assisting creditor in determining whether restructuring is troubled debt restructuring The amendments clarify

the guidance for creditors evaluation of whether it has granted concession and whether debtor is experiencing

financial difficulties This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after June 15

2011 and should be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual period of adoption The adoption of this

update did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of operations

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-29 Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma Information for

Business Combinations to amend ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations The amendments in this update specify

that if public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose revenue and earnings of

the combined entity as though the business combinations that occurred during the current year had occurred as of

the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only The amendments in this update are effective

prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual

reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2010 Adoption of this update did not have material impact

on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In July 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-20 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables

and the Allowance for Credit Losses to amend ASC Topic 320 Receivables The amendments in this update are
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intended to provide disclosures that facilitate financial statement users evaluation of the nature of credit risk

inherent in the entitys portfolio of financing receivables how that risk is analyzed and assessed in arriving at the

allowance for credit losses and the changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for credit losses The
disclosures as of the end of reporting period are effective for interim and annual periods ending on or after

December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting period are effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 Adoption of this update did not have material
impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In March 2010 the FASB issued new guidance impacting receivables The new guidance clarifies that

modification to loan that is part of pool of loans that were acquired with deteriorated credit quality should not
result in the removal of the loan from the pooi This guidance is effective for any modifications of loans accounted
for within pool in the first interim or annual reporting period ending after July 15 2010 The adoption of this

guidance was not material to our consolidated financial statements

In February 2010 the FASB issued new guidance impacting fair value measurements and disclosures The
new guidance requires gross presentation of purchases and salesof Level activities and adds new requirement
to disclose transfers in and out of Level and Level measurements The guidance related to the transfers between
Level and Level measurements was effective for us on January 2010 The guidance that requires increased
disaggregation of the Level activities was effective for us on January 2011

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that financial institution earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business
objectives will be adversely affected by movements in market rates or prices such as interest rates foreign exchange
rates equity rates equity prices credit spreads and/or commodity prices The Company has assessed its market risk
as predominately interest rate risk As of December 31 2011 our interest

earning assets consisted of cash on deposit
with Capital Bank NA and our interest bearing liabilities consist of trust preferred securities with notional amount
of $33.0 million Accordingly our net interest income and margin are sensitive to changes in interest rates As the
most significant component of our future operating results will be derived from our 21% investment in CapitaL
Bank NA which represents approximately 97% of the Companys total assets at December 31 2011 we anticipatethat net interest income will become less significant measure of the operating results of the Company in future

periods As $25.0 million of notional value of trust preferred securities are tied to the three month LIBOR rate
changes in net interest income would be directly correlated to changes in this rate Accordingly 100 and 200 basis
point changes in this rate would result in $250000 and $500000 changes in interest expense respectively As the

Companys only interest earning asset is cash on deposit at Capital Bank NA which at December 31 2011 totaled

approximately $1.1 million changes in interest rates would not have significant impact on interest income
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements notes thereto and report of independent registered public accounting

firm thereon included on the following pages are incorporated herein by reference
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders

TIB Financial Corp

Naples Florida

We have audited the accOmpanying consolidated balance sheet of TIB Financial Corp as of December 31 2010

Successor and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in shareholders equity and cash flows

for the three-month period ended December 31 2010 Successor the nine-month period ended September 30 2010

Predecessor and the year ended December 31 2009 The Companys management is responsible for these

financial statements Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits inaccordance with the standards ófthePublic Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan andperform the audits-to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.-An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the 2010 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of TIB Financial Corp as of December31 2010 Successor and the results of its operations

and its cash flows for the three-month period ended December 31 2010 Successor the nine-month period ended

September 30 2010 Predecessor and the year ended December 31 2009 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

1st Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida

March 31 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

of TIB Financial Corporation

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011 and the related consolidated

statements of operations changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the
year

ended December 31 2011

present fairly in all material respects the financial position of TIB Financial Corporation and its subsidiaries

Successor Company at December 31 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year

ended December 31 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit of these statements in

accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includesexamining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our

audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Ft Lauderdale FL

April 2012
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TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

Assets

Cash and due from banks

Interestbearing deposits with banks

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities available-for-sale

Loans net of deferred loan costs and fees

Less Allowance for loan losses

Loans net

Premises and equipment net

Goodwill

Intangible assets net

Other real estate owned

Deferred income tax asset

Accrued interestreceivable and other assets

Equity method investment in Capital Bank NA
Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing demand

Interest-bearing

Total deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Short-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Deferred income tax liability

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders Equity

Preferred stock-$ 10 par value 5000 shares authorized shares issued and

outstanding

Common stock 10 par value 50000 shares authorized 12350 and

11817 shares issued and outstanding respectively

Additional paid in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Total shareholders equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

2011 2010

$1159 $22209

1062 131585

2221 153794

418092

1004630
402

1004228

43153

29999

235 11406

25673

19973

1324 50548

200843

$204623 $1756866

$- $198092

1168933

1367025

131116

47158

23176 22887

3641

428 11930

27245 1580116

1235 1182

170801 177316

3360 560

1982 2308
177378 176750

$204623 $1756866

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

91



Interest and dividend income

Loans including fees

Investment securities

U.S Government agencies and corporations

States and political subdivisions tax-exempt

States and political subdivisions taxable

Other investments

Interest-bearing deposits in other banks

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell

Total interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Interest-bearing demand and money market

Savings

Time deposits of $100 or more

Other time deposits

Long-term debt subordinated debentures

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Short-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Service charges on deposit accounts

Fees on mortgage loans originated and sold

Investment advisory and trust fees

Loss on sale of indirect auto loans

Equity in income from investment in Capital Bank NA
Other income

Investment securities gains net

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments prior to April

2009 adoption of ASC 320-10-65-1

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments subsequent to

April 2009

Gross impaiiThent losses

Less Impairments recognized in other comprehensive income

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings sUbsequent to April 2009

Total non-interest income

TIW Financial Corp aid Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data SuØcessor Company Predecessor Company

Year Three Months Nine Months Year

Ended Ended Ended Ended

December December 31 September December

31 2011 2010 301010 31 2009

$17745 $13698 $45471 $68925

3185 1802 6347 11395

19 14 137 299

31 36 106 143

22 17 26 212

113 103 204 124

31 11 26 24

21146 15681 52317 81127

678 548 1994 4052
231 128 418 2142

1190 931 5419 8587

1177 935 12865

1885 458 1119 1578

301 233 3590 5199
19 15 T69 104

854 1209

5481 3249 1943 35736

15665 12432 32882 45391

621 402 29697 42256

15044 12030 3185 3135

1070 864 2585 4165

498 449 1219 1143

1293 354 948 997

344
4084

1669 1043 2283 3510
12 2635 5058

23

740

740
8626 2710 9326 14110

continued
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Non-interest expense

Salaries and employee benefits

TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Continued

Net occupancy and equipment expense

Goodwill impairment

Foreclosed asset related
expense

Impairment of wealth management customer relationship intangible

Other expense

Total non-interest expense

Income loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit expense

Net income loss

Preferred dividends earned by preferred shareholders and discount

accretion

Gain on retirement of Series preferred allocated to common
shareholders

Net income loss allocated to common shareholders

Basic income loss per common share

Diluted income loss per common share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data Successor Company Predecessor Company
Three Nine

Year Months Months

Ended Ended Ended Year Ended

December December September December

312011 312010 302010 312009

9009 6632 19859 28594

2760 2051 6948 9442

5887

565 536 21687 2847

2872

6564 4704 16822 18572

21770 13923 65316 65342

1900 817 52805 48097
900 257 13451

$2800 $560 52805 61548

2009 2662

24276

30538$2800 $560 64210

$0.23 $0.05 205.64 43327

$0.23 $0.03 205.64 433.27
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Predecessor Company
Balance January 2009

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss

Net market valuation adjustment on securities

available for sale

Less reclassification adjustment for gains

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive loss

Issuance costs associated with preferred stock

issued

Preferred stock discount accretion

Stock-based compensation and related tax effect

Common stock dividends declared

Cash dividends declared preferred stock

Balance December 31 2009

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Other comprehensive income

Net market valuation adjustment on securities

available for sale

Add reclassification adjustment for gains

Other comprehensive loss net of tax benefit of

$523

Comprehensive income

Preferred stock discount accretion

Stock-based compensation and related tax effect

Balance September 30 2010

810

1088
1285

549.994

Shares

Series

37

Common Common
Shares Stock

149 $15

TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

Preferred Additional

Stock Paid in

Series Capital

$32920 $74630

48

484

1088

Accumulated

Retained Other Total

Earnings Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders

Deficit Income Loss Stock Equity

$14737 $619 $569 $121114

61548

810

1096

4295

61548

3199
64747

484

1285
$55518$381837 $33730 149 $15 $76154 $569

52805 52805

5896

2635

572

785

572

3261

49544

785

37 $34302 149 $15 $76939 $103371 5557 5569 $6759

continued
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Successor Company

Balance September 30 2010

Comprehensive loss

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Net market valuation adjustment on securities

available for sale

Comprehensive loss

Conversion of Preferred Stock Series

Reverse stock
split fractional shares

Balance December 31 2010

Comprehensive loss

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Net market valuation adjustment on securities

available for sale

Less reclassification adjustment for gains

Other comprehensive income net of tax expense of

$2902

Comprehensive income

Common stock issued in Rights Offering

Effects of
merger of TIB Bank into Capital Bank

NA

Balance December 31 2011

TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

Accumulated
Preferred Preferred

Other Total
Shares Stock Common Common Paid in Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders

Series

560 560

2308 2308
174870 70000 4667 467 69533

$- 11817 $1182 $177316 $560 $230 $176750

2800 2800

4787

4780

$7580
533 53 7710 7763

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Tin Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

Successor Company

Year Ended

December 31
2011

Predecessor Company

Three Months

Ended

December 31
2010

Nine Months

Ended

September 30
2010

Year Ended

December 31
2009

$2800

17059
4084

664

2872

621

745
12

1967

121

656
17154
24854

498
3361
2346

$560

13334

138

402

681

1731

357
22194

18942

449
1134

10022

$52805

3572

2969

2635
2330

785

55

19116

344

194

56265
55383

1219
4681

6576

$61 548

4516

42256

10998

5058
2031

763

5887

690

168

1812

178

60439
57778

1143
1894

4118

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by used in

operating activities

Accretion of acquired loans

Equity in income from investment in Capital Bank NA
Depreciation and amortization

Customer relationship intangible impairment

Provision for loan losses

Defened income tax expense benefit

Investment securities net realized gains

Net amortization of investment premium/discount

Write-down of investment securities

Goodwill impairment

Stock based compensation

Gain loss on sale of OREO
OREO Valuation Adjustments

Loss on sale of indirect auto loans

Other

Mortgage loans originated for sale

Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans originated for sale

Fees on mortgage loans sold

Change in accrued interest receivable and other assets

Change in accrued interest payable and other liabilities

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Net change in cash due to merger of TIB Bank with and into Capital Bank

NA
Investment in Capital Bank NA
Purchases of investment securities avaiiable for sale

Sales of investment securities available for sale

Repayments of principal and maturities of investment securities available

for sale

Acquisition of Naples Capital Advisors business

Net cash received in acquisition of operations-Riverside Bank of the Gulf

Coast

Sales of FHLB stock

Principal repayments on loans net of loans originated or acquired

Purchases of premises and equipment

Proceeds from sales of loans

Proceeds from sales of ORFO
Proceeds from disposal of equipment

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase decrease in demand money market and savings accounts

Net increase decrease in time deposits

Net increase decrease in federal thnds purchased and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase

Net change short term FHLB advances

Repayment of long term FHLB advances

7566 25036 9809 3335

98182
5241
15474 164028 335038 728578

2319 188601 525359

43101 49824 90955 209566

296 148

271397

244 365 749 1277

6751 24855 27168 30111
405 319 12629 2760

26902 3500

8661 5932 6794 4122

41 51

71728 83371 6753 253675

73351

138414

4979

10000

50260

11053

3329

107167
60181

36647

82350

167699

8116

70000
7900
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TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

Continued

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosures of cash paid

$9116Interest

Income taxes

Three Months

Ended

December 31
2010

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash transactions

Transfer of noæLcash assets to Capital Bank NA $1390516

Transfer of non-cash liabilities to Capital Bank NA 1473981

Acquisitions of Equity Method investment in Capital Bank NA 190200

Transfer of loans to OREO 4569

Fair value of noncash assets acquired

Fair value of liabilities assumed

Transfer of OREO to Premises and Equipment

Exchange of Preferred Senes for common shares issued CBF

Investment

97

Year Ended

December31

2011

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Net repayment of long term repurchase agreements

Net proceeds from Capital Bank Financial Corp Investment

Income tax effect related to stock-based compensation

Net costs from issuance of preferred stock and common warrants

Net proceeds fromcommon stock rights offering

Cash dividends paid to preferred shareholders

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

10000

Nine Months

Ende4 Year Ended

September 30 December 31
2010 2009

7763

20000
162840

206
48

1285
72279 32536 59207 156672

151573 75871 62263 93668

153794 229665 167402 73734

$2221 $153794 $229665 $167402

$4578 $16303

1992 35007

$38291

2754

49193

320594

2941

12160

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Notsto Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars and shas in thousands except per share data

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation and Nature of Operations

Tffi Financial Corp is bank holding company headquartered in Naples Florida Prior to April 29 2011

TIB Financial Corp the Company conducted its business primarily through its wholly-owned subsidiaries TIB

together with its successor entities folltcving the Merger as defined below the Bank and Naples Capital

Advisors Inc As described in additional detail in Note on April 29 2011 the Merger Date the Bank merged

the Merger with and into NAFH National Bank NAFH Bank subsidiary of our majonty shareholder

Capital Bank Financial Corp formerly known as North American Financial Holdings Inc CBF in an all-stock

transaction with NAFH Bank as the surviving entity On June 30 2011 NAFH Bank merged with Capital Bank

wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Bank Corporation controlled subsidiary of our majority shareholder with

NAFH Bank as the surviving entity the Capital Bank Merger On June 30 2011 NAFH Bank changed its name

to Capital Bank National Association Capital Bank NA Subsequently GreenBank previously wholly owned

subsidiary of Green Baukshares Inc Green merged with and into Capital Bank NA when Green became

controlled subsidiary of CBF on September 2011 Collectively the subsidiary bank mergers discussed above are

referred to herein as the Subsidiary Bank Mergers

Subsequent to The Subsidiary Bank Mergers the Company holds an approximately 21% ownership interest

in Capital Bank NA which is recorded as an equity-method investment in that entity As of December 31 2011 the

Company investment jn Capital Bank NA totaled $200 843 which reflected the Company pro rata ownership of

Capital Bank NAs total shareholders equity In periods subsequent to the Merger Date the Company has and will

adjust this equity investment balance based on its equity in Capital Bank NAs net income and comprehensive

income In connection with the Merger assets and liabilities of the Bank were de-consolidated from the Companys

balance sheet resulting in significant decrease in the total assets and total liabilities of the Company in the second

quarter of 2011 Accordingly as of December 31 2011 no investments loans or deposits are reported on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet Subsequent to the Merger Date the Companys significant assets and

liabilities included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet are comprised of customer relationship intangible associated

with Naples Capital Advisors Inc the companys wholly-owned registered investment advisor along with the

Companys equity method investment in Capital Bank NA current and deferred income tax accounts and trust

preferred securities The Company operating results subsequent to the Merger Date include the Company

proportional share of the equity method earnings of Capital Bank NA and interest income and interest expense

resulting from cash deposited in Capital Bank NA and the outstanding trust preferred securities issued by the

Company rºspetively Unless otherwise specified this report describes TIB Financial Corp and its subsidianes

including TIB Bank through theMerger Date and subsequent to that date includes TIB Financial Corp and Naples

Capital Advisors Inc

Share and per share amounts have been adjusted to account for the effects of the for 100 reverse stock

split on December 15 2010 As result of the reverse stock split every 100 shares of the Companys common stock

issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time were combined and reclassified into share of

common stock All numerical dollar and share amounts are in thousands other than per-share amounts or as

otherwise noted We have considered the impact on these consolidated financial statements of subsequent events

As used in this document the terms we us our TIB Financial and Company mean TIB

Financial Corp and its subsidiaries unless the context indicates another meaning and the term Bank means TIB

Bank and after the Merger its successor entities

Capital Bank Financial Corp Investment

On September 30 2010 the Transaction Date the Company completed the issuance and sale to CBF of

7000 shares of common stock 70 shares of Series Preferred Stock and warrant the Warrant to purchase up

to 11667 shares of Common Stock of the Company the Warrant Shares for aggregate consideration of $175000

the Investment The consideration was comprised of approximately $162840 in cash and approximately

$12160 in the form of contribution to the Company of all 37 outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock

previously issued to the U.S Treasury Department Treasury under the TARP Capital Purchase Program and the
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TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Doliarsand shares in thousands except per share data

related warrant to purchase shares of the Companys common stock which CBF purchased directly from the

Treasury The Series Preferred Stock and the related warrant were retired On September 302010 and are no

longer outstanding The 70 shares of Series Preferred Stock received by CBF converted into an aggregate of

4667 shares of common stock following shareholder approval of an amendment to increase the number of

authorized shares of common stock to 50000 The Warrant is exercisable in whole or in part and from time to

time from September 30 2010 to March 30 2012 at an exercise price of $15 00 per Warrant Share

As resnit of the Investment pursuant to which CBF acquired approximately 99% which has

subsequently been reducedto approximately 94% as result of the Rights Offering of the voting securities of the

Company the Company followed the acquisition method of accounting as required by the Business Combinations

Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations ASC 805
Under the accounting guidance the application of pushdown accounting was required

Acquisition accounting requiresthat the assets purchased the liabilities assumed and non-controlling

interests all be reported in the acquirers financial statements at their fair value with any excess of purchase

consideration over the net assets being reported as goodwill Acquisition accounting requires that the valuation of

assets liabilities and non-controlling interests be recorded in the acquirees records as well Accordingly the

Companys Cotuolidated Finaicia1 Statements and transactional records prior to the CBF Investmæt reflect the

historical accounting basis Of assets and liabilities and are labeled Predecessor Company while such records

subsequent to the CBF Investment are labeled SuccessOr Company and reflect the push down basis of accounting

for the new fair values in the Companys financial statements This change in accounting basis is represented inthe

Consolidated Financial Statements by vertical black line which appears between the colunms entitled Predecessor

Company and Successor Company on the statementsnnd in the relevant notes The black line signifies that the

amounts shown for the penods prior to and subsequent to the CBF Investment are not comparable

In additiOn tothe new accountiig basis established for assets liabilities and noncontrolling interests

acquisition accounting also requires the reclassification of any retained earnings from periods prior to the acquisition

to be cecognized as common share equity and the elimination of any accumulated other comprehensive income or

loss arid sur1u within the Companys SharehOlders Equity section of the Companys COnsolidated Financial

Statements Accordingly retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 represent only the results of operations subsequent to September 30 2010 the date of the

CBF Investment

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement shareholders as of July 12 2010 received non transferable rights to

purchase number of shares of the Companys common stock proportional to the number of shares of common
stock held by such holders on such date at purchase price equal to $15 00 per share subject to certain limitations

the Rights Offering Approximately 533 shares of the Company common stock were issued in exchange for

net proceeds of approximately $7 764 upon completion of the Rights Offering on January 18 2011 Subsequent to

the Rights Offering CBF owned 94% of the Companys outstanding common stock

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information These estimates

and assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided and actual

results could differ material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term is the

allowance for loan losses Another material estimate is the fair value and impairment of financial instruments

Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the fair value estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand

amounts due from banks federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits at the Federal Home Loan Bank of
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TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

Atlanta and the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit

transactions and short term borrowings

Equity Method

We account for our investment in Capital Bank NA under the equity method of accounting The

investment in Capital Bank NA is reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheet under the Equity method

investment in Capital Bank NA caption and our equity in earnings is reported on our Consolidated Statement of

Operations under Equity in income from investment in Capital Bank NA See Note of our consolidated

financial statements for additional information about the Equity Investment in Capital Bank NA

Investment Securities and Other than Temporary Impairment

Investment securities which may be sold prior to maturity are classified as available for sale and are carried

at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income As of September 30

2010 resulting from the application of acquisition accounting and related fair value adjustments unrealized gains

and losses on investment securities were eliminated as the recorded costs of these inyestments were adjusted to their

fair values Subsequent to April 29 2011 therewere no investment securities reported in the balance sheet and

unrealized changes in values of investment securities at the Bank are reflected in OCT in proportion to the

Companys ownership interest Other securities such as Federal Home Loan Bank stock are carried at cost and are

included in other assets on the balance sheets

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount Premiums and discounts on

securities are amortized on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments except for mortgage backed

securities where prepayments are anticipated Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and

determined using the specific identification method based on the amortized cost ofthesecurity sold

Management regularly reviews each investment security for impairment based on criteria that include the

extent to which cost exceeds fair value the duration of that market decline the financial health of and specific

prospects for the issuers and our ability and intention with regard to holding the security Future declines in the fair

value of these or other securities may result in additional impairment charges which may be material to the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

Management evaluates securities for
other-than-temporary impairment 0Th at least on quarterly

basis and more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation The investment

securities portfolio is evaluated for OTTI by segregating the portfolio into two general segments and applying the

appropriate OTTI model Investment securities classified as available for sale or held-to-maturity are generally

evaluated for OTTI under FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC 320-10-35 However certain

purchased beneficial interests including non-agency mortgage-backed securities asset-backed securities and

collateralized debt obligations that had credit ratings at the time of purchase of below AAA are evaluated using the

model outlined in ASC 325-40-35

In determining OTTI under the ASC 320-10-35 model management considers many factors including but

not limited to the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial

condition and near-term prospects of the issuer whether the market decline was affected by macroeconomic

conditions and whether the entity has the intent to sell the debt security or more likely than not will be required

to sell the debt security before its anticipated recovery The assessment of whether an other than temporary decline

exists involves high degree of subjectivity and judgment and is based on the information available to management

at point in time

The second segment of the portfolio uses the OTTI guidance provided by ASC 325-10-35 that is specific to

purchased beneficial interests that are rated below AAA Under this model the Company compares the present

value of the remaining cash flows as estimated at the preceding evaluation date to the current expected remaining

cash flows An OTTI is deemed to have occurred if there has been an adverse change in the remaining expected

future cash flows
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TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars and sharesin thousands except per share data

When OTTI occurs under either model the amount of the impairment recognized in earnings depends on

whether we intend to sell the security or it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before

recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current-period credit loss If we intend to sell or it is more likely than

not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current-period

credit loss the impairment is required to be recognized in earnings equal to the entire difference between the

investments amortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance sheet date If we do not intend to sell the security

and it is not more likely than not that We will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost

basis less any current-period loss the impairment is separated intO the amount representing the credit loss and the

amount related to all other factors The amount of impairment related to the credit loss is determined based on the

present value of cash flows expected to be collected and is recognized in earnings The amount of the impairment

related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income net of applicable taxes The previous

amortized cost basis less the OTTI recognized in earnings becomes the new amortized cost basis of the investment

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no available

forsale securities were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Loans Held for Sale

The majority of residential fixed rate mortgage loans originated by TIB Bank are sold servicing released to

third parties immediately with temporary recourse provisions The recourse provisions may require the repurchase of

the outstanding balance of loans which default within limited period of time subsequent to the sale of the loan The

recourse periods vary by investor and extend up to seven months subsequent to the sale of the loan All fees are

recognized as income at the time of the sale Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary

market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market as determined by oUtstanding commitments from

investors Net unrealized losses if any are recorded as valuation allowance and charged to earnings TIB Bank has

not historically experienced significant losses resulting from the recourse provisions described above Accordingly

management believes that no such provision or allowance is necessary as of December 31 2010

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loans

were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Loans Held for Investment

Loans held for investment are reported at the principal amounts outstanding net of unamortized purchase

discount or premium nonrefundable loan fees and related direct loan origination costs Unearned income and

deferred net fees costs purchase premiums or discounts related to loans held for investment are recognized in

interestincome on an effective yield basis over the contractual loan term

Nonaccrual loans are those for which management has discontinued accrual of interest because there exists

significant uncertainty as to the full and timely collection of either principal or interest or for commercial and

agricultural construction and vacant land farmland and commercial mortgage loans such loans have become

contractually past due 90 days with respect to principal or interest Home equity loans and residential real estate

loans are placed on nonaccrual when these loans are delinquent 90 days or more or in foreclosure Indirect auto

loans and other consumer loans are placed on nonaccrual when these loans are delinquent 90 days or more These

loans are charged off or written down to their net realizable value when delinquency reaches 120 days For

commercial and agricultural construction and vacant land farmland and commercial mortgage loans interest

accruals are also continued for loans that are both well-secured and in the process of collection For this purpose

loans are considered well-secured if they are collateralized by property having net realizable value in excess of the

amount of principal and accrued interest outstanding or are guaranteed by financially responsible and willing

party Loans are considered in the process of collection if collection is proceeding in due course either through

legal action or other actions that are reasonably expected to result in the prompt repayment of the debt or in its

restoration to current status For all loans past due status is determined based on the contractual terms of the loan

and the actual number of days since the due date of the earliest unpaid payment

When loan is placed on nonaccrual status all previously accrued but uncollected interest is reversed

against current period operating results When full collection of the outstanding principal balance is in doubt
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Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

subsequent payments received are first applied to unpaid principal and then to uncollected interest loan may be

returned to accrual status at such time as the loan is brought fully current as to both principal and interest and in

managements judgment such loan is considered to be fully collectible on timely basis However the Companys

policy also allows management to continue the recognition of interest income on certain commercial and

agricultural construction and vacant land farmland and commercial mortgage loans placed on nonaccrual status

This portion of the nonaccrual portfolio is referred to as Cash Basis Nonaccrual loans This policy only applies to

loans that are well-secured and in managements judgment are considered to be fully collectible but the timely

collection of payments is in doubt Although the accrual of interest is suspended interest income is recognized as it

is received

troubled debt restructuring is restructuring of loan in which concession is granted to borrower

experiencing financial difficulty loan is accounted for as troubled debt restructured loan TDR if the

Company for reasons related to the borrowers financial difficulties grants concession to the borrower that it

would not otherwise grant TDR typically involves modification of terms such as reductionof the interest rate

below the current market rate for loan with similar risk characteristics or the waiving of certain financial loan

covenants without corresponding offsetting compensation or additional support
The Company measures the

impairment loss of TDR using the methodology for individually impaired loans

As discussed above due to the deconsoli4ation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loans

were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet .as of December 31 2011

Purchased Credit-Impaired Loans

Loans acquired in transfer including business combinations and transactions similar to the Investment

where there is evidence of credit deterioration since origination and it is probable at the date of acquisition that the

Company will not collect all contractually required principal and interest payments are accounted for .under

accounting guidance for purchased credit impaired PCI loans This guidance provides that the excess of the cash

flows initially expected to be collected over the fair value of the loans at the acquisition date i.e the accretable

yield is accreted into interest income over the estimated remaining life of the purchased credit impaired loans using

the effective yield method provided that.the timing and amount of future cash flows is reasonably estimable

Accordingly such loans are not classified as nonaccrual and they are considered to be accruing because their interest

income relates to the accretable yield recognized under accounting for purchased credit-impaired loans and not to

contractual interest payments The difference between the contractually required payments and the cash flows

expected to be collected at ncquisition considering the impact of prepayments is referred to as the nonaccretable

difference

Subsequent to acquisition estimates of cash flows expected to be collected are updated each reporting

period based on updated assumptions regarding default rates loss seventies and other factors that are reflective of

current market conditions If the Company has probable decreases in cash flows expected to be collected other than

due to decreases in interest rate indices the Company charges the provision for credit losses resulting in an

increase to the allowance for loan losses If the Company has probable and significant increases in cash flows

expected to be collected the Company will first reverse any previously established allowance for loan losses and

then increase interest income as prospective yield adjustment over the remaining life of the pool of loans The

impact of changes in variable interest rates are recognized prospectively as adjustments to interest income The

accounting pools of acquired loans are defined as of the date of acquisition of portfolio of loans and are comprised

of groups
of loans with similar collateral types and credit risk

As .discussed above .due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loans

were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb losses incurred in the loan portfolio The

allowance is based on ongoing quarterly assessments of the probable estimated incurred losses inherent in the loan

portfolio The allowance is increased by the provision for loan losses which is charged against current period

operating results and decreased by the amount of charge offs net of recoveries The Companys methodology for
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assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of several key elements which include the formulaic

allowance and the specific allowance for impaired loans Management develops and documents its systematic

methodology for determining the allowance for loan losses by first dividing its portfolio into segmentscommercial

mortgage residential mortgage construction and vacant land commercial and agricultural indirect auto home

equity and other consumer loans The Company furthers divides the portfolio segments into classes based on initial

measurement attributes risk characteristics or its method of monitoring and assessing credit risk The classes for the

Company are as follows

Commercial real estate mortgage owner occupied office building hotel or motel guest houses retail

multi-family and other

Residential mortgage primary residence second residence and investment

Land lot and construction

Consumer

Indirect auto prime and sub-prime and

Home equity

The allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans Loss factors are based on the

Companys historical loss experience and may be adjusted for significant factors that in managements judgment
affect the collectability of the portfolio as of the evaluation date The Company derives the loss factors for all

segments from pooled loan loss factors Such pooled loan loss factors for loans not individually graded are based

on expected net charge off ranges

Loan loss factors which are used in determining the allowance are adlusted quarterlyprimarily based upon
the changes in the level of historical net charge offs and parameter updates by management Management estimates

probable incurred losses in the portfolio based on historical loss look-back period The look-back period is

representative of managements expectations of relevant historical loss experience Based upon the -Companys
evaluation

process management believes that the look-back period is generally eight quarters

Furthermore based on managements judgment the Companys methodology permits adjustments to any
loss factor used in the computation of the allowance for significant factors which affect the collectability of the

portfolio as of the evaluation date but are not reflected in the loss factors By assessing the probble estimated

incurred losses in the loan portfolio on quarterly basis management is able to adjust specific and inherent loss

estimates based upon the most recent information that has become available This includes changing the number of

periods that are included in the calculation of the loss factors and adjusting qualitative factors to be representative of

the economic cycle that management expects will impact the portfolio Updates of the loss confirmation period are

done when significant events cause management to reexamine data

At December 31 2010 substantially all of the Companys loans are purchased credit-impaired -loans

Estimates of cash flows expected to be collected for purchased credit-impaired loans are updated each reporting

period If the Company has probable decreases in expected cash flows to be collected after acquisition the Company
charges the provision for loan losses and establishes an allOwance for loan lOsses

The Company individually evaluates for impairment larger nonaccruing commercial and agricultural
construction and vacant land farmland and commercial mortgage loans Residential mortgage and consumer loans

are not individually evaluated for impairment unless they exceed $500 in recorded investment or represent troubled

debt restructurings Loans are considered impaired when the individual evaluation of current information regarding
the borrowers financial condition- loan collateral and cash flows indicates that the Company will be unable to

collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreenient including interest payments
Impaired loans are carried at the lower of the recorded investment in the loan the presont value of expected future

cash flows discounted at the- loans effective rate the loans observable market price or the fair value of the

collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Excluded from the impairment analysis are large groups of smaller
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balance homogeneous loans such as consumer indirect auto and residential mortgage loans which are evaluated on

pool basis The Companys policy for recognition of interest income charge offs of loans and application of

payments on impaired loans is the same as the policy applied to nonaccrual loans

Significant risk characteristics considered in estimating the allowance for credit losses include the

following

Commercial and agriculturalindustry specific economic trends and individual borrower financial

condition

Construction and vacant land farmland and commercial mortgage loanstype of property i.e residential

commercial industrial and geographic concentrations and risks and individual borrower financial

condition and

Residential mortgage indirect auto and consumerhistorical and expected future charge-offs borrowers

credit property collateral and loan characteristics

Loans are charged off in whole or in part when they are considered to be uncollectible For commercial and

agricultural construction and vacant land farmland and commercial mortgage loans they are generally considered

uncollectible based on an evaluation of borrower financial condition as well as the value of any collateral For

residential mortgage
and consumer loans this is generally based on past due status as discussed above as well as an

evaluation of borrower creditworthiness and the value of any collateral Recoveries of amounts previously charged

off are recorded as recovery to the allowance for loan losses

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

allowance for loan losses was reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost Premises and equipment are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation For

financial reporting purposes building and related components are depreciated using the straight-line method with

useful lives ranging from to 40 years Furniture fixtures and equipment are depreciated using straight-line method

with useful lives ranging from to 40 years Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as

incurred while major renewals and betterments are capitalized For Federal income tax reporting purposes

depreciation
is computed using primarily accelerated methods

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter
of 2011 no premises

and equipment were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure or repossession are generally held for sale and are

initially recorded at fair value less cost to sell when acquired establishing new cost basis If fair value declines

subsequent to foreclosure valuation allowance is recorded through expense Costs incurred after acquisition are

generally expensed

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

foreclosed assets were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Goodwill and Other Intaagible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in purchase business combination and determined to have an

indefinite useful life are not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually Intangible assets with definite

useful liyes are amortized over their estimated useful lives to tjieir estimated residual values Other intangible assets

include core deposit base premiums and customer relationship intangjbles arising from acquisitions and are initially
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measured at fair value The intangibles are being amortized using the straight-line method over estimated lives

ranging from to 15 years

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no goodwill

and other intangible assets were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets including premises and equipment core deposit and other intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment when events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash

flows If impaired the assets are recorded at fair value

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no long-

lived assets were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instrumentssuch as commitments to make loans and

letters of credit issued to meet customer financing needs The face amount for these items represents the
exposure

to loss before considering customer collateral or ability to repay Such financial instruments are recorded when

they are funded

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 the

Company does not have any loan commitments or related financial instruments as of December 31 2011

Company Owned Life Insurance

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain former key executives These policies are

recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date which is the cash

surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement if applicable

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 the

Company does not hold any company owned life insurance as of December 31 2011

Income Taxes

Income tax expense or benefit is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change

in deferred tax assets and liabilities Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability or
balance sheet method Under this method the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax

effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax basis of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities

and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws

tax position is recognized as benefit only if it is more likely than not that the tax position would be

sustained in tax examination with tax examination being presumed to occur The amount recognized is the

largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination For tax positions not

meeting the more likely than not test no tax benefit is recorded The Company recognizes interest and/or

penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense

The predecessor company filed consolidated Federal and Florida income tax return for the period ended

September 30 2010 The successor company was included in CBFs consolidated Federal and Florida income tax

return for the year ended December 31 2010 For the tax period ending December 31 2011 the successor company

will be included in CBFs consolidated Federal and Florida income tax return
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Stock splits and stock dividends in excess of 20% are reported by transferring the
par

value of the stock

issued from retained earnings to common stock Stock dividends for 20% or less are reported by transferring

the fair value as of the ex-dividend date of the stock issued from retained earnings to common stock and

additional paid-in capital

Effective December 15 2010 the Company completed reverse stock split of the Companys issued and

outstanding common stock at ratio of 1100 The number of authorized shares of common stock was

correspondingly adjusted from 5000000000 shares to 50000000 shares As result of the reverse stock split

every 100 shares of the Companys common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time

were combined and reclassified into share of common stock Fractional shares resulting from the reverse stock

split were rounded up to the nearest whole share

Earnings Loss Per Common Share

Basic earnings loss per share is net income loss allocated to common shareholders divided by the

weighted average
number of common shares and vested restricted shares outstanding during the period Diluted

earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable under stock options

warrants and restricted shares computed using the treasury stock method

Earnings loss per
share have been computed based the following for the periods ended

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding

Basic

Dilutive effect of options outstanding

Dilutive effect of restricted shares

Dilutive effect of warrants outstanding

Diluted

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Three Months Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 September 30 December 31

2011 2010 2010 2009

12324 11817 149 148

6503

12324 18320 149 148

The dilutive effect of stock options and warrants and the dilutive effect of unvested restricted shares are the

only common stock equivalents for purposes
of calculating diluted earnings per common share

Weighted average anti dilutive stock options and warrants and unvested restricted shares excluded from the

computation of diluted earnings per share are as follows

Anti-dilutive stock options

Anti-dilutive restricted stock awards

Anti-dilutive warrants

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Three

Months Nine Months

Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended

December 31 December September 30 December 31

2011 31 2010 2010 2009

11669 13 24 24

Stock Splits and Stock Dividends
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Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation cost is recognizedfOr stock options and restricted stock awards issued tO employees based

on the fair value of these awards at the dateof grant Black-.Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value of

stock options while the market price of the Companys cotnmon stock at the date of grant is used for restricted stock

awards Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period generally defined as the vesting period

For awards with graded vesting compensation cost is recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite service

period for the entire award

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income Other comprehensive

income includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale which are also recognized as separate

components of equity

Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities purchased under agreements to resell and securities sold under agreements to repurchase are

generally accounted for as collateralized financing transactions and are recorded at the amounts at which the

securities were acquired or sold plus accrued interest The fair value of collateral either received from or provided to

third party is regularly monitored and additional collateral is obtained provided or requested to be returned as

appropriate

As discussed above due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 the

Company does not hold securities purchased under agreements to resell or securities sold under agreements to

repurchase as of December 31 2011

Loss Contingencies

Loss contingencies including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business are
recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably
estimated Management does not believe there are currently any such matters that will have amaterial effect on the

financial statements

Operating Segments

While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services

operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on Company wide basis As operating results for

all segments are similar all of the financial service operations are considered by management to be aggregated in

one reportable operating segment

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instrumentsare estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions
as more fully disclosed in Note 19 Fair salue estimates include uncertainties and matters of sigtiificant judgment
regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad markets for

particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect these estimates

107



TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated F4nancial Statements

Dollars and shares in thousands except per share data

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board the FASB issued ASU No 2011-08

Intangibles Goodwill arid Other Topic 350 Testing Goodwill for Impairment ASU 2011-08 ASU 2011-08

amended guidance on the annual goodwill impairment test perfonied by the Company Under the amended

guidance the Company will have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to

perform two-step impairment test If the Company believes as result of the qualitative assessment that it is more

likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than the carrying value the quantitative impairment test is

required If the Company believes the fair value of reporting unit is greater than the carrying value no further

testing is required company can choose to perform the qualitative assessment on some or none of its reporting

entities The amended guidance includes examples of events and circumstances that might indicate that reporting

units fair value is less than its carrying amount These include macro-economic conditions such as deterioration in

the entitys operating environment entity-specific çvents such as declining fmancial performance and other events

such as an çxpectation that reporting unit will be soW The amended guidance is effective for annual and interim

goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 However an entity can

choose to early adopt even if its annual test date is before the issuance of the final standard provided that the entity

has not yet performed its 2011 annual impairment test or issued its financial statements The adoption of ASU 2011.

08 will not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of operations

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of

Comprehensive Income ASU 2011-05 ASU 2011-05 amends current guidance by eliminating the option to

present components of other comprehensive income OCI as part of the statement of changes in shareholders

equity ii requiring the presentation of each component of net income and each component of OCI either in sing1e

continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive statements and iii requiring the presentation of

reclassification adjustments on the face of the statement The amendments of ASU 2011-05 do not change the option

to present components of OCI either before or after related income tax effects the items that must be reported in

OCI when an item of OCI should be reclassified to net income or the computation of earnings per share which

continues to be based on net income ASU 2011-05 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after

December 15 2011 for public companies with early adoption permitted and retrospective application required The

adoption of ASU 2011-05 will not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of

operations but will alter disclosures

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to

Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRSs ASU 2011-

04 The amended guidance of ASU 2011-04 clarifies how principal market is determined ii establishes the

valuation premise for the highest and best use of nonfinancial assets iiiaddresses the fair value measurement of

instruments with offsetting market or counterparty credit risks iv extends the prohibition on blockage factors to all

three levels of the fair value hierarchy and requires additional disclosures including transfers between Level

and Level of the fair value hierarchy quantitative and qualitative information and description of an entitys

valuation process for Level fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy disclosures for financial instruments

not measured at fair value ASU 2011-04 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December

15 2011 with early adoption prohibited The adoption of ASU 2011-04 is not expected to have material impact on

the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of operations

In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-02 Receivables The new guidance amended existing guidance

for assisting creditor in determining whether restructuring is troubled debt restructuring The amendments

clarify the guidance for creditors evaluation of whether it has granted concession and whether debtor is

experiencing financial difficulties This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning

after June 15 2011 and should be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual period of adoption

Management is currently evaluating the impact the new guidance will have on the consolidated financial statements

In January 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-01 Deferral of the Effective Date of Disclosures about

Troubled Debt Restructurings in Update No 2010-20 to amend ASC Topic 310 Receivables The amendments in

this update temporarily delay the effective date of the disclosures about troubled debt restructurings in ASU 2010-20

for public entities The delay is intended to allow the FASB time to complete its deliberations on what constitutes
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troubled debt restructuring The effective date of the.new disclosures about troubled debt restructurings for public

entities and the guidance for determining whai constitutes troubled debt restructuring will then be coordinated

In December2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-29 Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma Information

for Business Combinations to amend ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations The amendments in this update

specif that if public entity presents cotuparative financial statements the entity should disclose revenue and

earnings of the combined entity as though .thebusiness conbinations that occurred during the current year had

occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only The amendmeits in this update

are effective prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of

the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2010 Management does not believe that

adoption of this update will have material impact on the Companys financial position or results of operations

In July 2010 the EASB issued ASU 2010-20 Disclosures about the Credit Qualily of Financing

Receivables and the Allowance for CreditLosses to amend ASC Jopic 310 Receivables The amendments in this

update are intended to provide disclosures that facilitate financial statement users evaluation of the nature of credit

risk inherent in the entitys portfolio of financing receivables how that risk is analyzed arid assessed in arriving at

the allowance for credit losses and the changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for credit losses The

disclosures as of the end of reporting period are effective for interim and annual periods ending on or after

December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting period are effective for interim and

annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 Adoption of this update did not have material

impact on the Companys financial position or results of operations

In April 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-18 Effect of Loan Modfication W7jen the Loan Is Part of

Pool That Is Accounted for as Single Asset to amend ASC Topic 310 Receivables The amendments in this

update provide that for acquired troubled loans which meet the criteria to be accounted for within pooi

modifications to one or more of these loans does not result in the removal of the modified loan from the pool even if

the modification would otherwise be considered troubled debt restructuring The pool of assets in which the loan is

included will continue to be considered for impairment The amendments do not apply to loans not meeting the

criteria to be accounted for within pool These amendments were effective for modifications of loans accounted for

within pools occurring in the first interim or annual period ending on or after July 520 Adoption of this update

did not have material impact on the Companys financial position or results of operations

In February 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-09 Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure

Requirements to amend ASC Topic 855 Subsequent Events The amendments in this update removed the

requirement to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated and became effective

immediately upon issuance Adoption of this update did not have material impact on the Companys financial

position or results of operations

Reclassifications

Some items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation

Note 2Business Combinations

CBFInvestment

On September 30 2010 the Company issued and sold to CBF 7000 shares of Common Stock 70 shares of

Series Preferred Stock and warrant to purchase up to 11667 shares of Common Stock of the Company for

aggregate consideration of $175000 The consideration was comprised of approximately $162840 in cash and

approximately $12160 in the form of contribution to the Company 9f all 37 shares of preferred stock issued to the

United Stales Departmeit of the Treasury under the TARP Capital Purchase Program and the related C- to purchase

shares of the Companys Common Stock which CBF purchased directly from the Treasury
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summary and description of the assets liabilities and non-controlling interests fair valued in conjunction

with applying the acquisition method of accounting is as follows

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents of $229665 held at the Transaction Date approximated
the fair value on the

Transaction Date and did not require fair value adjustment

Investment securities

Investment securities are reported at fair value and were $309 320 on the Transaction Date To account for

the CBF Investment the unamortized premium and discounts were recognized as acquisition accounting

adjustments
and the unrealized gain or loss on investment securities became the new premium or discount for each

security held by the Company
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Immediately follOwing the Investment CBF controlled 98.7% of the voting securities of the Company

which has been subsequently reduced to approximately
94% as result of the Rights Offering and followed the

acquisition method of accounting and applied acquisition accounting Acquisition accounting requires that the

assets purchased the liabilities assumed and non_controlling interests all be reported in the acquirers
financial

statements at their fair value with any excess of purchase Æonsideration over the net assets being reported as

goodwill As part
of the valuation intangible assets were identified and fair value was determined as required by

the accounting guidance
for business combinations Accounting guidance also requires

the application of push

down accounting whereby the adjustments
of assets and liabilities to fair value and the resultant goodwill are

shown in the financial statements of the acquiree

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sçll an asset or paid to transfer liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The methodology used to obtain the fair

values to apply acquisition accounting is described in Note 19 Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments

of these Consolidated Financial Statements The following table summarizes the Investment Transaction

Fair value of assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities available for sale

Loans

Goodwill and intangible assets net

Other assets

Total assets acquired

Fair value of liabilities assumed

Deposits

Long-term debt and other borrowings

Other liabilities

Total liabilities assumed

Net assets

Less Non_controlling interest at fair value

Underwriting due diligence
and legal costs

Purchase consideration

September 30 2010

$229665

309320

1017842

41769

138587

$1737183

$1327663

208783

22239

$1558685

178498

5955

$172543

2457

$175000
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The fair value of the investment securities is primarily based on values obtained from third parties which

are based on recent activity for the same or similar securities Before the Transaction Date the investment securities

portfolio had book value of $310316 and fair value of $309320 The difference between the fair value and the

current par value was recorded as the new premium or discount on security by security basis

Loans

All loans in the loan portfolio at the Transaction Date were evaluated and fair value of $1017842 was

assigned in accordance with the accounting guidance for receivables All loans were considered to be purchase

credit impaired loans or PCI loans with the exception of revolving lines of credit loans collateralized by cash

deposits and other types of loans with no real credit risk The revolving lines of credit were also evaluated but are

not considered PCI loans summary of the valuation for the PCI loans is in Note Loans of these Consolidated

Financial Statements

Goodwill and intangible assets

As disclosed above the.excess of purchase consideration over the net assets being reported at fair value is

the goodwill The goodwill represents the value of the Companys total franchise This acquisition was nontaxable

and as result there is no tax basis in the gOodwill Accordingly none of the goodwill associated with the

acquisition is deductible for tax purposes The intangible assets identified as part of the valuation of the CBF

Investment were Core Deposit Intangibles CDI Customer Relationship Intangibles CR and Trade Names

All of the identifled intangible assets are amortized as non-interest expense over their estimated lives except the

TIB Bank and Naples Capital Advisors trade names.

Core Deposit Intangible

The CDI valuation is based on the Banks transaction related deposit accounts interest rates on the deposits

compared to the market rate on the Transaction Date and estimated life of those deposits The value of non-interest

bearing deposits comprises the largest portion of the CDI The estimated value of the CDI is the present value of the

difference between market participants cost of obtaining alternative funds and the cost to maintain the acquired

deposit base The present value is calculated over the estimated life of the deposit base

The types of deposit accounts evaluated for the CDI were demand deposit accounts money market

accounts and savings accounts

Customer Relationship Intangible

The CR1 was based on the assets under management by Naples Capital Advisors Inc on the Transaction

Date. CR is created when customer relationship exists between an entity and its customer if the entity has

information about the customer and has regular.contact with the customer and the customer has the ability to make

direct contact with the entity Customer relationships meet the contractual-legal criterion if an entity has practice

of establishing contracts with its customers regardless of whether contract exists at the acquisition date Customer

relationships also may arise through means other than contracts such as through regular contact by sales or service

representatives

The value of the CR1 is based on the present value of future cash flows arising from the management .of

investment accounts of customers generated from Naples Capital Advisors Inc based on the assets under

management at September 30 2010 The valuation of this intangible asset involves three steps determining the

useful life of the intangible asset determining the resulting cash flows of the intangible and determining the discount

rate

The assets under management as of the Transaction Date were approximately $184489

Other Assets
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majority of the other assets held by the Company did not have fair value adjustment as part
of the

purchaseaccounting since their carrying value approximated fair value such as accrued interest receivable It was

not practicable to.determine the fairvalue of FH.LB andIBB stock due to restrictionsplaced on their transferability

The most significant other asset impacted by the application of the acquisition method- of accounting was the

recognition of net deferred tax asset of $19262 The net deferred tax asset is primarily related to the recognition of

differences between certain tax and book bases of assets and liabilities related to the acquisition method of

accounting including the fair value adjustments discussed elsewhere in this section along with Federal and state net

operating losses that the Company deemed realizable as of the acquisition date

Deposits

Term deposits were not included as part of tlrØCDI valuation Instead separate valuation of term deposit

liabilities was conducted due to the cOntractual time frame associated with these liabilities The term deposits which

were evaluated for acquisition accounting consisted of certificates of deposit brokered deposits and Ceriificate of

Deposit Account Registry Services CDARS CDs The fair value of these deposits was determined by first

stratifing the deposit pool by monthly maturity and calculating the interest rate for each maturity period Then cash

flows were projected by period and discounted to present value using current market interest rates Based on the

characteristics of the certificates either retail rate or brokered certificate of deposit rate was used

Certificates of deposit liabilities had- fair value of $730034 as of September 30 2010 compared to

canying value Of $724899 for an amrtizâble premium df-$5135 Brokered Deposit -liabilities hd fair value of

$11054 as of September 30 2010 compared to carrying value of $10836 for an amorti2able premium of $217

CDARs liabilities had fair value of $9453 as of September 30 2010 compared to carrying value of $9363

million for an amortizable premium of $90 The Company will amortize these premiums into income as reduction

of interest expense on level-yield basis over the weighted average term

Long-term debt and other borrowings

Included in Thng-term debt and other borrowings in the summary table above are FHLB advances

securities sold under agreements to repurchase and trust preferred debt securities These were fair valued by

developing cash flow .estimates for each of these 4ebt instruments based on scheduled principal and interest

payments current interest rates and prepayment penalties Once the cash flows were determined market rate for

comparable debt was used to discount the cash flows to the present value The Company will amortize the premium

and accrete the discount into income on level-yield basis over the contractual term as an adjustment to interest

expense

FHLB advances had fair value of $132077 as of September 30 2010 comparedto carrying value of

$125000 for an amortizable premium of $7077

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase on long-term basis had fair value of $10063 as of

September 30 2010 compared to carrying value of $10000 for an amortizable premium of $63 The carrying

values of Commercial customer repurchase agreements of $43244 and Treasury tax and loan deposits of $584

approximated their fair valueS due -to their short-term nature

The trust preferred securities had fair value of $22815 as of September 30 2010 compared to a-book

value of $33000 for net accretable discount of $10185 The premium will be amortized and the discount will be

accreted into income as reduction of interest expense
andan increase to interest expense on level yield bases

over the contractual terms respectively

Lease Liability

The Company operates approximately properties under long term operating leases The classification of

the Companys leases--as operating as opposed to capital was not changed in applying the acquisition method of

accounting
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When reviewing the leases the contractual lease payments and terms were compared to the current market

conditions for similar location and building leased The Companys leases were considered to be unfavorable

relative to the market terms of leases at September 30 2010 to the extent that the existing lease terms were higher

than the current market terms and liability of $251 was recognized as part of the acquisition accounting

Non-Controlling Interest

In determining the estimated fair value of the non-controlling interest the Company utilized the market

valuation of its common stock as part of the purchase accounting as of September 30 2010

Transaction Expenses

As required by the Investment Agreement the Company reimbursed certain transaction-related third party

due diligence valuation and legal costs of approximately $2457 which were recorded as reduction of the

$175000ofproceeds received from the issuance of preferred and common shares

There were no indemnification assets identified in this business combination nor were there any contingent

consideration assets or liabilities to be recognized

Note Equity Method Investment in Capital Bank NA

On April 29 2011 the Companys primary operating subsidiary TIB Bank was merged with and into

NAFH Bank an affiliate institution which had been wholly-owned by the Companyscontrolling shareholder CBF
preceding the Merger Pursuant to the merger agreement dated April 27 2011 between NAFH Bank and the Bank
the Company exchanged its 100% ownership interest in TIB Bank for an approximately 53% ownership interest in

the surviving combined entity NAFH Bank CBF is deemed to control NAFH Bank due to CBFs 94% ownership

interest in the Company and CBFs direct ownership of the remaining 47% interest in NAFH Bank subsequent to the

Merger Accordingly subsequent to April 29 2011 the Company began to account for its ownership ii NAFH Bank

under the equity method of accounting and the assets and liabilities of the Bank were de-consolidated from the

Companys balance sheet The deconsolidation resulted in significant decrease in the total assets and total

liabilities of the Company in the second quarter of 2011 Accordingly as of December 31 2011 no investments

loans or deposits are reported on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet and subsequent to the Merger Date

interest income and interest expense are the result of cash deposited in Capital Bank NA and the outstanding trust

preferred securities.issued by the Company respectively

On June 30 2011 Capital Bank wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Bank Corp an affiliated bank

holding company in which CBF has an 83% ownership interest was merged with and into NAFH Bank with NAFH
Bank as the surviving entity Subsequently and as result of that transaction the Companys ownership interest in

NAFH Bank was reduced to 33% In connection with the transactionNAFH Bank also changed its name to Capital

Bank National Association

Subsequent to the mergers on June 30 2011 CBF the Company and Capital Bank Corp made

contributions of additional capital to Capital Bank NA of $4695 $5241 and $6063.respectively in proportion to

their respective ownership interests in Capital Bank NA The contributions were made to provide additional capital

support for the general business operations of Capital Bank NA

On September 2011 GreenBank wholly-owned subsidiary of Green Bankshares Inc an affiliated

bank holding company in which CBF has 90% ownership interest was merged with and into Capital Bank NA
with Capital Bank NA as the surviving entity On September 30 2011 Capital Bank Corp made contribution of

additional capital to Capital Bank-NA of$10000 Subsequently and as result of thesetransactions the

Companys ownership interest in Capital Bank NA was reduced to 21%

The mergers of the Bank Capital Bank and GreenBank into Capital Bank NA were restructuring

transactions between commonly-controlled entities The difference between the amount of the Companys initial

equity method investment in NAFH Bank subsequent to the merger and the Companys investment in the Bank
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immediately preceding the merger was accounted for as reduction in additional paid in capitaL The amount of the

equity method investment in NAFH Bank on April 29 2011 immediately subsequent to the merger was equal to

approximately 53% of the total shareholders equity of NAFH Bank post-merger the combined entity

Additionally at the time of the merger due to the de-consolidation of the Bank the balance of accumulated other

comprehensive income was reclassified as additional paid in capital As the Company began to account for its

investment in the combined entity under the equity method the change in the balance of the Companys equity

method investment between April 29 2011 and December 31 2011 resulting from the Companys proportional

share of earnings of $4084 was recorded in Equity in income from investment in.Capital Bank NA in the

Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations for the twelve nionths ended December 31 2011 respectively

Other changes in the Companys equity method investment in Capital Bank NA resulted from the subsidiary bank

mergers of Capital Bank and GreenBank into Capital Bank NA as the Companys equity method investment was

adjusted at each merger date to equal its proportional ownership of Capital Bank NA with the net change being

recorded as cumulative net decrease in the total shareholders equity of the Company of $14225

At December 31 2011 the Companys net investment of $200843 in Capital Bank NA was recorded in

the Consolidated Balance Sheet as Equity method investment in Capital Bank NA

The following table presents summarized financial information for the Companys equity method investee

Capital Bank NA

Period From April

29 2011 Through

December 31 2011

Interest income $158218

Interest expense
21089

Net interest income 137129

Provision for loan losses 35132

Non-interest income 33175

Non-interest expense
111143

Net income 15232

Note 4Cash and Due From Banks

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no cash

was reported on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank or the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta on the

Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December31 201 As of December 31 2011 the company had cash

on hand of $2.2 million This cash is available for general corporate.purposes

At December 31 2010 cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank of $2393 was required

to meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements The total on deposit was approximately $130946 at December

31 2010

The Bank maintained an interest bearing account at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta The total on

deposit was approximately $638 at December 31 2010

Note 5Investment Securities

Investment Portfolio

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

investment in available for sale securities is reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December

31 2011
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The amortized cost estimated fair value and the related gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in

accumulated other comprehensive income of investment securities available for sale at December 31 2010 are

presented below

Successor Company

U.S Government agencies and

corporations

States and political subdivisionstax

exempt

States and political subdivisionstaxable

Marketable equity securities

Mortgage-backed securitiesresidential

Corporate bonds

Collateralized debt obligation

December 31 2010

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

$40980 $15 $296 $40699

3082 25 3059

2308 151 2157
102 28 74

372409 946 4152 369203

2104 2105

807 12 795

$421792 $964 $4664 $418092

Securities with unrealized losses not recognized in income and the period of time they have been in an

unrealized loss position are as follows

Successor Company Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Estimated Estimated Estimated

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

December 31 2010 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

U.S Government agencies and

corporations $14304 $296 $14304 $296
States and political

subdivisionstax exempt 2458 25 2458 25

States and political

subdivisions-taxable 2157 151 2157 151

Marketable equity securities 74 28 74 28

Mortgage-backed securities

residential 213153 4152 213153 4152
Corporate bonds

Collateralized debt obligation 795 12 795 12

Total temporarily impaired $232941 $4664 $- $- $232941 $4664

The table below presents rollforward of the credit losses recognized in earnings for the period from April
2009 the effective date of ASC 325 40 which requires the recognition of unrealized credit losses determined as

result of other than temporary impairment charges through the income statement and the unrealized losses related to

all other factors through accumulated other comprehensive income through December 31 2011

Balance beginning of period

Additions/Subtractions

Credit losses recognized during the

period

Balance end of penod

Successor Company Predecessor Company
Year Ended Three Months Nine Months Year Ended

December 31 Ended December Ended September December 31 2009
2011 312010 30 2010

$- $- $9996 $9256

740

$- $- $9996 $9996
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At December 31 2010 securities with fair value of approximately $38363 were subject to call during

Sales of available for sale securities were as follows

Proceeds

Gross gains

Gross losses

Maturities principal repayments and calls of investment securities available for sale were as follows

$43101 for the year
ended December 31 2011 $49824 for the three months ended December 31 2010 Successor

Company $90955 for the nine months ended September 30 2010 Predecessor Company and $209566 for the

year ended 2009 Predecessor Company Net gains realized from calls and mandatory redemptions of securities

during the year ended December 31 2011 and for the three months ended December 31 2010 Successor Company

were $0 for the nine months ended September 30 2010 and year ended 2009 Predecessor Company were $0 and

$61 respectively

Investment securities having carrying values of approximately $110408 at December 31 2010 were

pledged to secure public funds on deposit securities sold under agreements to repurchase and for other purposes as

required by law

Note 6Loans

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loans

or allowance for loan losses were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Major classifications of loans for December 31 2010 are as follows

2010

Real estate mortgage loans

Commercial

Residential

Farmland

Construction and vacant land

Commercial and agricultural loans

Indirect auto loans

Home equity loans

Other consumer loans

Total loans

Net deferred loan costs

Loans net of deferred loan costs

$600372

225850

12083

38956

60642

28038

29658

8730

1004329

301

$1004630

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Year Three Months Nine Months Year Ended

Ended December Ended December Ended September December 31

31 2011 31 2010 30 2010 2009

$2362 $- $188601 $525359

12 2635 5003
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Accretable yield or income expected to be collected related to purchased credit-impaired loans is as

follows

Balance beginning of penod

New loans purchased

Accretion of income

Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference

Disposals

Balance end of period

The contractually required payments represent the total undiscounted amount of all uncollected contractual

principal and contractual interest payments both past due and scheduled for the future adjusted for the timing of

estimated prepayments and any full or partial charge-offs prior to the CBF Investment Nonaccretable difference

represents contractually required payments in excess of the amount of estimated cash flows expected to be collected

The accretable yield represents the excess of estimated cash flows expected to be collected over the initial fair value

of the PCI loans which is their fair value at the time of the CBF Investment The aceretable yield is accreted into

interest income over the estimated life of the PCI loans using the level yield method The accretable yield will

change due to changes in

the estimate of the remaining life of PCI loans which may change the amount of future interest income and

possibly principal expected to be collected

the estimate of the amount of contractually required principal and interest payments over the estimated life

that will not be collected the nonaccretable difference and

indices for PCI loans with variable rates of interest

For PCI loans tEeimpact of lon modifications is InclüdŁd in thó evaluation of expected cash flows for

subsequent decreases or increases of cash flows For variable rate PCI loans expected future cash flows will be

recalculated as the rates adjust over the Jives of the loans At acquisition the expected future cash flows were based

on the variable rates that were in effect at that time

The following table presents the aing of the recor4ed investment in past due loans based on contractual

terms as of December 31 2010 by class of loans

Real estate mortgage loans

Owner occupied commercial

Office building

Hotellmotel

Guest houses

Retail

Multi-family

Other commercial

Primary residential

Secondary residential

Investment residential

Farmland

Land lot and construction

Acquired commercial and agricultural

Year Ended December 31 2011

$263381

17059

246.322

$-

Non-purchased credit impaired loans Greater than 90 Days

30.89 Days Past Due and Still

Past Dae AccruinglAccreting Nonaccrual Total

121 121
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Sub-prime indirect auto loans

Acquired home equity loans

Acquired other consumer loans

Total loans

TIB Financial Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to consolidated FinanciaL Statements

Ioflars and shares in thousands except per share data

Purchased credit impaired loans Greater than 90 Days

30-89 Days Past Due and Still

Past Due Accruing/Accreting

Real estate mortgage loans

Owner occupied commercial $3027

Office building

Hotel/motel 4794

Guest houses 3873

Retail

Multi-family

Other conirnerial 992

Primary residential

Secondary residential 235

Investment residential

Farmland

Land lot and construction

Commercial and agricultural

Prime indirect auto loans

Sub-prime indirect auto loans

Home equity loans

Other consumer loans

Total loans

There were no troubled debt restructurings as FDecember 31 2010

Credit Quality Indicators

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of

borrowers to service their debt such as current financial inforrLation historical payment experience credit

documentation public information and current economic trends among other factors The Company analyzes loans

individually by classifing the loans as to credit risk This analysis is performed on monthly basis The Company

uses the following definitions for risk ratings

Pass These loans range
from superior quality with minimal credit risk to loans requiring

heightened management attention but that are still an acceptable risk and continue to perform as

contracted

Special Mention Loans classified as special mention have potential weakness that deserves

managements close attention If left uncOrrected these potential weaknesses may result in

deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the institutions credit position at some

future date

405 636

15 15

$541 $636 $- $1177

1041

Nonaccrual TotaL

$31043 $-

2184

3812

1989

6953

$34070

2184

8606

3873

1989

7945

1777

1175

229

745

507 742

1146 1146

942 942

6433 8210

402 1577

100 329

146 891

22 44 66

$16869 $55701 $- $72570

Purchased credit-impaired loans are not classified as nonaccrual as they are considered to be acôruitig

because their interest income relates to the accretablØ yield recognized under accounting for purchased credit-

impaired loans and not to contractual interest payments
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Substandard Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net

worth and paying capacity of the obligor Or of the collateral pledged if any Loans so classified

have well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt They are

characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies

are not corrected

Doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as

substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in

full on the basis of currently existing facts conditions and values highly questionable and

improbable

The following table summarizes loans excluding purchased credit-impaired loans monitored for credit

quality based on internal ratings at December 31 2010

Real estate mortgage loans

Owner occupied commercial

Office building

Hotel/motel

Guest houses

Retail

Multi-family

Other commercial

Primary residential

Secondary residential

Investment residential

Farmland

Land .lot and construction

Commercial and agricultural

Prime indirect auto loans

Sub-prime indirect auto loans

Home equity loans

Other consumer loans

Total loans

170

4441

3056

4371

4901

6213

82

24090

5459

170

4441

3056

4371

4901

6213
82

25305

5546

$- $54467

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows

Balance beginning of period

Provision for loan losses charged to expense

Loans charged off

Recoveries of loans previously charged off

Balance end of period predecessor company

Acquisition accounting adjustment

Reduction due to deconsolidation of the Bank

Balance end of period successor company

Predecessor

Company

$29083

29697

27432
1058

Pass

Special

Mention Substandard

$351 $-

31

Doubtful Total

$- $- $351

31

78 1137

87

$53165 $78 $1.224

Spccessor Company
Year Ended

December

312011

Three Months

Ended December

31.2010

$402

621

24

Nine Months

Ended September

30 2010

$-

402

$- $- $32406

32046
999

$- $402 $-
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Successor Company

Real estate mortgage loans

Commercial

Residential

Construction and vacant

land

Commercial and agricultural

loans

Indirect auto loans

Home equity loans

Other consumer loans

Total loans

December 31
2010

December 31
2011

The following table presents the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in

loans by portfolio segment and based on impairment method as of December 31 2010

Allowance for Loan Losses

Individually Collectively

Evaluated Evaluated Purchased

for for Credit

Impairment Impairment Impaired

Loans

Collectively

Individually Evaluated

Evaluated for Purchased

for Impairment Credit-

Impairment Impaired

$- $402

Loans collectively evaluated for impairment include $24395 of acquired home equity loans $3269 of

commercial and agricultural loans and $4935 of other consumer loans which are presented net of

unamortized purchase discounts of $897 $61 and $46 respectively

There were no loans individually evaluated for impairment at December 31 2010 or during the three

months ended December 31 2010 due to substantially all loans being accounted for as purchase credit-impaired

loans as result of the CBF Investment No allowance for loan losses was recorded for those purchased credit-

impaired loans disclosed above during the three months ended December 31 2010

Roll forward of allowance for loan losses for the twelve months ended December 31 2011

Reduction Due to

Net Charge- Deconsolidation of

offs the BankProvision

$7 $201 $- $208
164 206 370

75
75

37
24 13 ..

184 108 24 268
14 11 25

16
$402 $621 $24 $999

Real estate mortgage loans

Commercial

Residential

Farmland

Construction and vacant

land

Commercial and agricultural

Indirect auto loans

Home equity loans

Other consumer loans

Total loans

$7

164

24

184

14

$- $552 $599820

11868 213
12083

38956

4901 55740

6295 21744

25305 4353

5.546
________ 3183

$54467 S949.862
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Note 7Premises and Equipment

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

premises and equipment are reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment as of December 31 2010

follows

December31 2010

Land $13891

Buildings and leasehold improvements 25133

Furniture fixtures and equipment 4597

Construction in progress 259

43880

Less accumulated depreciation 727
Premises and equipment net $43153

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31 2011 was $890 Depreciation expense for the

Successor Company in the three months ended December 31 2010 was $727 and for the Predecessor Company in

the nine months ended September 30 2010 was $2363

Rental expense for the year ended December 31 2011 was $338 Rental expense for the Successor Company in the

three months ended December 31 2010 was $250 and for the Predecessor Company in the nine months ended

September30 2010 was $821

Note 8Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the Successor Company year ended December 31

2011 the Successor Company three months ended December 31 2010 for the Predecessor Company nine months

ended September 30 2010 and year ended December 31 2009 are as follows

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Nine Months

Year Ended Three Months Ended Year Ended

December Ended December September December

312011 31 2010 302010 31 2009

Balance at beginning of period $29999 $29999 $622 $5160

Goodwill associated with the acquisition of Naples

Capital Advisors Inc 296 148

Goodwill associated with the acquisition of Riverside

Bank of the Gulf Coast 1201

Goodwill impairment 5887
Reduction due to deconsolidation of the Bank 29999
Balance at end of period $- $29999 918 622

Less Elimination of Predecessor Company goodwill 9.18

Successor company balance before application of

acquisition method of accounting $-
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December 31 2011 Successor Company

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

goodwill was reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

December31 2010 Successor Company

CBF acquired the voting securities ofthe Company immediately following its Investment and followed the

acquisition method of accounting and applied acquisition accounting Acquisition accounting requires that the

assets purchased the liabilities assumed and non-controlling interests all be reported in the acquirers financial

statements at their fair value with any excess of purchase consideration over thç net assets being reported at fair

value is the goodwill This acquisition was nontaxable and as result there is no tax basis in the goodwill

Accordingly none of the goodwill associated with the acquisition is deductible for tax purposes

Predecessor Company

The Company performed review of goodwill for potential impairment as of December 31 2009 Based

on this review which included valuing the Company considering variety of methodologies including using the

COmpnys stock price as of year-end 2009 transaction multiples of recent comparable transactions and the

expected present value of future cash flows it was determined that impairment existed as of December 31 2009

Accordingly the Company wrote off $5887 of goodwill relating primarily to the acquisitions of The Bank of

Venice and Riverside

Impairment exists when reporting units carrying value of goodwill exceeds its fair value which is

determined through two-step impairment test Step includes the determination of the carrying value of

reporting unit including the existing goodwill and intangible assets and estimating the fair value of the reporting

unit We determine the fair value of the reporting unit and compare it to its carrying amount If the carrying amount

of reporting unit exceeds its fair value we are required to perform second step to the impairment test

Our annual impairment analysis as.of December 31 2009 indicated that the Step analysis was necessary

Step of the goodwill impairment test isperformed to measure the impairment loss Step 2requires that the implied

fair value of the reporting unit goodwill be compared to the carrying amount of that goodwill As the carrying

amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of that goodwill an impairment loss was

required to be recogrnzed in an amount equal to that excess

Intangible assets consist of the following

Successor

Company Year Ended December 31 2011 Year Ended December 31 2010

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Net Book Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value Amount Amortization Value

$- $-

628 438 190

60 15 45

$688 $453 $235

$7500 $187 $7313

3500 88 3412

770 89 681

$11770 $364 $11406

Core deposit

intangible

Customer

relationship

intangible

Trade Name

and Other

Tutal

Due to the Merger as discussed in Note intangible assets of the Bank were deconsolidated

Subsequently customer relationship intangible and trade name associated with NCA comprised the Companys

remaining intangible assets The Companys registered investment advisor Naples Capital Advisors Inc
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experienced decrease in assets under advisement following the departure of certain employees leading to

$2872 customer relationship intangible impairment recorded in fburth quarter of 2011.-

All of the identified intangible assets are amortized as nrn-interest expense over their estimated lives

Aggregate intangible asset amortization expense was $733 for the year ended December 31

201 lSuccessor Company $364 for the three months ended December 31 2010 Successor Company and $1168

and $1430 for the nine months ended September 30 2010 and year ended 2009 Predecessor Company
respectively

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

22

22

Note Other Real Estate Owned

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Year Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 31 2011 December 31 2010 September 30 2010

25673 29531 -- 21352

4569 1992 35007

19171

8661 5932 6794

21581
82 137

NA NA 30531

NA NA 1000

25673 --

29531-

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no time

deposits are reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2011

Time deposits of $100 or more were $359869 at December 31 2010 Successor Company

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years
is as follows

Years Ending December 31 Successor Company
$22

22

22

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 other

real estate owned is reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 201-1 Activity in

other real estate owned is as follows

Balance beginning of period

Real estate acquired

Changes in valuation reserve

Property sold

Reduction due to deconsolidation of the Bank

Other

Predecessor Company Balance end of period

Successor Company acquisition accounting

adjustment

Balance end of period

Note 10Time Deposits
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Note 11Short-Term Borrowings and Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

As of December 31 2010 and through the period until deconsolidation of the Bank in the second quarter of

2011 short-term borrowings included securities sold under agreements to repurchase advances from the Federal

Home Loan Bank and Treasury tax and loan note option

The following table reflects the average daily outstanding year-end outstanding maximum month-end

outstanding and the weighted average rates paid for each of the categories of short-term borrowings and FHLB
advances

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Three Months

Year Ended Ended December Nine Months Ended

December 31 2011 31 2010 September 302010

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Balance

Average daily outstanding $13993 $42834 $64706

Year-end outstanding 45430 43245

Maximum month-end outstanding 45448 45430 73476

Rate

Weighted average 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%

Weighted average interest rate NA 0.1% 0.1%

Treasury tax and loan note option

Balance

Average daily outstanding $351 $928 $1184

Year-end outstanding 1728 584

Maximum month-end outstanding 1700 1728 1749

Rate

Weighted average 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Weighted average interest rate NA 0.0% 0.0%

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank-

Long Term
Balance

Average daily outstanding $41465 $131740 $125000

Year-en4 outstanding 131116 125000

Maximum month-end outstanding 130796 131757 125000

Rate

Weighted average 0.7% 0.7% 3.8%

Weighted average interest rate NA 0.7% 3.8%
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Note 12Long-Term Borrowings

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

During 2007 the Company entered into agreements with another financial institution for the sale of certain

securities to be repurchased at future date The interest rates on these repurchase agreements are fixed for the

remaining term of the agreement The agreement in the amount of $20000 and an interest rate of 4.18% matured in

September 2010 and the agreement in the amount of $10000 with aninterest rate of 3.46% matured in December

2010

Subordinated Debentures

TIBFL Statutory Trust TIBFL Statutory Trust II and TIBFL Statutory Trust III were formed in

conjunction with the issuance of trust preferred securities as further discussed below The Company is not

considered the primary beneficiary of the trusts variable interest entities therefore the trusts are not consolidated in

the Companys consolidated financial statements but rather the subordinate debentures are presented as liability

On September 2000 the Company participated in pooled offering of trust preferred securities The

Company formed TIBFL Statutory Trust the Trust wholly-owned statutory trust subsidiary for the purpose of

issuing the trust preferred securities The Trust used the proceeds from the issuance of $8000 in trust preferred

securities to acquire junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures of the Company The trust preferred

securities essentially mirror the debt securities carrying cumulative preferred dividend at fixed rate equal to the

10.6% interest rate on the debt securities The debt securities and the trust preferred securities each have 30-year

lives The trust preferred securities and the debt securities are callable by the Company or the Trust at their

respective option after ten years and at varying premiums and sooner in specific events subject to prior approval by

the Federal Reserve Board if then required At December 31 2011 the carrying value was $8813

On July 31 2001 the Company participated in pooled offering of trust preferred securities The

Company formed TIBFL Statutory Trust II the Trust II wholly-owned statutory trust subsidiary for the purpose

of issuing the trust preferred securities The Trust II used the proceeds from the issuance of $5000 in trust preferred

securities to acquire junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures of the Company The trust preferred

securities essentially mirror the debt securities carrying cumulative preferred dividend at variable rate equal to

the interest rate on the debt securities three month LIBOR plus 358 basis points The initial rate in effect at the

time of issuance was 7.29% and is sUbject to change quarterly The rate in effect at December 31 2011 was 4.01%

The debt securities and thetrust preferred securities each ha.e 30-year lives The trust preferred securities and the

debt securities are callable by the Company or the Trust at their respective option after five years and at varying

premiums and sooner in specific events subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve Board if then required At

December 31 2011 the carrying value was $3734

On June 23 2006 the Company issued $20000 of additional trust preferred securities through private

placement The Company formed TIBFL Statutory Trust III the Trust III wholly-owned statutory trust

subsidiary for the purpose of issuing the trust preferred securities The Trust III used the proceeds from the issuance

of $20000 in trust preferred securities to acquire junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures of the Company
The trust preferred securities essentially mirror the debt securities carrying cumulative preferred dividend at

variable rate equal to the interest rate on the debt securities three month LIBOR plus 155 basis points The rate in

effect at December 31 2011 was 1.95% The debt securities and the trust preferred securities each have 30-year

lives The trust preferred securities and the debt securities are callable by the Company or the Trust at their

respective option at par after five years and sooner at 5% premium if specific events occur subject to prior

approval by the Federal Reserve Board if then required At December 31 2011 the carrying value was $10629

The Company received request from the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta FRB for the Companys
Board of Directors to adopt resolution that it will not make any payments or distributions on the outstanding trust

preferred securities without the prior written approval of the Reserve Bank The Board adopted this resolution on

October 2009 On September 22 2010 the FRB and the Company entered into written agreement where the

Company agrees among other things that it will not make any payments on the outstanding trust preferred
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securities or declare or pay any dividends without the prior written approval of the FRB The Company has notified

the trustees of its $20000 trust preferred securities due July 2036 and its $5000 trust preferred securities due July

31 2031 of its election to defer interest payments on the trust preferred securities beginning with the payments due

in October 2009 The Company also notified the trustees of its $8000 trust preferred securities due September

2030 of its election to defer interest payments on the trust preferred securities beginning with the payments due in

March 2010 Deferral of the trust preferred securities is allowed for up to 60 months without being considered an

event of default

The Company submitted written request to the FRB to authonze the payment of deferred and current

interest payments through the next payment date and future interest payments when due as scheduled on the three

trust preferred securities On September 28 2011 pursuant to receipt of the FRBs approval concurrent interest

payments were made on each of the trust preferred securities and the Company began the process of exiting from the

deferral period

The Company has treated the trust preferred securities as Tier capital up to the maximum amount

allowed and the remainder as Tier capital for federal regulatory purposes see Note 15

At December 31 2011 the maturities of long-term borrowings were as follows

Successor Company
Due in 2012

Due in 2013

Due in 2014

Due in 2015

Thereafter

Total long-term debt

Fixed Rate Flàating Total

Rate

8813 14363 23176

$8813 $14363 $23176

Note 13Income Taxes

Income tax
expense benefit from continuing operations was asfollows

Current income tax benefit

Federal

State

Deferred tax benefit

Federal

State

Valuation allowance

Total

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Nine Months

Three Months Ended Year Ended

Year Ended Ended December September 30 December 31

December 31 2011 31 2010 2010 2009

$149 $287 $- $188
53 32

155 340 220

676 504 16877 14292
69 93 2893 2429

745 597 19770 16721

19770 30392

$900 $257 $- $13451
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The details of the net deferred tax asset/ liability as of December 312011 and 2010 are as follows

Successor Company

-2011 2010

Allowance for loan losses $- $130

Purchase accounting adjustment

Net operating loss and AMT carryforward

Recognized impairment of other real estate owned

Net unrealized losses on securities available for sale

Acquisition related intangibles

Other _________________________
Total gross deferred tax assets

__________________________

-Purchase -accounting adjustment

Deferred loan costs

Acquisition related intangibles

Other
_______________________

Total gross deferred tax liabilities
__________________________

Net temporary differences
____________________________

Valuation allowance

148 22162

3789
452

1676
6-1

3789 2189

3641 19973

reconciliation of income tax computed at applicable Federal statutory income tax rates to total income

taxes reported is as follows

Successor Company
--

Three Months

Year Ended

December 31
2011

Predecessor Company

Ended

December 31
2010

Nine Months

Ended

September 30
2010

Year Ended

December 31
2009

$1900 $817 $52805 $48097Pretax income from continuing operations

Income taxes computed at Federal statutory tax

rate

Effect of

Tax-exempt income net

State income taxes net

Non-deductible goodwill

Equity in income from investment

Stock based compensation expense net

Other net

Change in valuation allowance

Total incoin tax expense benefit

$665

27
79

1429

30

$278

55
26

$17954

238
1909

205

126

19770

$16353

685
1624

1557

96

68

30.392

$900 $257 $- $13451

13752

5167

1632

1392

-- 148

-89

Net deferred tax asset liability $3641 $19973
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Successor Company

valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets is required when it is considered more likely than not

that all or part of the benefit related to such assets will not be realized As of December 31 2011 management

considered the need for valuation allowance and based upon its assessment of the relative weight of the positive

and negative evidence available at the time of the analysis concluded that valuation allowance was not necessary

as temporary differences would become recognizable for tax purposes after consideration of the limitation on the

utilization of net operating losses and net unrealized built-in losses NUBIL

Due to the Merger discussed above TIB Bank deconsolidated from the Company as of April29 2011 As

result the current and deferred provisionlbenefit includes four months of the operations of TIB Bank The deferred

tax assets and liabilities of TIB Bank were transferred to Capital Bank NA Thus the deferred tax asset and

liabilities as of December 31 2011 include the amortized trust preferred and unrealized gains on securities available

for sale at the Company and the acquisition related intangibles at NCA

As result of the Investment made by CBF on September 30 2010 the Company had undergone change

in ownership as that term is defined in the Internal Revenue Code This change in ownership resulted in

significant limitation of the amount of net operating losses and net NUBIL that can be utilized by the Company
NUBIL represents the excess of the tax basis of the Companys assets over their fair market value As

consequence no deferred taxes have been recognized for NUBILs that are estimated not to be realizable as result

of the limitation on the utilization of NUBILs

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax of the State

of Florida For the tax period ending December 31 2011 the successor company will be included in CBFs

consolidated Federal and Florida income tax return The Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing

authorities for years before 2008

There were no unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2011 and the Company does not expect the total

of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase in the next twelve months

Note 14Employee Benefit Plans

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no assets

or liabilities related to benefit plans were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31

2011

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan with 401k provisions that covers all

employees who are qualified as to age and length of service Three types of contributions can be made to the Plan by

the COmpany and participants basic voluntary contributions which are discretionary contributions made by all

participants matching contribution whereby the Company will match 50 percent of salary reduction contributions

up to percent of compensation and an additional discretionary contribution which may be made by the Company
and allocated to the accounts of participants on the basis of total relative compensation The Successor Company
contributed $102 to the plan for the year end December 31 2011 and $83 for the three months ended December 31

2010 and the Predecessor Company contributed $256 and $334 to the plan for the nine months ended September 30

2010 and the year ended December 31 2009 respectively

TIB Bank entered into salary continuation agreements with several of its executive officers The plans were

nonqualified deferred compensation arrangements that were designed to provide supplemental retirement income

benfits to participants The Predecessor Company expensed $236 and $227 for the accrual of ftiture salary

continuation benefits in the nine months ended September 30 2010 and year ended December 31 2009

respectively The Bank purchased single premium life insurance policies on several of these individuals Cash

value income net of related insurance premium expense totaled $197 and $328 in the nine months ended 2010 and

year ended December 31 2009 Predecessor Company respectively and $101 and $66 in the year ended December

31 2011 and the three months ended December 31 2010 Successor Company respectively Other assets at

December 31 2010 included $6610 in cash surrender value of life insurance In 2010 following the investment by

CBF and the TARP repayment the salary continuation agreements were terminated and the executives each
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received lump sum distribution of their respective accrued benefit earned under their agreement resulting in total

payout of $1305 by the Successor Company

In 2001 TIB Bank established non qualified retirement benefit plan for eligible Bank directors Under

the plan the Bank pays each participant or their beneficiary the amount of directors fees deferred and interest in

120 equal monthly installments beginning the month following the directors normal retirement date The

Company expensed $3 and $9 in the year ended December 31 2011 and three months ended December 31 2010

Successor Company respectively and $29 and $42 in the nine months ended September 30 2010 and year ended

December 31 2009 Predecessor Company respectively for the accrual of retirement benefits TIB Bank

purchased single premium split dollar life insurance policies on theseindividuals Cash value income net of related

insurance premium expense totaled $50 and $38 in the year ended December 31 2011 and the three months ended

December 31 2010 Successor Company respectively and $120 and $170 in the nine months ended September 30

2010 and year ended December 31 2009 Predecessor Company respectively In addition $134 gain was

recognized on the policy of deceased former director by the Predecessor Company in the nine months ended

September 30 2010 Other assets included $4336 in surrender value and other liabilities included retirement

benefits payable of $430 at December 31 2010 Successor .Company In connection with changes made to bring the

plan agreements into compliance with section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code the four current directors

participating in the plan each elected to receive lump sum distribution from the Predecessor Company in 2009 of

the amount vested accrued and earned through December 31 2008 In 2011 the director deferred agreements were

terminated and the directors participating in the plan each received lump sum distribution of their respective

deferral account balances resulting in total payout of $431 by the Successor Company

Note 15Related Party Transactions

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loans

or deposits were reported on the Company consolidated balance sheet as of December31 2011 Activity in loans

outstanding to certain of the Company executive officers directors and their related business interests is as

follows

Beginning balance January 2011 $182

New loans

Repayments 34
Reduction due to deconsolidation of the Bank 157
Ending balance December 31 2011 $-

Note 16Regulatory Capital Requirements

As discussed in Note due to the deconsohdation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no

capital ratios for the Bank as of December 31 2011 are reported in the Companys notes to consolidated financial

statements

The Company on consolidated basis is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered

by federal and state banking agencies Failure to meet minimum capital requirements results in certain discretionary

and required actions by regulators that could have an effect on the Companys operations The regulations require

the Company to meet specific capital adequacy guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets liabilities

and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices The Companys capital

amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgmenis by the regulators about components risk

weightings and other factors

Cap ital Adequacy and Ratios
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To be considered well capitalized and adequately capitalized as defined under the regulatory framework

for prompt corrective action the Bank must maintain minimum Tier leverage Tier risk-based and total risk-

based ratios At December 31 2011 the Company maintained capital ratios exceeding the requirement to be

considered adequately capitalized These minimum amounts and ratios along with the actual amounts and ratios for

the Company as of December31 2011 and 2010 and the Bank as of December 31 2010 are presented in the

following tables

December 31 2011 Successor

Company

Tier Capital to Average Assets

Consolidated

Well Capitalized

Requirement

Amount Ratio

N/A N/A

Adequately Capitalized

Requirement Actual

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

$8231 4.0% $198337 96.4%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated N/A N/A $8065 4.0% $198337 98.4%

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated N/A N/A $16129 8.0% $198337 98.4%

December 31 2010 Successor Well Capitalized Adequately Capitalized

Company Requirement Requirement Actual

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Tier Capital to Average Assets

Consolidated N/A N/A $67746 4.0% $139152 8.2%

TIB Bank $84269 5.0% 67415 4.0% 135783 8.1%

Tier Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated N/A N/A $41733 4.0% $139152 13.3%

Tifi Bank $62599 6.0% 41733 4.0% 135783 13.0%

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated N/A N/A $83465 8.0% $139583 13.4%

TIB Bank $104332 10.0% 83466 8.0% 136214 13.1%

Management believes as of December 31 2011 that the Company meets all capital requirements to which

they are subject Tier Capital for the Company includes the trust preferred securities that were issued in

September 2000 July 2001 and June 2006 to the extent allowable

On September 22 2010 the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta FRB and the Company entered into

written agreement the Written Agreement where the Company agreed among other things that it would not

make any payments on the outstanding trust preferred securities or declare or pay any dividends without the prior

written approval of the FRB On September 28 2011 pursuant to approval by the FRB of written request by the

Company the Company resumed payments of all amounts due for current and deferred interest through the next

payment date for each of its trust preferred securities On November 2011 the FRB notified the Company that the

Written Agreement was terminated effective April 30 2011 given that TIB Bank was merged into Capital Bank and

that the condition of the Company was subsequently upgraded

On January 18 2011 the Company concluded rights offering wherein legacy shareholders with rights to

purchase up to 1489 shares of common stock at price of $15.00 per share acquired 533 shares of newly issued
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common stock The rights offering resulted in net proceeds of $7 763 The record date for the rights offering was

July 12 2010

Subsidiary Dividend Limitations

Currently the 0CC Operating Agreement with Capital Bank prohibits the Bank from paying dividend for

three years following the July 16 2010 initial acquisition date Once the three-year period has elapsed the

agreement imposes other restnctions on Capital Bank ability to pay dividends including requiring prior approval
from the 0CC before any distribution is made

Dividends that may be paid by national bank without express approval of the 0CC are limited to that

banks retained net profits for the preceding two years plus retained net profits up to the date of any dividend

declaration in the current calendar
year Based on the retained net profits of the Bank declaration of dividends by

the Bank to the Company during 2011 if not subject to other restrictions would have been limited to approximately
$8678

Note 17 Stock-Based Compensation

As of December 31 2011 the Company has one compensation plan under which shares of its common
stock are issuable in the form of stock options restricted shares stock appreciation rights performance shares or

performance units This is its 2004 Equity Incentive Plan the 2004 Plan which was approved by the Companys
shareholders at the May 25 2004 annual meeting Pursuant to the

merger agreement upon the April 30 2007

closing of its acquisition of The Bank of Venice the Company granted stock options in exchange for the options

outstanding for the purchase of shares of common stock of The Bank of Venice at such date The options were fully

vested at the grant date and ranged in-price from $863.92 to $992.68 per share as determined -by the conversion ratio

specified in the merger agreement Previously the Company had granted stock options under the 1994 Incentive
Stock Option and Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan the 1994Plan as amended and restated as of August 31 1996
Under the 2004 Plan the Board of Directors of the Company may grant nonqualified stockbased awards to any
director and incentive or nonqualified stock-based awards to any officer key executive administrative or other

employee including an employee who is director of the Company Subject to the provisions of the 2004 Plan the

maximum number of shares of common stock of the Company that may be optioned or awarded through the 2014
expiration of the plan is 13 shares no more than of which may be issued pursuant to awards granted in the form of
restricted shares Such shares may be treasury or authorized but unissued shares- of common stock of the

Company If options or awards granted under the Plan expire or terminate for any reason without having been
exercised in full or released from restriction the corresponding shares shall again be available for option or award
for the purposes of the Plan as long as no dividends have been paid to the holder in accordance with the provisions
of the grant agreement

The following table summarizes the components and classification of stock-based compensation expense for the

year ended December 31 2011 and three months ended December 31 2010 Successor Company and for the nine
months ended September 31 2010 and the year ended December 31 2009 Predecessor Company

Successor Company Predecessor Company
Nine Mouths

Three Months Ended Year -Ended

Year Ended Ended December September December

December 31 2011 --312010 30 2010 31 2009
Stock options

Restricted stock

Total stock-based compensation expense

Salaries and employee benefits

Other expense

Total stock-based compensation expense

$- $- $625- ---

--

$296
--

-344- -- -- 394

$- $- $969 $690

$- $- $768 $381

201 309

$969 $690
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No tax benefit related to stock-based compensation expense arising from restricted stock awards and non-

qualified stock options was recorded for the nine months ended September 30 2010 and year ended December 31
2009 due to the recognition of full valuation allowance against deferred income tax assets

The fair value of each option is estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing

Model This model requires the input of subjective assumptions that will usually have significant impact on the fair

value estimate The assumptions for the current period grants were developed based on ASC 718 and SEC guidance

contained in Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 107 Share-Based Payment The following table summarizes

the weighted average assumptions used to compute the grant-date fair value of options granted for the year ended

December 31 2009

Predecessor

Company

2009

Dividend yield 0.00

Risk-free interest rate 3.06

Expected option life 6.5 years

Volatility 80

Weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted $116.34

The dividend yield was estimated using historical dividends paid and market value information for the

Companys stock An increase in dividend yield will decrease stock compensation expense

The risk-free interest rate was developed using the U.S Treasury yield curve for periods equal to the

expected life of the options on the grant date An increase in the risk-free interest rate will increase stock

compensation expense

The expected option life for the current period grants was estimated using the vesting period the term of

the option and estimates of future exercise behavior patterns An increase in the option life will increase

stock compensation expense

The volatility was estimated using historical volatility for periods approximating the expected option life

An increase in the volatility will increase stock compensation expense

No stock options were granted for the Successor Company year ended December 31 2011 and three

months ended December 31 2010 or the Predecessor Company nine months ended September 30 2010

ASC 718 requires the recognition of stock-based compensation for the number of awards that are ultimately

expected to vest During 2009 and 2010 stock based compensation expense was recorded based upon estimates that

we would experience no forfeitures Our estimate of forfeitures will be reassessed in subsequent periods based on

historical forfeiture rates and may change based on new facts and circumstances Any changes in our estimates will

be accounted for prospectively in the period of change

As of December 31 2011 there was no unrecognized compensation expense associated with stock options

and restricted stock due to the accelerated vesting of all stock options and restricted stock and the recognition of

associated compensation expense upon the closing of the investment by CBF on September 30 2010

Stock Options

Under the 2004 Plan the exercise price for common stock must equal at least 100 percent of the fair market

value of the stock on the day an option is granted The exercise price under an incentive stock option granted to
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person owning stock representing more than 10 percent of the common stock must equal at least 110 percent of the

fair market value at the date of grant and such option is not exercisable after five years from the date the incentive

stock option was granted The Board of Directors may at its discretion provide that an option not be exercised in

whole or in part for any period or periods of time as specified in the option agreements No option may be exercised

after the expiration of ten years from the date it is granted Stock options vest over varying service periods which

range from vesting immediately to up to nine years

summary of the stock option activity in the plans is as follows

Predecessor Company

Balance January 2009

Granted

Exercised

Expired or forfeited

Balance December 31 2009

Granted

Exercised

Expired or forfeited

Balance September 30 2010

Weighted

Average

Shares Exercise Price

$894.82

162.18

947.37

$680.42

666.32

$681.31

Successor Company

Balance September 30 2010

Granted

Exercised

Expired or forfeited

Balance December 31 2010

Granted

Exercised

Expired or forfeited

Balance December 31 2011

Weighted

Average

Exercise PriceShares

$681.31

497.55

$688.80

744.86

$541.61

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Options exercisable at December 31 2011 December 31 2010 September 30 2010

Weighted Weighted

Average Average Weighted

Exercise Exercise Average

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Exercise Price

$541.61 $688.80 $681.31

Successor Company

The weighted average remainiig terms for outstanding stock options and for exercisable stock options were

5.2 years and 5.2 years at December 31 2011 respectively The aggregate intrinsic value at December 31 2011 was

$0 for stock options outstanding and $0 for stock options exercisable The intrinsic value for stock options is

calculated based on the exercise price of the underlying awards and the market price of the Companys common

stock as of the reporting date
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Options outstanding at December 31 2011 were as follows

Outstanding Options Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Range of Exercise Contractual Exercise Exercise

Prices Number Life Price Number Price

$158.42$584.28 5.85 $242.16 $242.16

584.29 1072.46 4.68 783.56 783.56

1072.471489.52 3.51 1276.43 1276.43

$158.42 $1489.52 5.19 $541.61 $541.61

Proceeds received from the exercise of stock options were $0 during the year ended December 31 2011

and three months ended December 31 2010 The intrinsic value related to the exercise of stock options was $0

during the year ended December 31 2011 and the three months ended December 31 2010 No tax benefit was

recorded for the year ended December 31 2011 and the three months ended December 31 2010 as there were no

exercises of non-qualified stock options or disqualifying dispositions

Predecessor Company

Proceeds received from the exercise of stock options were $0 and $0 during the nine months ended

September 30 2010 and the year ended December 31 2009 respectively The intrinsic value related to the exercise

of stock options was $0 and $0 the nine months ended September 30 2010 and the year ended December 31 2009

respectively No tax benefit was recorded for the nine months ended September 30 2010 and the year ended

December 2009 as there were no exercises of non-qualified stock options or disqualifying dispositions

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock provides the grantee with voting dividend and anti-dilution rights equivalent to common

shareholders but is restricted from transfer until vested at which time all restrictions are removed Vesting for

restricted shares is generally on straight-line basis and ranges from one to five years The value of the restricted

stock estimated to be equal to the closing market price on the date of grant is amortized on straight-line basis over

the respective service periods

Successor Company

For the year ended December 31 2011 and the three months ended December 31 2010 no restricted stock

awards vested due to the accelerated vesting of all restricted stock upon the closing of the investment by CBF on

September 30 2010

Predecessor Company

The fair market value of restricted stock awards that vested was $27 and $101 during the nine months

ended September 30 2010 and the year ended December 31 2009 respectively No tax benefit was recorded for the

nine months ended September 30 2010 and the
year ended December 31 2009 due to the recognition of full

valuation allowance against deferred income tax assets

summary of the restricted stock activity in the plan is as follows
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Balance January 2009

Granted

Vested

Expired or forfeited

Balance December 31 2009

Granted

Vested

Expired or forfeited

Balance September 30 2010

Successor Company

Balance September 30 2010

Granted

Vested

Expired or forfeited

Balance December 31 2010

Granted

Vested

Expired or forfeited

Balance December 31 2011

Shares

Weighted Average

Grant-Date Fair

Value

$-

Note 18Loan Commitments and Other Related Activities

Some financial instruments such as loan commitments credit lines letters of credit and overdraft

protection are issued to meet customer financing needs These are agreements to provide credit or to support the

credit of others as long as conditions established in the contract are met and usually have expiration dates
Commitments may expire without being used Off-balance-sheet risk of credit loss exists up to the face amount of
these instruments although material losses are not anticipated The same credit policies are used to make such
commitments as are used for loans including obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment

As discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 2011 no loan
commitments or other related activities were reported on the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December
31 2011 The contractual amount of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk was as follows at December
31 2010

Commitments to make loans

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit

2010

Variable

Fixed Rate Rate

$7149 $4549

4150 44857

Predecessor Company

Shares

Weighted Average

Grant-Date Fair Value

$1084.83

1140.67

725.88

$1089.43

1089.43

$-
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Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 30 days As of December 31 2010 the

fixed rate loan commitments have interest rates ranging from 2.94% to 11.00% and maturities ranging from year

to 30 years

As of December 31 2010 letters of credit totaled $1638

Note 19Supplemental Financial Data

Components of other expense in excess of percent of total interest and non-interest income are as follows

Foreclosed asset related expense

Goodwill impairment

FDIC state assessments

Legal and professional fees

Computer services

Capital raise expense

Customer relationship intangible impairment

Amortization of intangibles

Postage courier and armored car

Insurance non-building

Marketing and community relations

Collection expense

Operational charge-offs

Net gain loss on disposition of repossessed

assets

Note 20Fair Values of Financial Instruments

ASC 820-10 establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable

inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels

of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the

ability to access as of the measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar

assets or liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys own assumptions about the

assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability

As discussed in Note Equity Method Investment in Capital Bank NA due to the deconsolidation of the

Bank during the second quarter of 2011 the Company had no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring or non recurring basis as of December 31 2011

Valuation of securities available for sale

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Year Three Months Nine Months Year

Ended Ended Ended Ended

December 31 December 31 September December

2011 2010 30 2010 31 2009

$565 $536

1278

1995

628

2872
733

377

531

267

51

16

1184

856

849

364

260

447

258

48

39

$21687 $3149

5887

3515 3962

2866 3270

2022 2708

2067

1168 1431

823 1084

1171 870

860 1128

40 353

69 155

244
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The fair values of securities available for sale are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally

recognized securities exchanges when available Level inputs matrix pricing which is mathematical

technique widely used in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the

specific securities but rather by relying on the securities relationship to other benchmark quoted securities Level

inputs and for collateralized debt obligations custom discounted cash flow modeling Level inputs

As of December 31 2010 the Company owned collateralized debt security where the underlying

collateral is comprised primarily of trust preferred securities of banks and insurance companies The inputs used in

determining the estimated fair value of this security are Level inputs In determining its estimated fair value

management utilizes discounted cash flow modeling valuation approach Discount rates utilized in the modeling of

these securities are estimated based upOn variety of factors including the market yields of publicly traded trust

preferred securities of larger financial institutions and othei non-investment grade corporate debt Cash flows

utilized in the modeling of these securities were based üpoii actual default history of the underlying issuers and

issuer specific assumptions of estimated futuredefaults of the underlying issuers

Valuation ofImpaired Loans and Other Real Estate Owned

The fair value of collateral dependent impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan

losses and other real estate owned is generally based on recent real estate appraisals These appraisals may utilize

single valuation approach or combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach The

Company generally uses independent external
appraisers in this process who routinely make adjustments to adjust

for differences between the comparable sales and income data available Such adjustments are typically significant

and result in Level classification of the inputs for deternuning fair value The Company policy is to update

appraisals at minimum annually for all classified assets which include collateral dependent loans and OREO We
consider appraisals dated within the past 12 months to be current and do not typically make adjustments to such

appraisals In the Companys process for reviewing third-party prepared appraisals any differences ofopinion on

values assumptions or adjustments to comparable sales data are typically reconciled directly with the independent

appraiser prior to acceptance of the final appraisal

Assets

U.S Government agencies and corporations

States and political subdivisionstax exempt
States and political subdivisionstaxable

Marketable equity securities

Mortgage-backed securities residential

Corporate bonds

Collateralized debt obligations

Available for sale securities

$40699

059
$-

2157
74

369 203

74

2l0
795

$418092

Assets and Liabilities Measured on Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized below

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Significant

for Identical Other Unobservable

Assets Observajle Inputs
December 31 2010 Successor Company Level Inputs Level Level

$40699

3059

2157

369203

2105

795

$74 $417223 $795

The table below presents reconciliation and income statement classification of gains and losses for all

assets measured at fair value on recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs Level for the three

months ended December 31 2010 Successor Company and nine month ended September 30 2010 Predecessor

Company and still held at the end of each respective period
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Balance beginning of period

Included in earnings other than

impairment

Included in other comprehensive income

Transfer in to Level

Balance end of period
_____________________ ____________________

Assets and Liabilities Measured on Non-Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring basis are summarized below

December_31_2010 ____________________________________________________

During the nine months ended September 30 2010 prior to the application of adjustments related to the

application of the acquisition method of accounting $18581 of the allowance for loan losses was specifically

allocated to collateral dependent impaired loans The amounts of the specific allocations for impairment were

considered in the overall determination of the provision for loan losses As result of sales of foreclosed properties

receipt of updated appraisals reduced listing prices or entering into contracts to sell these properties valuation

adjustments of $19171 were recognized in our statement of operations during the nine months ended September 30
2010 Other repossessed assets are primarily comprised of repossessed automobiles and are measured at fair value as

of the date of repossession As result of the disposition of repossessed vehicles losses of $39 and $9 were

recognized in our statements of operations during the Successor Company three months ended December 31 2010

and the Predecessor Company nine months ended September 30 2010 respectively During the year ended

December 31 2009 $26085 of the allowance for loan losses was specifically allocated to collateral dependent

impaired loans The amounts of the specific allocations for impairment are considered in the overall determination

of the reserve and provision for loan losses As result of sales of foreclosed properties receipt of updated

appraisals reduced listing prices or entering into contracts to sell these properties wnte downs of fair value of

$1980 were recognized in our statements of operations during the year ended December 31 2009 Other

repossessed assets are pnmarily comprised of repossessed automobiles and are measured at fair value as of the date

of repossession As result of the disposition of repossessed vehicles gains of $244 were recognized in our

statements of operations during the year ended December 31 2009

temporary

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Level Collateralized Debt Obligations

Predecessor

Successor Company Company
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 31 2010 September 30 2010

$808 $759

13 49

$795 $808

Successor Company

Assets

Other real estate owned

Other repossessed assets

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable

Identical Assets Observable
Iiputs Inputs

Level Level Level

$25673 $-
104 104

$25673
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The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents accrued interest receivable and

payable non contractual which consists of demand deposits and deposits that reprice frequently and fully The

methods for determining the fair values for securities were described previously For loans contractual deposits

which consist of deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits and debt fair value is based on discounted

cash flows using current market rates It was not practicable to determine the fair value of FHLB and IBB stock due

to restrictions placed on their transferability The fair value of off balance sheet items is not considered material

Note 21Condensed Financial Information of TIB Financial Corp

Condensed Balance Sheets

Parent Only
Successor Company

December 31 2011 2010

Assets

Cash and due from banks $1645 $3506

Investment in bank subsidiaries 200843 198403

Investment in other subsidiaries 2224 3726

Other assets 1092 410

Total Assets $205804 $206045

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Accrued interest payable $132 $2102

Long term borrowings 24198 23909

Other liabilities 4096 3284
Shareholders equity 177378 176750

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $205804 $206045

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows at December 31

Successor Company

2011 2010

Carrying Estimated Fair Carrying Estimated

Value Value Value Fair Value

Successor Company

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $2221 $2221

Investment securities available for sale

Loans net

Federal Home Loan Bank and

Independent Bankers Bank stock

Accrued interest receivable

Financial liabilities

Non-contractual deposits

Contractual deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Short-term borrowings

Long-term repurchase agreements

Subordinated debentures 23176 24093

Accrued interest payable 132 132

$153794

418092

1004228

9621

4917

648019

719006

131116

47158

22887

7260

$153794

418092

995744

N/A

4917

648019

719328

130906

47156

25267

7260
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Operating income

Interest Income

Dividends from other subsidiaries

Total operating income

Operating expense

Interest expense

Other expense

Total operating expense

Loss before income tax benefit and equity in

undistributed earnings of subsidiaries

Income tax benefit

Loss before equity in undistributed earnings of

subsidiaries

Equity in income losses of subsidiaries

Net income loss

$42 $12 $3 $97

48 31

90 12 128

1934 470 1153 1626

886 .202 1720 1660

2820 672 2873 3286

2730 660 2870 3158
1023 244 540

1707 416 2870 2618
4507 976 49935 58930

$2800 $560 $52805 $61548

Condensed Statements of Income

Parent Only

Successor Company Predecessor Company
Three

Months

Year Ended Ended
December December

31 2011 31 2010

Nine

Months

Ended

September

30 2010

Year

Ended

December

312009
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Condensed Financial Information of TIB Financial Corp Continued

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Equity in income losses of subsidiaries

Stock-based compensation expense

Increase decrease in net income tax obligation

Increase decrease in other assets

Increase decrease in other liabilities

Net cash provided by used in operating activities
___________________________

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in bank subsidiaries

Investment in other subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities
____________________________

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of common shares

Income tax effect of stock based compensation

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Proceeds from subsidiaries for equity awards

Net proceeds from Capital Bank Financial Corp investment

Cash dividends paid ________________________
Net cash provided by used in financing activities

__________________________

Net increase decrease in cash

Cash beginning of period _________________________
Cash end of period __________________________

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Parent Only

Successor Company Predecessor Company

Three

Months Nine Months Year

Year Ended Ended Ended Ended

December December September December

31 2011 31 2010 302010 312009

$2800 $560 $52805 $61548
4507 976 49935 58930

178 287

1166 238 184 997

70 415 58 128

1740 3746 1146 307

4683 3985 1420 899

5241 5114 150000 20500
300 296 148

4941 5114 150296 20648

48
184 206

7763

791 401

162840

1285
7763 163447 1138

1861 9099 11731 22685
3506 12605 874 23559

$1645 $3 506 $12 605 $874
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Note 22Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

The following is summary of unaudited quarterlyresults for 2011 and 2010

Successor Company Predecessor Company
2011 2010 2010

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Condensed income statements

Interestincome $2 $10 $5290 $15844 $15681 $17042 $16988 $18287

Net interest income 490 461 934 12 682 12432 10 786 10 602 11 494

Provision for loan losses 136 485 402 17072 7700 4925

Equity in income from investment in

Capital Bank NA 1453 1973 658

Investment securities gain 12 993 1642

Customer relationship intangible

impairment 2872
Income Loss from continuing operations 819 1591 960 1068 560 33655 14099 5051
Income earned by preferred shareholders 680 669 660

Gain on Retirement of Series preferred

allocated to common shareholders 24276
Net income loss allocated to common
shareholders 819 1591 960 1068 560 10059 14768 5711

Basic earnings loss per common share $0.07 $0.13 $0.08 $0.09 $0.05 $67.56 $99.19 $38.36
Diluted earnings loss per common

share $0.07 $0.13 $0.07 $0.07 $0.03 $67.56 $99.19 $38.36

The Successor Company reported net income of $2800 for the year ended December 31 2011 As

discussed in Note due to the deconsolidation of the Bank during the second quarter of 201 no investments loans

or deposits are reported on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet and subsequent to the Merger date the

company began to account for its ownership in Capital Bank NA under the equity method of accounting Equity in

income from investment in Capital Bank NA was $4084 for the year ended December 31 2011 During the fourth

quarter of 2011 the Company performed an impairment test which resulted in the recognition of an impairment

charge of $2 872 relating to Naples Capital Advisors Inc customer relationship intangible asset The termination

of employment and subsequent direct competition of several employees of Naples Capital Advisors resulted in

decrease in assets under management Interest income and interest expense after deconsolidation of the Bank are the

result of cash deposited in Capital Bank NA and the outstanding trust preferred securities issued by the Company
respectively

The Successor Company reported net income of $560 for the three months ended December 31 2010

Increases in net interest income are primarily due to the impact of the purchase accounting adjustments which

revalued market deposits and borrowings to yield market interest rates as of September 30 2010 The provision for

loan losses of $402 recorded reflects the allowance for loan losses established for loans originated subsequent to

September 30 2010 No net charge-offs or losses on the disposition of other real estate owned were recorded as

credit losses experienced were incorporated in the net discounts recorded on loans and other real estate acquired as

of September 30 2010

142



ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure ContrOls and Procedures

The Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report

Based upon that evaluation they have concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures are effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed is recorded processed

summarized and reported within thetime periods specified in the CommissIons rules and forms and

are also designed to ensure that the information required to be disclosed in the reports filed or

submitted under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management including the

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to allow timely decisions regarding required

disclosures

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There have been no other significant changes in they Companys internal control over financial

reporting during the fourth fical quarter ended December 31 2011 that have materially affected or

are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of TIB Financial Corp is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO TIB Financial Corp.s system of internal control over financial reporting was

designed under the supervision of the companys chief executive officer and chief financial officer to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the preparation of the companys financial

statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles

Because of its inherent limitations internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate

TIB Financial Corp.s management assessed the effectiveness of the companys internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on the criteria established in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO Based on the assessment management determined that as of

December31 2011 thecompanys internal control over financial reporting is effective

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public

accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not

subject to attestation by the Companys registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the

Securities and Ecchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only managements report

in this annual report

Date April 2012

ztLkikf
Eugene Taylor

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Christopher Marshall

Chief Financial Officer

iTEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information set forth under the captions Information About the Board of Directors and Their

Committees and Executive Officers under the caption Election of Directors Audit Committee Report and

Filings Under Section 16A Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy Statement to be utilized in

connection with the Companys 2012 Annual Shareholders Meeting is incorporated herein by reference

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics our Code of Ethics that applies to

our employees officers and directors The complete Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.capitalbank

us.com If at any time it is not available on our website we will provide copy upon written request made to our

Corporate Secretary do Capital Bank Corporation 333 Fayetteville Street Suite 700 Raleigh North Carolina

27601 telephone 919 645-6400 InformatiOn on our website is not part of this report If we amend or grant any

waiver from provision of our Code of Ethics that applies to our executive officers we will publicly disclose such

amendment or waiver as required by applicable law including by posting such amendment or waiver on our website

at www.capitalbank-us.com or by filing Current Report on Form 8-K

ITEM 11 EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION

The information contained under the captions Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation

Committee Report Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation Executive Compensation

and Compensation of Directors in the Proxy Statement to be utilized in connection with the Companys 2012

Annual Shareholders Meeting is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AN
RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information contained under the captions Management and Principal Shareholders and Equity

Compiisation Plan Information under Executive Compensation in the Proxy Statement to be utilized in

connection with the Companys 2012 Annual Shareholders Meeting is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information contained under the captions Director Independence under Election of Directors and

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions in the Proxy Statement to be utilized in connection with the

Companys 2012 Annual Shareholders Meeting is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained under the caption Independent Public Accountants in the Proxy Statement to

be utilized in connection with the Companys 2012 Annual Shareholders Meeting is incorporated herein by

reference
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements notes thereto and independent auditors report thereon filed as part

hereof are listed in Item

Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statement schedules have been omitted as the required information is not applicable or the

required information has been incorporated in the consolidated financial statements and related notes incorporated

by reference herein

Exhibits

Exhibit Numbers

2.1 Plan of Merger adopted by the Board of Directors of North American Financial Holdings Inc dated

September 12011 gg

2.2 Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated as of July 16 2010 among the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation Receiver of First National Bank of the South Spartanburg South Carolina

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and NAFH National Bank Single Family Shared-Loss

Agreement andiCcmmercial Shared-Loss Agreement included as Exhibits ISA and 4.1 SB thereto

respectively gg

2.3 Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated as of July 16 2010 among the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation Receiver of Metro Bank of Dade County Miami Florida the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation and NAFH National Bank Single Family Shared-Loss Agreement and

Commercial Shared-Loss Agreement included as Exhibits 4.1 5A and 4.1 SB thereto respectively gg

2.4 Purchase and Assumption Agreeent dated as of July 16 201Q among the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation Receiver of Turnberry Bank Aventura Florida the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and NAFH National Bank Single Family Shared-Loss Agreement and Commercial

Shared-Loss Areementincluded as Exhibits 4.1 5A and 4.1 5B thereto respectively gg

Agreement of Merger of TIB Bank with and into NAFH National Bank by and between NAFH
National Bank and TIB Bank dated as of April 27 201 1Exhibits to this agreement have been

omitted pursuant to Item 601 b2 of Regulation S-K copy of any omitted exhibit will be

furnished supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request gg

2.6 Agreement of Merger of capital Bank with and into NAFH National Bank by and between NAFH

National Bank and Capital Bank dated as of June 30 2011 Exhibits to this agreement have been

omitted pursuant to Item 601 b2 of Regulation S-K copy of any omitted exhibit will be

furnished supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request gg

2.7 Agreement and Plan of Merger of GreenBank with and into Capital Bank National Association by

and between GreenBank and Capital Bank National Association dated as of September 2011

Exhibits to this agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601b2 of Regulation S-K copy

of any omitted exhibit will be furnished supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Commission

upon request gg

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation
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3.2 Amendment to Articles of Incorporation

3.3 Bylawsc

3.4 Amendment to TIB Financial Corp Bylaws

3.5 Articles of Amendment to the Restated Articles of Incorporation authorizing the Preferred Shares

3.6 Warrant to Purchase up to 1063218 shares of Common Stock

3.7 Articles of Amendment to the Restated Articles of Incorporation authorizing Series Convertible

Participating Voting Preferred Stock ii

3.8 Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of TIB Financial Corp

3.9 Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of TIB Financial Corp

3.10 Bylaws of TIB Financial Corp

3.11 Certificate of Designations Preferences Rights and Limitation of Series Convertible Participating

Voting Preferred Stock aa

3.12 Articles of Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation of TIB Financial Corp if

4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate

4.2 Indenture dated as of September 2000 Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures due

2030

4.3 Indenture dated as of July 31 2001 Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures

due 2031

4.4 Indenture dated as of June 23 2006 Junior Subordinated Debt Securities due July 2036

4.5 Warrant dated September 30 2010 to purchase shares of Common Stock and Series Convertible

Participating Voting Preferred Stock aa

10.1 Employment Agreement between Edward Lett TIB Financial Corp and TIB Bank effective

March 2004

10.2 401K Savings and Employee Stock Ownership Plan

10.3 Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan

10.4 Employment Agreement between Michael Carrigan TIB Financial Corp and TIB Bank effective

March 2004

10.5 Employment Agreement between Alma Shuckhart TIB Financial Corp and TIB Bank effective

March 2004

10.6 Employment Agreement between Stephen Gilhooly TIB Financial Corp and TIB Bank effective

September 27 2006

10.7 Form of Director Deferred Fee Agreement

10.8 Form of Salary Continuation Agreement

10.9 Form of Executive Officer Split Dollar Agreement

10.10 Form of Director Deferred Fee Agreement First Amendment

147



10.11 Form of Executive Officer Split Dollar Agreement First Amendment

10.12 Form of Salary Continuation Agreement First Amendment

10.13 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement

10.14 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Addendum

10.15 Form of Salary Continuation Agreement Second Amendment

10.16 Marketing and Sales Alliance Agreement

10.17 Non-Competition Agreement

10.18 Form of Salary Continuation Agreement Michael Carrigan and Steve Gilhooly

10.19 Stock Purchase Agreement between Naples Capital Advisors Inc John Suddeth Jr and Michael

Morris and TIB Financial Corp

10.20 Amendment to the Employment Agreement for Alma Shuckhart

10.21 Employment Agreement between David Voigt TIB Financial Corp and The Bank of Venice

10.22 Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement for Alma Shuckhart

10.23 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement

10.24 Form of Registration Rights Agreement

10.25 Form of Relationship Agreement

10.26 Form of Common Stock Warrant

10.27 Letter Agreement dated December 2008 between the Company and the United States Department

of Treasury

10.28 Form of Waiver executed by each Messrs Thomas Longe Edward Left Stephen Gilhooly

Michael Carrigan and Michael Morris

10.29 Form of Letter Agreement executed by each Messrs Thomas Longe Edward Lett Stephen

Gilhooly Michael Carrigan and Michael Morris

10.30 Securities Purchase Agreement Standard Terms between the Company and the United States

Department of Treasury

10.31 Form of Offer Letter/Waiver by and between TIB Financial Corp and Thomas Longe Stephen

Gilhooly Michael Can-igan and Alma Shuckhart effective September 30 2010

10.32 Form of Offer Letter/Waiver by and between Michael Morris and TIB Financial Corp effective

September 30 2010

10.33 Registration Rights Agreement dated September 30 2010 by and between TIB Financial Corp and

North American Financial Holdings Inc aa

10.34 Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between TIB Financial Corp and its directors and certain

officers aa

10.35 Form of Indenmification Agreement by and between TIB Bank and its directors and certain officers

aa
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10.36 Fcrm of Written Agreement beeen TIB Financial Corp and the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta

bb

10.37 Form of Consent Order between TIB Bank the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the State

of Florida Office of Financial Regulation cc

10.38 Form of Investment Agreement dated as of June 29 2010 by and among TIB Financial Corp TIB

Bank and North American Financial Holdings Inc dd

10.39 Agreement dated as of June 2010 by and among TIB Financial Corp TIB Bank Marty Adams

Kevin Thompson and John Loeber ee

10.40 Investment Right and Expense Reimbursement Agreement dated as of June 2010 by and among

TIB Financial Corp TIB Bank and Resource Financial Institutions Group Inc ee

14.1 Board of Directors Ethics Code

14.2 Senior Financial Officer Ethics Code

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

23.2 Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP

31.1 Chief Executive Officers certification required under Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Chief Financial Officers certification required under Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Chief Executive Officers certification required under Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Chief Financial Officers certification required under Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Amendment No to TIB Financial Corp 2004 Equity Incentive Plan ff

101.1NS XBRL Instance Document

101 .SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension LabelLinkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Users of this data are advised that pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the interactive data files

on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for

purposes
of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for

purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise are not

subject to liability under those sections

Incorporated by reference to Appendix in the Companys Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April

2004

Item 3.2 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on

September 28 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference
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Previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-3

dated March 2010 Registration No 333-113489 and such document is incorporated herein by

reference

Previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit with the same respective Exhibit Number as indicated

herein to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated May 10 1996 Registration No

333-03499 and such document is incorporated herein by reference

Represents management contract or compensation plan or arrangement required to be filed as an

exhibit

Items 10.1 10.10 and 10.11 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to the Companys

December 31 2003 0-K and such documents are incorporated herein by reference

Items 10.4 and 10.5 were previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form lO-Q filed by

the Company on November 2006 and are incorporated herein by reference

Item 10.6 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company

on September 27 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference

Items 10.7 through 10.9 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to the Companys

December 31 2001 10-K and such documents are incorporated herein by reference

Item 10.12 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Companys December 31 2004

10-K and is incorporated herein by reference

Items 10.13 10.14 10.16 10.17 14.1 and 14.2 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to

the Companys December 31 2005 10-K and such documents are incorporated herein by reference

Item 3.4 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 10-K filed by the Company

on March 172008 and is incorporated herein by reference

Items 10.15 was previously filed by the Company as Exhibits with the same respective exhibit

number as indicated herein to the Companys December 31 2006 Form 10-K and such documents

are incorporated herein by reference

Item 10.18 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company

on February 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 10.19 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company

on December 13 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 10.22 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 10-Q filed by the

Company on November 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 10.21 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company

on May 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference

Items 3.5 through 3.6 and 10.27 through 10.30 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to

the Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 2008 and such documents are incorporated

herein by reference

Items 10.23 through 10.26 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to the Form 8-K filed by

the Company on March 11 2008 and such documents are hereby incorporated by reference

Item 10.20 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company

on October 2007 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 3.7 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on

October 2010 and is incorporated herein by reference

150



Item 3.8 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on

December 2010 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 3.9 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on

December 15 2010 and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 3.10 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company
on November 30 2010 and is incorporated herein by reference

Items 10.31 and 10.32 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to the Form 8-K filed by the

Company on October 2010 and such documents are incorporated herein by reference

Items 4.2 through 4.4 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits with the same respective

exhibit number as indicated herein to the Companys December 31 2009 Form 10-K and such

documeits are incorporated herein by reference

aa Items 3.11 4.5 10.33 10.34 and 10.35 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to the Form

8-K filed by the Company on October 2010 and such documents are incorporated herein by

reference

bb Item 10.36 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company
on September 23 2010 and is incorporated herein by reference

cc Item 10.37 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company
on July 2010 and is incorporated herein by reference

dd Item 10.38 was previously filed by the Company as an Exhibit to the Form 8-K filed by the Company
on June 30 2010 and is incorporated herein by reference

ee Items 10.39 and 10.40 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to the Form 8-K filed by the

Company on June 11 2010 and such documents are incorporated herein by reference

if Items 3.12 and 99.1 were previously filed by the Company as Exhibits to the Form 8-K filed by the

Company on May 26 2010 and such documents are incorporated herein by reference

gg Items 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 and 2.7 were previous filed by North American Financial Holdings

Inc as Exhibits to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 333-176796 filed with the SEC
on September 12 2011
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on April

2012

TIB FiNANCIAL CORP

By______________
Eugene Taylor

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

152



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on April 2012

Signature Title

Chief Executive Officer Principal

Executive Officer Chairman of the

Board of Directors

Eugene Taylor

Chief Financial Officer Principal

Financial Officer Principal Accounting

_________________________________________________________ Officer Director

Christopher Marshall

Chief Risk Officer Director

Bruce Singletary

___________________________________________________
Director

Peter Foss

CL
Director

William Hodges

______________________________________________________
Director

Bradley Boaz

_______________________________________________________________
Director

Howard Gutman
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Exhibit 21.1

SUB SIDJAJUES OF THE REGISTRANT

The Subsidiaries of the Registrant are Naples Capital Advisors Inc registered investment advisorTIBFL
Statutory Trust and TIBFL Statutory Trust II which are Connecticut

statutory trusts and TIBFL
Statutory Trust IIIwhich is Delaware statutory trust



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos 333-143391 333-30515 333-106092

333-117773 333-138208 and 333-138212 on Forms S-8 and Registration Statement No 333-156542 on Form S-3

of our report dated March 31 2011 with respect to the 2010 consolidated balance sheet of TIB Financial Corp and

the related consolidated statements of operations changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the two

years in the period ended December 31 2010 which report appears in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of TIB

Financial Corp for the year ended December 31 2011

Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida

April 2012



Exhibit 31.1

Eugene Taylor Chairman and Chief Executive Officer certifi that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TIB Financial Corp

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5e and 5d-e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-l 5f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect

the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process
summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date April 2012

Eugene Taylor

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Christopher Marshall Chief Financial Officer certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TIB Financial Corp

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of amaterial fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this repart

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-l 5e and 5d-e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date April 2012

Ic
Christopher Marshall

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Chief Executive Officers Certification required under Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of TIB Financial Corp the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended

December 31 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the Report Eugene Taylor

Chief Executive Officer of the Company certif pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

this Report fuily complies with therequirementsof Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and that to my knowledge the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the

financial condition and results of operation of the Company

Date April 2012 Eugene Taylor

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adoptingthe signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this

written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to TIB Financial Corp and will be retained by TIB

Financial Corp and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request



Exhibit 32.2

Chief Financial Officers Certification required under Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of TIB Financial Corp the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended

December 31 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the Report Christopher

Marshall Chief Financial Officer of the Company certif pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 that this Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and that to my knowledge the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects

the financial condition and results of operation of the Company

aitC
Date April 2012 Christopher Marshall

Chief Financial Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that
appears in typed form within the electronic version of this

written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to TIB Financial Corp and will be retained by TIB

Financial Corp and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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